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Chairman’s Statement

TEHRESE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the annual report
of China Sandi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

RESULTS

The Group achieved solid growth in many of its key financial
aspects during the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded a
total revenue of approximately HK$707.7 million, representing
a significant year-on-year increase of approximately 137.8%.
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
HK$156.3 million as compared with a loss of HK$169.4 million
last year. Basic earnings per share was HK3.60 cents. During
the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group also achieved a
remarkable contracted sales amount of HK$1,991.8 million.

REVIEW OF THE YEAR

In 2017, China’s property sector continued to grow steadily
driven by robust end user demand across various city tiers with
the strongest growth exhibited in tier-2 and tier-3 cities as
China’s population growth in these regions fueled the need for
new home purchases and upgrades.

In 2017, the growth of transaction volume and selling prices in
tier-2 and tier-3 cities continued to outpace the growth in tier-
1 cities as tier-2 and tier 3 cities saw higher demand growth
and more project launches to meet the needs of residential
buyers. As the distribution of growth diversified across cities
in China, the Group actively seized market rhythm and
concentrated its property development in tier-2 cities, Xian and
Fuzhou during the year.
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REVIEW OF THE YEAR (continued)

Xian was designated to serve “One Belt One Road” national
strategies, and it was named as the starting point for the
Silk Road Economic Belt. Fuzhou is also a at the heart of the
“One Belt One Road” initiative which aims to boost linkages
with other countries with an overland network of highways
and railroads as well as a maritime route. This should help to
attract capital and talent to Xian and Fuzhou, strengthening
the cities’ innovation-driven growth model.

The Group would continue to promote the progress of Fuzhou
and Xian projects, and determine the specific launch time
of the properties according to the local economic trend and
investment atmosphere.

PROSPECTUS

In the long run, we remain optimistic about the prospects
of real estate markets in China. The Group will continue to
leverage on its competitive advantage in Fuzhou and Xian,
solidify and further develop its property investment and
development business across the PRC. We will maintain
prudent investment strategies, and acquire sufficient and
quality land reserve through a wide array of approaches.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our valued
customers, suppliers and business associates for their
invaluable contributions and support. | also want to express my
gratitude to our management team and all staff of the Group
for their hard work during the year. Last but not least, | am
most grateful to our shareholders for their continuous support
and confidence.

Guo Jiadi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 June 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DM

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded a
total revenue of approximately HK$707.7 million, representing
a significant year-on-year increase of approximately 137.8%.
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
HK$156.3 million as compared with a loss of HK$169.4 million
in last year. Basic earnings per share was HK3.60 cents (2017:
basic loss per share of HK4.04 cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in property development and
holding of property for investment and rental purpose, as well
as money lending business.

Property development
Contracted property sales

Contracted sales of the Group for the year reached
approximately HK$1,991.8 million with a total gross floor
area ("GFA") of approximately 155,417 square meters (“sq.
m"). The Group focuses on its projects in respect of peripheral
facilities seeking to fulfill needs of the middle to upper class
households.

HEEE
BHE-_Z—-N\F=A=+—HBILFE-
N2 [E $% 15 4 W %5 #9707,700,00058 I
IR RIS RA137.8% - AR AR A
JE 15 3% #) 2156,300,0005 7T M1 &= &
#8169,400,00078 T - R EAZF) A3.60
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) XEEE#)

Property development (continued) MERRE (&)

Contracted property sales (continued) BHRYHEEE (&)

The table below illustrates the contracted sales (stated before TRIIWRAKEBHFEZE_Z—N\NF=AH4
the deduction of applicable taxes) achieved by the Group for Tt HIEFEZALNHEEEE (HIKkEH
the year ended 31 March 2018: TIERT)

Contracted Sales for the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-Z-N\E=B=t+-HLEERHHE
Average price
of contracted  Percentage

Contracted  Contracted sales of total
sales amount sales area HK$/sq.m  contracted
Location Property projects Project type HK$'000 (sq.m) (Note 1) sales amount
RHHE
THER
ENHE BHHE Br/ ENHEE
¢8 [ip EHx AE
ik NEER ERER TERT (F5K) (Hizt1) Bl
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu Commercial/Office 168,640 7,863 21,447 8.5%
BRERMNM Plaza mE/ WA
BMN=B8ERS
Carpark 4,560 896 5,090 0.2%
FE5
Xian City, Shaanxi Province Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan
REERZT ¢ Xian Sandi
=i T EERES
Commercial 23,174 1,021 22,697 1.2%
- Zone A of Phase 1 nE
- Z1HAR Residential 28,406 2,418 11,748 1.4%
FE
- Zone B of Phase 1 Residential 643,854 54,129 11,895 32.3%
- Z158R FE
- Zone C of Phase 2 Residential 620,003 50,919 12,176 31.1%
- E28CE (i3
- Zone D of Phase 2 Residential 503,148 38,171 13,181 25.3%
- 24Dk FE
Total 1,991,785 155,417 12,816 100.0%
@t
Note 1: KfaET -

The calculation of average price per sq.m is based on the sales BYFREHEERENRINKREET EE
revenue before the deduction of business/value-added tax and other MEEAMWINE TRIEZ HE RS BETE -
surcharges/taxes.

PE=ZEZERERDE 2017/185F &




Management Discussion and Analysis

== =4 A yaN
Eiﬂjgnq‘nﬂﬂ&ﬂ *ﬁ'
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) XBEE#)
Property development (continued) MERRE (&)
Portfolio of property development projects YWERREBEBHHES
The table below summaries the portfolio of property TEBERA-—ZE-—NE=A=1+—B2Y
development projects as at 31 March 2018: ¥ERIBEBEHEA:
Under development/
Completed future
. development
ERH $B%/ AREE
Saleable GFA Planned GFA
delivered/ GFA  GFAunder  forfuture
Actual/expected Site area presold  available for ~ development  development Group's
Location Property projects Project type completion dates ~ sq.m E*ﬁ%g sale sqm sqm sﬂw interest%%
jQ N
) ETgEE  wgse  3Ee 3EEN
| BBt tMER  ZEE  EIER  REER  BEER AR
Y VESEL: ERER T A (Fak)  (Fax)  (FpK)  (FpK)  (¥5K) L
Fuzhou City, Fujian ~ Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu
_ Province, Plaza
BREENT BNZeIERS o
-Zone A Commercial/office 2017 18,330 21,407 2,406 - - 95%
- AR BE/ WL (i)
Others (Note i)~ 2018 896 2,642 - - 95%
it (ki)
-Zone B Hotel 2019 - - 69,998 - 95%
-BE i3
SJup%-total 18,330 22,303 5,048 69,998 - 95%
/ \E
Wuyishan City, Wuyishan Sandi New Times ~ Residential and ~ Pending 168,069 - - - 157077 55%
_ Fujian Province, _\S£uarg‘ o Commerdal &7 (vi
BRERALT  RRU-ENRRES  HEREX
Xian City, Shaanxi~ Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan
Province * Xian Sandi
REEEZH RZ=i e IFEAR o
Residential 2017 54(9)96 66,165 1,152 - - 95%
- Zone A of Phase 1 Fz ¥
R atin S Tt
-FIE Corecil 2017 1615 3623 - - %%
SES
Residential, 2018/2019 - - 71,363 - 95%
g ST
-FIE #%-BER
i (i)
SJu%—total 54,9% 67,780 4775 71,363 - 95%
/ \E
Residential and 2021 34,192 - - 142,595 - 95%
~ %]Ssg% 2 . Commercia (vi)
/ FEREX
Total 276,187 90,083 9,823 283,956 157,177
a3t
Total attr@utable GFA 85,579 9332 269,758 86,447
EHREER

8 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18




Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property development (continued)

Portfolio of property development projects (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The table above includes properties for which the Group has
obtained the relevant land use rights certificate(s) but has not
obtained the requisite construction permits or the Group has
received the confirmation letter on bidding of granting land use
rights but in progress to obtain the land use right certificate(s).
The figures for “GFA available for sale”, “GFA under
development” and “Planned GFA for future development”
are based on figures provided in the relevant governmental
documents, such as the property ownership certificates, the
construction work planning permits, the pre-sale permits,
the construction land planning permits or the land use rights
certificate. The categories of information are based on our
internal records.

Others mainly comprises car parks and ancillary facilities.

"GFA available for sale” and “GFA under development” and
“Planned GFA for future development” are derived from the
Group’s internal records and estimates.

Pursuant to a State-owned Land Use Rights Certificate issued
by the Fuzhou City Bureau of Land and Resources, the land
use rights of a parcel of land with a site area of approximately
18,330 sq.m. were granted/allocated to the Group for the
development of Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu Plaza.

Pursuant to the State-owned Land Use Rights Certificate(s)
issued by the Xi'an City Bureau of Land and Resources, the land
use rights of land parcels with a total site area of approximately
54,996 sq.m. were granted/allocated to the Group for the
development of Phase 1, Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian
Sandi.

Pursuant to the State-owned Land Use Rights Certificate(s)
issued by the Xi'an City Bureau of Land and Resources, the land
use rights of land parcels with a total site area of approximately
34,192 sg.m. were granted/allocated to the Group for the
development of Phase 2, Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian
Sandi.

The Group has received the confirmation letter on bidding of
granting land use rights with a total site area of approximately
168,669 sq.m., but in progress to obtain the relevant land use
right certificate(s).

ﬁ“ﬁEFE*TmEZi *ﬁ

¥EKEOE e
MERRE (&)
WERRELMES ()
Bz

() LEREBEAEECBUSHER LT bERESD
B AREIS 4 2 H 3 TRF A8 - SR E
EREIET L ERRNPRERE B
EZJEZEHXiﬁEﬁﬁHﬁE‘ ZMEe At

EEE] [HERPEE@E] 2K
X%é)?equilJL AEE | 2 BFENBAEK
XMz 85 ZZD/%F CEETIRARE

ﬁTE?E FEEFAE  ERAMR S
& RS ,éfﬂ*ﬁ)”ﬂxs%ﬁ’\ﬁzﬁ
E’]Wﬁﬁuﬂﬁi

(i) HUXrEFEEESNRMERME-

(i) TAHHEREEE] [HERTPEERE
Bl R ARRERABIZEERR] REAS
[ A AP RO 8% M (R o

vy BEENTELTEREPEZEN—HEFL
AR —iE+EEL18,330FF
K LAY T AR a8 T A
EE UBRREBN=ZHEEES-

(v) BREAZTELERBBEFEMHE Lt
AR — B4t EmiE4)54,996F 5
KA LAY T AR BT A
SE UBREALZ =@M« ) THMEMMNE
1Hi -

(viy BEAZTELERBBEFEMHE L
FRAEE  —BA T HmEL34,192F
KA LAY T4 AR T A
SE UBREALZ =@M« ) THMEMNE
28] o

(viiy AEBEDUWEE LB EE4)168,669
FHRM T RE s PERERES  EIE
TEIEEAE RS T b s AT o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEN®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) XBEE#)
Property development (continued) MERRE (&)

Portfolio of property development projects (continued) YWEBRREIEHAHAS ()

The following section provides further details of the ILATZHIRHAKEE 2 HEEERTK
development progress and completion of each of the projects. 1R 2 FFE -

1) Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu Plaza 1) #BN=Z#HEZFES

1 0 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18




Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property development (continued)

Portfolio of property development projects (continued)

1)

2)

Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu Plaza (continued)

Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu Plaza is situated in a prime
location of Fujian Province. It is easily accessible, being
next to the Lulei Station* (& u4) of the Fuzhou Metro.
Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu Plaza comprises two zones,
namely Zone A and Zone B.

Zone A

As at 31 March 2018, the construction work in respect
of the building in Zone A (i.e. the 14-storey commercial/
office building plus a basement) was completed with a
total saleable GFA of approximately 27,351 sq.m. It was
launched for pre-sales since April 2016 and well received
by the market. A total GFA of 20,129 sq.m has been
progressively delivered to buyers since August 2017.

Zone B

Zone B consists of three blocks of 16- to 18-storey
hotel buildings plus two basements levels with a total
construction GFA of approximately 69,998 sg.m.
The construction works of Zone B is expected to be
completed in 2019.

Wuyishan Sandi New Times Square

The project site is situated at Wuyishan, Fujian Province.
It is located 4 kilometers west of Da Hong Pao Scenic
Area, a PRC National 4A-level scenic spot. The planning
intention of the Wuyishan Sandi New Times Square is
primarily for low density properties developments with
the provision of open space and excellent ancillary
facilities.

*  For identification purposes only

EEENWR DM

¥£FEOEE(#)
MIEBE(B)
WERRBEEMAS (4)

1)

2)

wIN=E = ES (&)

BB ERSUNEREEES
B o EL AR T (R 0 Bt R AR N 1b 35 BB
Bu-mMN—BAEESEEMER
i3 - BIAR MBI °

Al

R-Z—\FZA=+—H ARET
(BMABRE, PANENMM =) 8
RETRERK QUHERaRE
#927351F A K -ZBEA-_T— X

FOARELES RXMHEL-
MIEHEMIE20,129KBZF—LFN
ABEZSZLZNTFERK-

Bl&

B B IE=1E16E 188 5 /8 & K1&
MME TE LEREEEBY
69,998 K- BEEE TREHN
—E-NEFEEK-

BREL =R ES

ZEEMEREREREIL MR KA
WEE (P RIALE S E) ATEAR
B-REN=ZBIBRESHBEE
DHRERZREMEERIBEE  2HEFH
WERRERHEERE-

* EHEA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) EBOE =)

Property development (continued) MERRE (&)

Portfolio of property development projects (continued) WEBRREHHAE (&)

3)  Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian Sandi 3) B =iei)I&HEMST

Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian Sandi is located in 7% = 3 o )T 7 MR FH 7 A B BR
Qujiang New District* (BT #7l&), Xian City, Shaanxi AEmLTmiI R fIFER—
Province, the PRC. The Qujiang New District has been BEEF R XALITE R IR =1 - 7
identified as a district focusing on cultural industry and Z=Ee I HMEENURALT R
tourism. The Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian Sandi is R AT E T ERE 0 R
situated in a prime location of Xian which is adjacent to B EER - FTAPIE RS - EFRE Ko dh
certain main roads, such as Wu Dian Bo Road* (F #3 %), LB - AR WA B IS HE AN BE 7Y
Tanghua Road* (FFZE L), Xin Kai Men South Road* (375 ¥RIMEIEAEEREME-

FIm ), Yanxiang Road* (JE#) and Qujiang Road* (dh
JTB%). The Xian Property Project is also situated across the
Yanxiang Road Commercial District* (fE I m%£E) and
the Chuangyi Valley Commercial District* (8] B A % &).

The development of the Quijiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian Az =@e ) I HFEMANBERBD
Sandi is intended to be divided into (i) Zone A of Phase 1; (ii) A (WVE1HBAR : ()ZE1HIBIER + K (iii)
Zone B of Phase 1; and (iii) Phase 2. F2H7 -

*  For identification purposes only * (EHE

1 2 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18




Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property development (continued)

Portfolio of property development projects (continued)

3)

Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian Sandi (continued)

Phase 1

Zone A with a total saleable GFA of 67,317 sq.m for residential
and 5,238 sq.m of ancillary retail. Zone A was launched for
pre-sale in June 2015. The construction works of Zone A was
completed in 2017. In addition to a total GFA of 33,815 sg.m
delivered to the buyers in March 2017, a total GFA of 32,131
sg.m has been delivered to the buyers during the year ended
31 March 2018.

Zone B consists of 2 block of residential buildings and a
kindergarten with a total construction GFA of approximately
71,363 sg.m. The construction works of Zone B is expected to
be completed in 2019. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the pre-sales permit for Zone B is obtained with a contracted
sales amount of approximately HK$643.9 million.

Phase 2

Phase 2 consists of 4 blocks of residential buildings with a
total construction GFA of approximately 142,595 sgq.m. The
construction works of phase 2 is expected to be completed
in 2021. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the pre-sales
permit for Phase 2 is obtained with a contracted sales amount
of approximately HK$1,123.2 million.

*  For identification purposes only

EEENWR DM

¥EKEOE e

MERR (&)

WERREBAMESE (B)

3) BAER=ie T EEMA ()

E1H

ARWBRAHEREMBEREERS
67317 FEF K REEZTE 55,238
THNK - ARBR-ZE—RHFENAHLE
EE - ARBEEIRBR-_T—tFE
Ro-BR_E—tEZAXNFER
B 48 s AT 78 33,815 F oK B E
—E-NF=A=t+—-RBILEE &
BEMEIIBITFHFRKERNFTFE
%o

BB EMEFEEFTE—E4R
B EEEIELT1,363F A
KoBRBEIREBHN -_ZT—HLF
TR HE_ET-N\F=ZA=+—H
IEFE - BEREBRBEFAIZE &4
$H 58 49643,900,000/8 It °

FE2H]

F2HBFABEEET AR RES
EFE#9142,595F 7K o 2B T
BERAR-_ZE-_—FZK-#=—
E-NF=ZA=1+—BLLtFE K
BE2HEEHIF AHHEERY
1,123,200,000/% 7T

* EHBEA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Land bank replenishment

The Group's strategy is to maintain a land bank portfolio sufficient
to support the Group’s own development pipeline for the next
few years. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a quality land
bank amounting to a total GFA of approximately 450,956
sg.m, comprising (a) a total GFA of 9,823 sq.m. completed
but remaining unsold, (b) a total GFA of 283,956 sq.m. under
development and construction, and (c) a total planned GFA of
157,177 sq.m. held for future development.

The property investment business

The current property investment business is mainly operated
by Fujian Sinco Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Sinco”) which
is engaged in development, operation and management
of a home improvement plaza (“Sandi Plaza”). During the
year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded the rental,
property management and related fee income of approximately
HK$113.4 million (2017: HK$99.2 million). The Sandi Plaza had
an occupancy rate of approximately 89.9% which represent an
increase in the occupancy rate as compared to approximately
80.6% in last year. The increase in occupancy rate is primarily
due to the completion of renovation works on one entire floor of
the Sandi Plaza. The construction works of the Fuzhou subway
transportation in front of the Sandi Plaza is still ongoing, which
continues to pose some negative impacts to the occupancy rate.
Nevertheless, the Board is confident on this property investment
business and believes it will continuously bring a positive and
stable return to the Group in the future.

E£FEOEE(#)
timEEERE
AEEMEI2AE RSB AREE KK

HFERR2IMHEEHEEE - R_E—N\F
ZA=+—8B AEEHELREEEREY
450,956 F FKMEBE L f#E - 215 ()42
MRS, 823F A KEEKREBINAHE
(b)#E R M 75283,956F H KR M 7E
B R(OBIRBIEEMmMIE157177F 5 K
TERREER -

MEREEK
%%&ﬁ%%angmﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁiﬁ
ﬂﬁﬁ@%ﬂn”” agﬂm$*
M%Ei%w BMREES]) ZERE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Other Investments

Our other investments including investing surplus cash from
operations in listed equity securities, debts securities and
exchangeable bonds in Hong Kong and the PRC. We have
invested in listed high yield debts and stocks with growth
potentials. We have also invested in exchangeable bonds for
interest income. The objectives of these investments are to
strike a balance between risk and return in order to maximise
return to shareholders.

The equity and debt securities acquired are principally for short
term investment purpose. The Group would closely monitor
performances of the mentioned and will seek for disposal
opportunities for profit if any. Our principal business is still
engaged in property development and property investment
business and thus we will continue to proactively take up
opportunities in real estate market. Therefore, the Group
would consider disposing or downsizing the existing listed-
equities investment portfolio when the Group has funding
needs for expanding the property development business in the
future.

Significant events
i)  Completion of major acquisitions

Fujian Sinco, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, acquired 95% of the equity interests of Fujian
Jingdu Land Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Jingdu”) at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB455.8 million, (the
“Fujian Acquisition”). Fujian Acquisition was completed
on 26 May 2017.

Concurrent with the Fujian Acquisition, Fujian Sinco,
acquired 95% of the equity interests of Xian Sandi
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Xian Sandi”) at an
aggregate consideration of approximately RMB202.4
million (the “Xian Acquisition”). Xian Acquisition was
completed on 16 June 2017.

EEENWR DM
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TEEEN®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Significant events (continued)

i)

(i)

1 6 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

Completion of major acquisitions (continued)

As a result of the completion of Fujian and Xian
Acquisitions, each of the Fujian Jingdu and the Xian
Sandi has become a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Fujian Jingdu owns the Fujian Land which
is being developed into a commercial and hotel complex
named Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu Plaza* ({8l = &l= &
3%); and (i) the Xian Sandi owns the Xian Lands which
are being developed into a residential and commercial
property development project named Qujiang Xiangsong
Fengdan e Xian Sandi* (7% =3 o g)T &84 FT).

For more details of Fujian acquisition and Xian
Acquisition, please refer to the related announcement
of the Company dated 15 December 2016 and 19 June
2017 and the circular dated 16 March 2017.

Provision of financial assistance

Given the extremely low interest rates in Hong Kong and
the PRC, the Company considers that placing its general
working capital and the unutilised net proceeds raised
from the rights issue in bank deposits with banks may not
be beneficial to the Group.

The Company has been looking for alternatives to placing
the unutilised net proceeds in bank deposits. With
reference to announcements of the Company dated 3
May 2016, 22 August 2016, 9 November 2016 and 10
November 2016, the Group found two independent third
parties (“Borrowers”) who are companies established
under the laws of the PRC and willing to pay a higher
interest rate for loan. Loan agreements were entered into
by Fujian Sinco, the indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company with the Borrowers. All the loan granted
are unsecured in principal amount ranged between
RMB140 million and RMB145 million; at a fixed interest
rate of 5% per annum; and with term ranged from six-
months to fifteen-months at initiate date of borrowings.
Borrowers shall repay the principal amount of the loan
together with all accrued interests at maturity. Details
of the financial assistance are set out in announcements
of the Company dated 3 May 2016, 22 August 2016, 9
November 2016 and 10 November 2016. Summary of the
financial assistance are as follows:

*  For identification purposes only

E£FEOEE(#)
BEAEIE(4)

i)

(ii)
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M}EJELTHIE& *ﬁ'

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) EKERE (2
Significant events (continued) BEAREE(£)
(ii) Provision of financial assistance (continued) (ii) IEBHEKEEZEE (&)
As at As at
Interest 31 March 31 March
rate 2017 2018
Date of Name of Principal per Drawn down  Drawn down
agreement borrower loan amount annum Term amount amount
R=B-t& RZB-N\E
ZR=1+-H ZA=1+-H
GELE: ERER EXEeeE ER® o] RESH ROEE
3 May 2016 Jianyang Lide Trading RMB145 million 5% 6 months (On RMB90 -
Company Limited* (equivalent to 9 November 2016, million (Note (i)
(“Jianyang Lide") approximately HK$174 extended for another
million) 9 months from the
maturity date
(Note (1))
“T-RE BEUEEFERAR  AKH145,000,0007 5% ~EA ARH -
RAZH (BGE]) (18 747174,000,000 (MRZZ—7"% 90,000,000 (Hiat)
BT T—-ANE BIHAE
HnEA
(Kizt()
22 August 2016 Putian Sanfeng Footwear  RMB140 million 5% 9 months RMB140 -
Company Limited* (equivalent to million (Note (ii))
("Putian Sanfeng") approximately HK$162
million)
“E-RF BEH-Z8XERAF  AKE140,000,0007 5% NER ARE -
NAZtZH ( [(EE=2]) (17 1 47162,000,000 140,000,0007C (Hit(i)
BT

* For identification purpose only

* EHBEE
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TEEEN®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ES - E-ERE )

Significant events (continued) BEREHE(#A)
(iij) Provision of financial assistance (continued) (i) IBEGHEEZEE (&)
Note: B &t -

(iii)

1 8 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

(i) On 9 November 2016, Fujian Sinco and Jianyang Lide
entered into a supplemental agreement, pursuant to
which Fujian Sinco and Jianyang Lide agreed that the
maturity date of the loan shall be extended for another
9 months from the maturity date and other terms of the
loan agreement remain unchanged. The outstanding
principal amount of the loan together with the accrued
interest at maturity were fully repaid by Jianyang Lide
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

(i) The principal amount of the loan together with the
accrued interest at maturity were fully repaid by Putain
Sanfeng in May 2017.

Investment in coal bed methane project via
subscription of exchangeable bonds in Sundo Gas
Limited

A letter of intent dated 24 August 2015 (“Letter of
Intent”) was entered into among the Company as
purchaser, the Shannan Tianyuan Investment Centre as
first vendor and Shannan Shengyuan Investment Centre
as second vendor (collectively, the “Vendors”) in respect
of the proposed acquisition of a part of or the entire
equity interests in Jiangsu Guosheng Hengtai Energy
Development Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu Guosheng”) (“Proposed
Acquisition”). Jiangsu Guosheng is principally engaged
in the business of exploration and production of coalbed
methane and provision of related technical services
and consultation services. On 29 December 2015, the
Company has paid an earnest deposit in the sum of
HK$133,300,000 (“Earnest Deposit”), being the Hong
Kong dollars equivalent of RMB110,000,000, to the
Vendors pursuant to the Letter of Intent.

i) RZE-—R"E+—AhA T"&Ex
RHEEZG SRR S T W a8 - R U
BREAMEZGYRREERDH
FERNHBREHNAMEA mER
B KGR e T E - BEC
E-NF=ZA=1+—RLEFE KR
BEEENASERIHEAMNEE
mEBIEEHER-

(iy EXADEREHEEFER

N\ZE
—tFRABREAR-Z22HEE-

e |

(iii) #ZEBFEFESundo Gas Limited ] &

BREFUREREREH

ARBlI(ERBER) WERXRIEE
PL(EAE—BH)RILERRE
B (ERE-8H) (BBIE
AMEZKRBIHEREEERER
BRARAR (DI&#HEEK]) ZHH
KRB ([EFWEFE] )R
T-RAFNA-t+HWBTYERE
([BME]) ITHBEXEBHREHIEF
Ko A BT ROUA I 12 £ 4B B Al AR
BEZRARE R_Z—RF+=-A
ZHAE AREREBEERNEEAE
7 X A E 4 133,300,000 7T (38
E2]) HERAR®110,000,000
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M}EJELTHIE& *ﬁ'

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ESIE]-CRE )
Significant events (continued) BEREHE(#A)

(iii) Investment in coal bed methane project via (iii) #ZEBFEEESundo Gas Limited ] &5

subscription of exchangeable bonds in Sundo Gas
Limited (continued)

On 19 February, 2016 the Company as subscriber, Sundo
Gas Limited (“Sundo Gas”) as issuer and Mr. Zhong
Changming (“Mr. Zhong") entered into a subscription
agreement (“Subscription Agreement”), the Company
has conditionally agreed to subscribe the redeemable
exchangeable bonds in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$133,300,000 with 20% interest rate per annum
(the “Bonds"”) from Sundo Gas. The Bonds can exchange
for in aggregate up to a maximum of 123,934 shares
in UC Energy, which is a subsidiary of Sundo Gas, upon
the occurrence of an initial public offering and listing of
and permission to deal in shares of UC Energy on the
Stock Exchange or such other internationally recognized
investment exchange of the same or higher international
standing at the exchange price of approximately
US$138.76 per share in the capital of UC Energy,
representing 18.5% of the issued ordinary Shares of UC
Energy at the Subscription Agreement date.

UC Energy is an exempt company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands which is the sole shareholder of UC
Energy Technology Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong which in turn holds 100% equity interests
in United Coal Bed Methane (Nanjing) Development
Company Limited* (& EE R R)EREGRQAF),
a wholly-foreign owned enterprise established under
the laws of the PRC (collectively referred to as the
“UC Group”). The UC Group is principally engaged in
investment holding and through the variable interest
entity structure established for the purpose of controlling
the Dong Bao Neng Investment (Beijing) Ltd. (the “Dong
Bao Neng”)* (REgEEJLR)BEMR A A) and the
subsidiary of Dong Bao Neng (collectively referred to as
the “Dong Bao Neng Group”). Dong Bao Neng Group
are principally engaged in the business of exploration and
production of coalbed methane in the PRC. Dong Bao
Neng Group owns the Zhangzhi Block covers an area of
82.1 km2 and is located on the south eastern margin of
the Qinshui Basin in Zhangzhi City, Shanxi Province, the
PRC (the “Zhangzhi Coalbed Methane Project”).

*  For identification purposes only

BREFUREREREE (&)
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EEENWKR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) XBERE e

Significant events (continued) BEREHE(#A)

(iii) Investment in coal bed methane project via (iii) Z#B&EFESundo Gas Limited 7] 32

subscription of exchangeable bonds in Sundo Gas BREFURERERER (&)
Limited (continued)
In connection with the subscription for the Bonds, the MREEEMS  AEEDWHIAT
Group has received the following securities (the “bonds SHEEEHR ([EFE®RR])
securities”):

(a) the share charge created in favour of the Company (a) Sundo GasR —ZE—~F_ A
on 19 February 2016 by Sundo Gas in respect of + 7L H $200,6278%UC Energy
200,627 shares in UC Energy; FRDBI AR AR AR EALZ

R EHR

(b) the pledge of 90% equity interests in Jiangsu (b) T %k B0 EX90% &Y A% #EE 48 (B
Guosheng (Note); and #F) R

(c) a personal guarantee given by Mr. Zhong in favour () #BEAEUARARNRAIHAMER
of the Company. B fE A PR o

Note: Bt 7

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement dated 19 February WBEABHA-ZE—NEF-_A+HLB2ZRE

2016, a pledge of not less than 36.7% equity interests B L RBEIEER OB ST &R

in Jiangsu Guosheng shall be given by Shannan Tianyuan L3666 7%RELBHRFEELE BA

Investment Centre in favour of Fujian Sinco as security for the EE AR o NEE & KRS WRT & F %

Bonds. The Group has received a pledge of 90% equity interests 90% AR RE B # o

in Jiangsu Guosheng eventually.
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M}EJELTHIE& *ﬁ'

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ESIE]-CRE )
Significant events (continued) BEREHE(#A)

(iii) Investment in coal bed methane project via (iii) #ZEBFEEESundo Gas Limited ] &5

subscription of exchangeable bonds in Sundo Gas
Limited (continued)

The Company has decided not to proceed with the
Proposed Acquisition and the Vendors and the Company
mutually agreed to terminate the Letter of Intent. As a
result of the termination of the Letter of Intent, the Vendors
shall refund the Earnest Deposit in full to the Company.
The Company applied the refund of the Earnest Deposit
to subscribe the Bonds. Pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement, the long stop date for fulfilment of the
conditions precedent to the Subscription Agreement is 30
April 2016 (the “Long Stop Date”) (or such later date as
may be agreed by the Company and Sundo Gas in writing).
As certain conditions precedent could not be satisfied on or
before the Long Stop Date, the Company, Mr. Zhong and
Sundo Gas entered into a supplement agreement to extend
the Long Stop Date to 31 October 2016. On 13 October
2016, all the conditions of the Subscription Agreement have
been fulfilled pursuant to the terms and conditions therein
except the condition relating to a legal opinion issued by
the Company’s PRC counsel which has been waived by
the Company as a condition precedent to Completion.
The parties to the Subscription Agreement have agreed
that Sundo Gas and Mr. Zhong shall continue to procure
the satisfaction of the said condition as soon as possible
after and notwithstanding Completion. Completion of the
Subscription Agreement took place. Accordingly, the Bonds
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$133,300,000
have been issued to the Company. As at 31 March 2017,
the Bonds was classified as compound instruments and
designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

BREFUREREREE (&)
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TEEEN®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ES - E-ERE )
Significant events (continued) BEREHE(#A)

(iii) Investment in coal bed methane project via (iii) ZiBZHESundo Gas Limited 7] XX
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subscription of exchangeable bonds in Sundo Gas
Limited (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Zhangzhi
Coalbed Methane Project is still at the development
and trial production stage and yet to commence the
commercial production.

The Bonds had matured on 29 October 2017 and subject
to the mutual agreement of the Group and the issuer,
the maturity date may be extended. As at the reporting
date, the potential extension is under discussion between
the Group and the issuer and no agreement has been
reached.

After taking into account the latest progress in reaching
settlement of the bond with the bond issuer and the
guarantor, and the bond securities with supporting
information in respect of the estimated value of certain
of the bond securities, the directors concluded that there
is no recoverability issue of the bond at end of reporting
period.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Significant events (continued)

(iii) Investment in coal bed methane project via
subscription of exchangeable bonds in Sundo Gas
Limited (continued)

Further details are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 24 August 2015, 29 December 2015, 19
February 2016, 14 June 2016 and 13 October 2016.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, we predict stable growth for the Chinese
economy. The central government will stick to its policy
orientation that housing supply should regain its residential
purpose, with quicker efforts of studying and rolling out a
long-term effective mechanism to promote a healthy and
stable development of the industry. This will benefit the
industry’s mid to long-term development.

Benefiting from the rapid development of the northwestern
part of the PRC, Xian as the capital of Shaanxi province, will
play an important part in contributing to the economic growth
of the central-northwest region. Xian was designated to serve
"One Belt One Road” national strategies, and it has reemerged
as an important cultural, industrial and educational centre of
the central-northwest region. Fujian province, as the starting
point of the ancient Maritime Silk Road, also located at the
heart of the “One Belt One Road” initiative. This should help
to promote the new business opportunities and we anticipate
the economy in both Xian and Fujian will continue to generate
sustained growth. In the future, the Group will continue to
deepen its development projects in Shaanxi province and Fujian
province, and we will strategically expand our geographical
coverage, enhance our regional and provincial penetrations in
the PRC real estate market.

We will remain diversify in land acquisition channels and
proactively take up opportunities to expand the operating
scale for continuous development and lay the foundation for
persisted growth.

EEENWR DM

X ERE (e)

BEAXEE(£)

(iii) ZiBzZfESundo Gas Limited 7 X
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EEENWKR DM

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue is primarily generated from property
development, property leasing and property management
services, which contributed approximately 84.0%, 7.6% and
8.4% respectively of the revenue for the year ended 31 March
2018. The Group’s revenue increased by HK$410.1 million, or
137.8%, to HK$707.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2018 from HK$297.6million for the year ended 31 March
2017. This increase was primarily attributable to the increase
in revenue from sales of properties. The table below sets forth
the breakdown of the Group’s revenue by operating segment
as indicated:

For the year ended
31 March 2018

EEXENRKEE

W £

AEEW=TEREYERR WEHE
RYEEBRS  HhEBE_T—\F=
AZ+—BItFEZHRZFH84.0% 7.6%
K8.4% - AEBZWHZHBE_T—tF
—A=+—HItFE 297,600,000/ T i
51410,100,000/8 7Tk 137.8% =2 H E - &
—N\F=A=+—RHI1FE2707,700,000
BB MEERREEYFE WL M-
TREIIZEE DI E D 2 AN B =
A :

For the year ended
31 March 2017

(Restated)
HEe—_Z2—+F
BE-Z—N\F —A=Z+—BLFE
=A=+—HLEE (ZLEF)
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FET FET
Sales of properties MEHEE 594,250 84.0 198,315 66.7
Rental income HEWA 53,735 7.6 44,730 15.0
Property management and MEERENRAABEER KA 59,709 8.4 54,514 18.3
related fee income
707,694 100.0 297,559 100.0
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BEEEN®R DM

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Property development

EEXERMKEERE &)

MERR
BE-_ZE-N\F=A=+—RHLEE K
EE Y E WS N ZE 594,300,000 7T
(ZZF—+%:198,300,000/8 7T ) °

The Group’s revenue from sales of properties increased to
HK$594.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
HK$198.3 million).

TREREE—_E—-NE=A=+—H1It
FEZYFEHEE N

The table below summarises the revenue from sales of
properties for the year ended 31 March 2018:

Average price

persq.m  Percentage
Sales revenue GFA sold HK$/sq.m of total
Location Property projects Project type HK$'000 (sg.m) (Note) sales amount
BY K
EERE FHER
HEWSE HE Br/¥AK (HAHEER
& ESEYE! HEER (F#r) (FAK) (Kzt) Bk
Fuzhou City, Fujian Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu ~ Commercial/office 352,412 20,129 17,508 59.3%
Province, Plaza FSEVE VN
BREERMT BM=EEEES
Xian City, Shaanxi Qujiang Xiangsong
Province Fengdan e Xian Sandi
PR E LT BR=@ o fIEEA M
- Zone A of Phase 1 Residential 231,323 31,620 7,316 38.9%
-F1HAR F=x
Commercial 10,515 51 20,577 1.8%
Total #5t 594,250 52,260 11,371 100%
Note Wi &

The calculation of average price per sq.m is based on the sales
revenue after the deduction of business/value-added tax and other
surcharges/taxes.

REZAZERERAR
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EEENWKR DM

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Rental income and property management and related
fee income

Revenue for the year ended 31 March 2018 includes the rental
income and property management and related fee income in
amount aggregate to approximately HK$113.4 million (2017:
approximately HK$99.2 million), representing an increase of
approximately 14.3% compared with last year. Reason for the
increase mainly being the increase in occupancy rate during
the year.

Cost of properties sales

The Group's cost of properties sales increased to HK$354.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$208.3
million). The increase was primarily attributable to the increase
in the total GFA of properties delivered.

Change in fair value of investment properties

The Group recognised net fair value gain of approximately
HK$2.8 million on its investment properties for the year (2017:
net fair value loss of approximately HK$81.1 million).

Other net gains/(losses)

Other net gains for the year included unrealised fair
value gain on investments held for trading amounted to
approximately HK$21.0 million and net realised gain on
disposal of investments held for trading amounted to
approximately HK$0.6 million (2017: unrealised fair value loss
of approximately HK$52.4 million).

Other operating expenses

The Group’s other operating expenses for the year ended 31
March 2018 in the amount of approximately HK$91.3 million
(2017: HK$85.2 million) mainly included various administrative
and selling expenses. The reason for the increase in other
operating expenses was mainly due to the increase in selling
and marketing costs which mainly attributable from the
increase in sales of properties of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest expenses on bank borrowings,
amount due to a related company, bonds and notes payable.
The finance costs amounted to approximately HK$54.2
million (2017: HK$94.1 million) for the year, decreased by
approximately HK$39.9 million or 42.4% compared with last
year. The decrease in finance costs mainly due to the decrease
in interest on notes payable as the notes payable were early
redeemed in January 2017, 10-months interest expenses were
accounted for in the year ended 31 March 2017, while no
interest expenses were recognised during the year.

Income tax (expense)/credit

Income tax expense mainly comprises the PRC enterprise
income tax and land appreciation tax amounted to
approximately HK$91.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: income tax credit of approximately HK$10.3
million). The substantial increase was represented by the
provision of PRC enterprise income tax and land appreciation
tax which was mainly attributable to the sales of properties
recognised during the year.
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Investments held for trading BEEERE

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$°000

—E-NF T iF

FER FET

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, BB LITRAES HATE 125,745 130,663
at fair value

Debt securities listed in Hong Kong, BEALTMEBES KRAFE - 33,424
at fair value

125,745 164,087

The above equity and debt securities are classified as
investments held for trading as they have been acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the near term.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DM

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL EEXERMKEERE &)
REVIEW (continued)
Investments held for trading (continued) BEEERE (£)

The carrying amount of the investments held for trading
are equal to its fair values, which have been determined by
reference to the quoted market bid prices available on the
Stock Exchange. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group has recorded unrealised fair value gain on investments
held for trading of approximately HK$21.0 million and, net
realised gain on disposal of investments held for trading of
approximately HK$0.6 million (2017: unrealised fair value loss
of approximately HK$52.4 million).

As at 31 March 2018, the investments held for trading
represented an investment portfolio comprising 5 equity
securities (2017: 7 equity securities and 1 debt securities) listed
in Hong Kong. All of them are securities listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Except for those mentioned
below, there were no significant acquisitions or disposals of
the investments held for trading during the year.

The Group’s investments held for trading were represented as

BEEEREZERESREQATE EZ
EWMIFSTMISHEEE - B2\
ifﬂf‘f‘*ﬁﬂ:if NEBGRERHIE
BEERERER N FEWZE21,000,000
BLIRLERIEEEREZE#H KRG F
R 4)600,0008 L (ZE—tF : KEHAQ
T {& 58 952,400,000 7T ) ©

R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—H HEEEK
%‘7%&%%3/—\ @%5lﬁiﬁiﬁifﬁﬁﬁ$é 5

—tF 7TERAZFFKIEE
%) H2MHABIAERLETES - f%
Tt E SN ANFE B EE RWIE T
EREEERE -

AEBFEEERERRMOT

follows:
Unrealised
Realised fair ~fair value Dividend Percentage
value gain/  gain/(loss)  income for of total held- Percentage of
Percentage of  (loss) for the  for the year the year for-trading total assets of
shareholdings  year ended ended ended  Fairvalue investments the Group at
at 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March  at31March  at31 March 31 March
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
Bz gz
-\ ZR-)\F Bz RZB-NfF

ZR=t-B ZA=t-B  ZE-N\f ZAZT-B HIE-NE
W-B-NE [EEVER®  LEEZ ZA=t-B R-E-NE [{KkEE =A=1-A
ZR=t-8 RATEME ARRAYE  LEEY ZA=t-H RE  hARE
LREADY /(B8 W&/ (BB REKA ZOVE  BERAM BEERAM
Company name/(Stock code) Note % HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 % %
LAER/ (RARE) Wit % FET FET FET FET % %

Kingston Financial Group &M 22 BEEFRAT
Limited (1031) (1031) a 0.23% 1,658 31325 799 112,194 89.2% 1.5%
Others -0 b (1,013) (10,312) 17 13,551 10.8% 0.2%
645 21,013 86 15745 1000% 1.7%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Investments held for trading (continued)

Notes

(@ Kingston Financial Group Limited (“Kingston Financial”) is
principally engaged in the provision of a wide range of financial
services which include securities brokerage, underwriting
and placements, margin and initial public offering financing,
corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage and asset
management services. Kingston Financial also provides gaming
and hospitality services in Macau.

During the year, the Group has disposed of 6,838,000 shares in
Kingston Financial which led to a realised gain of approximately
HK$1,658,000.

(b)  None of these investments represented more than 1% of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 March 2018.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

On 13 October 2016, the Bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$133,300,000 have been issued to the
Company.

As at 31 March 2017 and 2018, the Bonds was compound
instruments and designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

The fair value of the Bonds as at 31 March 2018 was
determined by an independent professional valuer, Avista
Valuation Advisory Limited engaged by the Group which led
to a fair value loss of approximately HK$8.9 million recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the
year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: a fair value gain of
approximately HK$9.5 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recognised
interest income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$26.7 million (2017:
HK$26.7 million was recognised as interest income from
deposit for subscription of exchangeable bond and interest
income from financial assets at fair value).

Details of the Bonds are set out in the section headed
“Business Review” in this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DM

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Other receivables, deposits paid and prepayments

The Group's other receivables, deposits paid and prepayments
as at 31 March 2018 primarily comprised (i) deposits paid
and prepayments (ii) other receivables and (iii) other tax
recoverable.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group’s deposits paid and
prepayments amounted to approximately HK$1,017.9 million
and HK$54.9 million respectively. The increase was mainly
attributable from prepayments for the acquisitions of land use
rights.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group’s other receivables
amounted to approximately HK$11.8 million and HK$27.5
million respectively. As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s other
receivables includes interest receivable from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$11.0
million.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group’s other tax
recoverable amounted to approximately HK$42.9 million
and HK$5.8 million respectively. The increase in other tax
recoverable was due to an increase in pre-sales of properties,
resulting in a corresponding increase in value-added tax
recoverable.

Other payables deposits received and accruals

The Group's other payables, deposits received and accruals as
at 31 March 2018 and 2017 primarily comprised (i) accrued
commission on the sale of properties and (ii) rental deposits
received from tenants.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had bank borrowings of
approximately HK$1,230.1 million denominated in RMB (2017:
approximately HK$1,400.0 million denominated in RMB) and
other debts comprising bonds payable in total amount to
approximately HK$10.3 million (2017: HK$9.9 million). As at
31 March 2018 and 2017, all bank borrowings were secured.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$201.6 million (2017:
approximately HK$40.8 million) which were mainly
denominated in HK$ and RMB.

As at 31 March 2018, the gearing ratio for the Group was
approximately 26.6% (2017: 39.7%), calculated based on the
net debts (comprising bank borrowings and bonds payable less
cash and cash equivalent and investments held for trading) of
approximately HK$913.0 million (2017: HK$1,205.0 million)
over the total equity of approximately HK$3,436.1 million
(2017: HK$3,038.0 million). The debt ratio was approximately
52.4% (2017: approximately 32.7%), calculated as total
liabilities over total assets of the Group.

The Group's current available liquidity resources are sufficient
to meet its capital commitments. As at 31 March 2018,
the Group’s net current assets amounted to approximately
HK$839.3 million (2017: HK$454.2 million). The Group's
current ratio, being percentage of its current assets and its
current liabilities, amounted to 142.2% (2017: 139.0%)

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEN®R DM

CAPITAL STRUCTURE BAREE

The capital structure of the Group and fund raising activities HET—N\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE &K
during the year ended 31 March 2018 are summarised as EEMEARBREESZHBMLOT

follows:
(i) Issue of Warrant Shares of the Company (i) BITEXQATARREZRG
On 21 December 2015, the Company and Chance RZE—RHE+_A-_+—HB K
Talent Management Limited (“Chance Talent”) entered A Al B Chance Talent Management
into a warrants subscription agreement (the “Warrants Limited ([Chance Talent |)&] 272
Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which the fEEERE MR ([RREERE
Company has conditionally agreed to issue to Chance Wazl) B ARREIKEERER
Talent, and Chance Talent has conditionally agreed Chance Talent 17 & Chance Talent
to subscribe for the warrants of the Company (the BHEREREBARARNA)ZIREE ([
“Warrants”). Subsequently pursuant to a special RFEFE]) W B IBIBR-ZE—RF
resolution passed at the Company’s special general FA+HERTZAANTREERAS
meeting held on 10 May 2016, the Shareholders F@EBr —BEEIRAER REILE
approved the Warrants Subscription Agreement. On 23 R EERAEHZ- N TR Fh
May 2016, the Board of the Company announced that AZ+=B AXRAEELEM R
all the conditions precedent set out in the Warrants R W B R R TS 2 BT A S R
Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and the EEER METHELHRREZRED
issue of unlisted warrants has been completed in TR IE AR AE B R BB sk 2 G Tk Mg
accordance with the terms and conditions of the TERK o AR AR B REE0.0NB T
Warrants Subscription Agreement. The Company issued TR FERE T Chance Talent® RIER
the Warrants at a total subscription price of HK$0.01 to [ # 5% - Chance TalentA] R =& —+
Chance Talent, entitling Chance Talent to subscribe for in FH+ A+t HskZA (smAR
aggregate up to a maximum amount of HK$75,000,000 Al ESKIEHA & Chance TalentB B &
worth of warrant shares at the exercise price of HK$0.24 K-AR—_E—-NE+_A=-+MNH
per warrant share (the “Warrant Share”) on or before 2 B BITHEE SRR EEGD
27 December 2017, or, if the Company requests for (IR FEFERD]) 024 TRER
extension and Chance Talent agrees to such request, on % 48{875,000,00078 TT 2 R M HE 35 B
or before 24 December 2018. Upon full exercise of the o RBITE RN E 2 RIEE
subscription rights attaching to the Warrants, a total of 1% » & $£312,500,000 8% 3R A% 1 & A% 19
312,500,000 Warrant Shares will be allotted and issued EGERL 2 31T T RIRRERIT B A -

to the warrantholder.

On 24 January 2017, Chance Talent and Kong Lingling, MNZE—+tF—A=Z+WH - Chance
an independent third party of the Group entered into TalentlB A E BB E = LIKKE
the warrant purchase agreement, pursuant to which R EFE B Bk Chance
the Chance Talent intends to sell and Kong Lingling Talent#t & - R FLIB K HEE B R
intends to purchase the Warrants at a consideration of #F - R{B AB#%4,700,0007 7T - SR A 4
approximately HK$4.7 million. The sale and purchase of BHrzEEN - ZE—+F— A —-+mMAH
the Warrants completed on 24 January 2017. STRK °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

0]

(i)

Issue of Warrant Shares of the Company (continued)

On 19 December 2017, Beyond Steady Limited (the
“Beyond Steady”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited,
and Kong Lingling, entered into a warrant transfer
agreement, pursuant to which Kong Lingling intended
to sell and Beyond Steady intended to purchase the
Warrants at a consideration of approximately HK$18.8
million. The sale and purchase of the Warrants completed
on 19 December 2017. On 22 December 2017, Beyond
Steady subscribed for HK$75,000,000 worth of Warrant
Shares at the exercise price of HK$0.24 per share
and a total of 312,500,000 shares were allotted and
issued to the Beyond Steady, raising gross proceeds
of approximately HK$75,000,000. The Group intends
to apply the net proceeds for general working capital,
capital expenditures and future investments.

As at 31 March 2018, approximately HK$5 million has
been utilised as general working capital.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 21 December 2015, 10 May 2016, 23
May 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 15
April 2016 respectively.

Bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had bank borrowings of
approximately HK$1,230.1 million (2017: approximately
HK$1,400.0 million), of which approximately HK$184.6
million are repayable within one year and the remaining
HK$1,045.5 million are repayable beyond one year. The
Group’s bank borrowings bears interest rates ranging
from approximately 5.7% to 8.5% per annum. All the
bank borrowings were denominated in RMB.
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TEEEN®R DM

CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

(i)

(iii)

34 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

Bank borrowings (continued)

At 31 March 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings
were secured by the Group’s investment properties
with carrying amount of approximately HK$3,953.0
million (2017: approximately HK$3,551.7 million);
rental proceeds over the investment property; Group’s
properties under development with carrying amount of
approximately HK$358.2 million (2017: approximately
HK$305.7 million); Group's properties under development
for sale and properties held for sale with carrying
amount of approximately HK$1,249.2 million (2017:
approximately HK$1,045.0 million), entire ordinary
shares of a subsidiary of the Company; corporate
guarantees for the bank loan with principal amount of
approximately HK$814.9 million (2017: approximately
HK$795.2 million) executed by the Company; corporate
guarantees for the bank loan with principal amount of
approximately HK$287.3 million executed by Fuzhou
Gaojia, which is beneficially owned by Mr. Guo lJiadi,
director of the Company (2017: HK$418.4 million
executed by a subsidiary and Fuzhou Gaojia); corporate
guarantees for the bank loan with principal amount of
approximately HK$127.9 million (2017: approximately
HK$186.4 million) executed by Fuzhou Gaojia, which
is beneficially owned by Mr. Guo Jiadi, director of the
Company and Guo Shi Investment Group Co. Limited,
which is ultimately owed as to approximately 95% by
Mr. Guo Jiadi, director of the Company; and personal
guarantees for the bank loan with principal amount of
approximately HK$1,230.1 million (2017: approximately
HK$1,400.0 million) executed by Mr. Guo Jiadi, a director
of the Company, and Ms. Shen Bizhen, the spouse of Mr.
Guo Jiadi.

Bonds payable

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Company had a
4-year 7% coupon bonds with principal amount to
HK$11 million (the “7% Coupon Bonds”) to certain
independent third parties. The 7% Coupon Bonds are
denominated in HK$. Interest is payable semiannually and
the principal will be repaid when the 7% Coupon Bonds
fall due on 23 July 2019. There is no early redemption
of the 7% Coupon Bonds neither by the Company nor
the 7% Coupon Bonds holders during the year ended 31
March 2018.

For details, please refer to announcements of the
Company dated 28 April 2015 and 22 July 2015.
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(i)

(iii)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As set forth in the section headed “Business Review Significant
events during the year (i) Completion of major acquisitions” in
this report, each of the Fujian Jingdu and the Xian Sandi has
become a non wholly owned subsidiary of the Company as a
result of the completion of Fujian and Xian Acquisitions.

The Directors are reasonably optimistic about the prospects
of such investment in view of the prospects of the property
market in the Mainland China. For more details of Fujian and
Xian Acquisitions, please refer to the related announcement of
the Company dated 15 December 2016 and 19 June 2017 and
the circular dated 16 March 2017.

Except for the above, there were no other material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the period, nor was there any plan authorised by the
Board for other material investments or additions of capital
assets at the date of this report.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE EQUITY
FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

The use of the net proceeds from the equity fund raising
activities during the year ended 31 March 2018 are
summarised as follows:

(a) Rights issue of 1,648,924,892 new Shares under
special mandate

The rights issue was completed on 3 February 2016 and
net proceeds of approximately HK$323 million were
raised from the right issue (“Rights Issue Proceeds”).
As disclosed in the Circular of the Company dated 13
January 2016, in relation to, among other things, the
proposed use of the Rights Issue Proceeds was for (i)
approximately 70% or HK$226.1 million thereof for
acquiring State owned land use right(s) and financing
potential residential or commercial properties property
development project(s) in Shanghai (“Property
Development & Investments”); (ii) approximately 20% or
HK$64.6 million for repayment of the debts of the Group
principally consisted of bank loans; and (iii) approximately
10% or HK$32.3 million for the general working capital
of the Group.

EEENWR DM

EARBERLENBEAR  BELQ
ARGETEUREARERE
REENRRE S

MARE [EBOBE-ANFEAZERSE
HOTREBKESIE] —EE BER
WERAZ-—HBEERBEEZRBEEAMALR
WHEEETKMAAEARFZIFEEENE

NEIR

ERNPEAMEMEMSNATR  ESE
ERENAISEELE -EHEERKE
FEMATKBEENEZHE F2H
ARAIBHA-_Z—X"F+-_A+HAXK
—E—t+FARNATNHZEERASAKA
HAE—_T—+F=A+/Bz@K-

B bt EIN RFREILEEMBBAYWE L
HEMBAR BERARRAZELE  NA
BEBMNMEBEETGRELMERKRER
BINEAREEMNTMEE -

BAKETBMEREFEZA
=
BE_T\F=ZA=t+-BIFEZK
AEAFDFEREFERRERMT

(a) RIE4FHIIRHE1,648,924,892 % ¥ ik
7 2 iR
HER_ZZFT-—NF-_A=ZHEKX
FEHBREEMNGSREFEY
323,000,000 T ([ PT1E R
H]) -MMARBBHA-ZT—XF
—At+T=ZRAZBRHFAEEZE RNEE
B(EreFE) ]G RIERER
% A1)870%3£226,100,000% 7T 4t
BEELIMFERAERE ESEBEERE
EXEAUECMEERBERE
((MEZFERREE])  ()4920%3k
64,600,000/8 T B{EEE AR EEETH
(FZERRFBRITER)  K(i)8I10%
532,300,000/ T B EAREE — K&
BEE -

HEZAZERARAR

2017/185F & 3 5



Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEN®R DM

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE EQUITY
FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

3 6 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

Rights issue of 1,648,924,892 new Shares under
special mandate (continued)

Pending utilization of the net proceeds previously
allocated to Property Development & Investments, rather
than depositing the funds into bank accounts at very
low interest rates, the Company considered that it would
be in the best interest of the Group without materially
impairing its financial capabilities to utilise such funds by
providing financial assistance to persons who are willing
to pay reasonable interest to the Group. As disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 22 August
2016, the Company changed the use of such part of the
Rights Issue Proceeds as provision financial assistance to
earn interest income subject to a maximum amount of
approximately HK$162 million.

As the Group has funding needs to finance the Fujian
Acquisition, the Group shall apply part of the Rights Issue
Proceeds to satisfy the cash component of the Fujian
Acquisition. Further details of the Fujian Acquisition are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 15
December 2016 and circular dated 16 March 2017.

As at 31 March 2018, approximately HK$64.6 million of
the Rights Issue Proceeds had been utilised to repay bank
loans; approximately HK$32.3 million had been utilised as
general working capital of the Group; and approximately
HK$226.1 million had been utilised to satisfy part of the
cash consideration of Fujian Acquisition.

Issue of Warrant Shares of the Company

On 19 December 2017, a total of 312,500,000
shares were allotted and issued to the Beyond Steady
Limited, the warrant holder, raising gross proceeds of
approximately HK$75,000,000. The Group intends to
apply the net proceeds for general working capital,
capital expenditures and future investments.

As at 31 March 2018, approximately HK$5.0 million has
been utilised as general working capital.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the following
events took place:

On 24 April 2018, the Company granted a total of 59,700,000
share options at the exercise price of HK$0.420 per share
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
16 September 2011, the details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 April 2018.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s investment properties
with respective fair value of approximately HK$3,953.0
million (2017: approximately HK$3,551.7 million), the
Group’s properties under development with carrying amount
of approximately HK$358.2 million (2017: approximately
HK$305.7 million) and the Group's properties under
development for sale and properties held for sale with
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,249.2 million (2017:
approximately HK$1,045.0 million) were pledged to secure the
Group’s bank borrowings.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has commitments in
respect of investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$299.8 million (2017: HK$270.6 million), properties under
development for sale amounted to approximately HK$376.4
million (2017: HK$328.3 million) and properties under
development amounted to approximately HK$547.1 million
(2017:HK$507.2 million).
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EEENWKR DM

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the business operations in the PRC
and Hong Kong denominated in RMB and HK$ respectively.
The functional currency of the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries which operate in Hong Kong as investment
holding companies or companies providing corporate services
to other group entities is HK$. The functional currency of the
Company’s principal operating subsidiaries in the PRC is RMB.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign currencies
and conversion of the RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government. As at 31 March 2018, the Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of its
foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group will closely
monitor its foreign currency exposure and will consider using
hedging instruments in respect of significant foreign currency
exposure as and when appropriate. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group had no investment in any financial derivatives, foreign
exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps, hedging or
other financial arrangements for hedging purposes to reduce
any currency risk nor made any over-the-counter contingent
forward transactions.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group employed a total of
approximately 84 employees (2017: 88) of which 81 employees
(2017: 85) were hired in the PRC and 3 (2017: 3) employees
in Hong Kong. Total remuneration paid to the employees for
the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$17.1 million (2017: HK$13.9 million). In addition to
competitive remuneration package offered to the employees,
other benefits included contributions to mandatory provident
fund, as well as group medical and accident insurance. On-
going training sessions were also conducted to enhance the
competitiveness of the Group’s human assets. The Company
also maintains a share option scheme, pursuant to which
share options may be granted to the Directors, executives and
employees of the Company to provide them with incentives in
the growth of the Group.

PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuation on the Group’s investment properties
located in the PRC as at 31 March 2018 had been carried
out by an independent qualified professional valuer, Asset
Appraisal Limited (31 March 2017: Chung Hin Appraisal
Limited). The property valuation was used in preparing
2017/2018 annual results. The valuation was based on direct
capitalisation approach by making reference to comparable
market information as available in the relevant markets. The
Group’s investment properties were valued at approximately
HK$3,953.0 million as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017:
approximately HK$3,551.7 million) a net fair value gain
of approximately HK$2.8 million (2017: a fair value loss
of approximately HK$81.1 million) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2018.
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TEERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date
of this report, the Company has complied with the code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) except for the deviations from the Code
Provision A.2.1, A.2.7, A.6.7 and the Rule 3.28 of the Listing
Rules. The Board is committed to complying with the CG Code
to the extent that the Directors consider it to be practical and
applicable to the Company.

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasis
an effective Board, sound internal control, appropriate
independence policy, transparency and accountability to the
shareholders of the Company. The Board will continue to
monitor and revise the Company's corporate governance
policies in order to ensure that such policies may meet the
general rules and standards required by the Listing Rules.
The Board believes that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for sustainable growth
of the Group and for safeguarding the interests and the
Group's assets. The Company had complied with the CG Code
throughout the period except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
should be segregated and not be exercised by the same
individual. The chairman is responsible for the corporate
strategic planning and formulation of corporate policies for
the Group, while the chief executive officer is responsible for
overseeing day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

Mr. Guo Jiadi currently serves as the chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”). No individual was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ") since the re-
designation of the ex-chief executive officer. The day-to-day
management of the Group’s business is monitored by the
executive Directors and senior management. Given the size
and that the Company’s and the Group’s current business
operations and administration have been stable, the Board
is justified that the current structure is able to effectively
discharge the duties of both positions. However, going
forward, the Board will review from time to time the need
to separate the roles of the Chairman and the CEO if the
situation warrants it.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Code Provision A.2.7

Code Provision A.2.7 of the CG Code stipulates that the
chairman should at least annually hold meetings with the
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors present.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, Mr. Guo lJiadi, the
Chairman did not held any meeting with the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the executive Directors present. The Company will
request the Chairman to hold a meeting with all non-executive
Directors without the present of executive Directors in order to
comply with the code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

Code Provision A.6.7

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that Code
provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that independent
non-executive Directors and other non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”).

Mr. Zheng Jinyun and Mr. Zheng Yurui, the independent non-
executive Directors, were unable to attend the special general
meeting and the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 7 April 2017 and 25 August 2017 respectively as they
had other important business engagement. The Company will
request all the independent non-executive Directors to attend
all future general meetings in order to comply with the code
provision A.6.7 of the CG Code.

Rule 3.28

According to Rule 8.17 of the Listing Rules, the Company must
appoint a company secretary who satisfies Rule 3.28 of the
Listing Rules. Mr. Chiu Ngam, Chris has been resigned from
the post as company secretary of the Company with effect
from 20 February 2017. On 28 April 2017, Ms. Chan Po Yu has
been appointed as the company secretary to fill the vacancy in
the office of company secretary occasioned by the resignation
of Mr. Chiu Ngam, Chris. Save that for the period from 20
February 2017 to 27 April 2017, the Company did not comply
with the requirement under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and,
hence, the relevant code provisions in respect of company
secretary.
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TEERBE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board’s primary responsibilities include the formulation of
long-term corporate strategies, policy decisions and overseeing
the management of the Group’s operations. In addition, the
Board evaluates the performance of the Group and assesses
the achievement of targets periodically set by the Board.
In carrying out its duties and projects, the Board delegates
certain specific considerations to designated board committees
and management task forces. The daily management,
administration and operations of the Company are delegated
to the CEO, executive Directors and senior management and
divisional heads. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the abovementioned officers. All Directors have
full and timely access to all relevant information in discharging
their duties, and in appropriate circumstances are normally
granted rights to seek independent professional advices at the
Company’s expense.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience for effective leadership and independence
in decision making. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprises 8 Directors, whose biographical details and their
relationships are set out in the “Biographical Details of the
Directors of the Company” on pages 63 to 70 of the Report
of the Directors. There are 3 executive Directors, namely Mr.
Guo Jiadi, Ms. Amika Lan E Guo and Mr. Wang Chao; a non-
executive Director, Dr. Wong Yun Kuen and 4 independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael,
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter, Ms. Ma Shujuan and Mr. Zheng Yurui.
The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of a sufficient
number of independent non- executive Directors and at
least one of the independent non- executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise throughout the year ended 31
March 2018. The Company has received annual confirmations
from all independent non- executive Directors that they did not
have any businesses or financial interests with the Group and
were independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION PLANNING
OF DIRECTORS

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing its
composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors;
and monitoring their succession. The Board's established
policies include procedures for the appointment of Directors
nominated by the Company’s shareholders. The existing Bye-
laws of the Company empower the Board to appoint any
person as Director either as an additional member or to fill a
casual vacancy.

The term of office for each of the executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors is 3 years. The existing
Bye-laws of the Company provide that at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every 3 years. A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retire may fill the vacated office.
In addition, all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional Director shall retire in the next annual general
meeting but eligible for re-election.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct in respect of the securities dealing by the
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiry of all
Directors in respect of the securities dealing by the Directors
and all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Company has established 3 Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, each of which is delegated with
specific roles and responsibilities by the Board. All the Board
committees follow the same principles and procedures as
those of the Board. The Board receives the minutes of each
committee on a regular basis, including their decision and
recommendations.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee of the Company presently comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter
Mr. Zheng Yurui

The Chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise and members of the Audit
Committee comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors. The primary responsibilities of the Audit
Committee include the followings:

(@ To review the Company's financial information
including annual report and half-yearly report and the
appropriateness of any significant financial reporting
judgments contained therein;

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors; and

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures. Further information is disclosed in the section
titled “Risk Management and Internal Controls” below.

The Company’s results for the year ended 31 March 2018
and interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2017 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee before the
submission to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, two meetings had
been held by the Audit Committee. Attendance of each
member at the Audit Committee meeting is set out in the
table under the section headed “Meeting Attendance” of this
report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Summary of work

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim
and annual results with the external auditors and its duties
in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written terms of
reference.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
for inspection on the Company's website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/
payable to Messrs. BDO Limited, the external auditor of the
Company, for the following services provided for the year
ended 31 March 2018.
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Remuneration
Paid/Payable

Nature of services RAEME B B
HK$000
FAET
Audit services FENZ R T 800
Non-audit services (note) IEEIZRTS (Hat) 714
1,514

Note: Non-audit services provided by BDO Limited for the year ended Kz : REEBYEEZSHMERAERA

31 March 2018 included agreed-upon procedures report on
the Group’s interim results and tax compliance services.

The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board
that the level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor is reasonable. There has been no major disagreement
between the external auditor and the management of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee.
The existing Nomination Committee comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zheng Yurui (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

The Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of Directors either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next annual
general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every 3 years and shall be eligible for re-
election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
suitable qualified candidates and making recommendations
to the Board for consideration. The process of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship includes the
consideration of referrals and the engagement of external
recruitment professionals. The selection criteria is based mainly
on the assessment of their professional qualifications and
experience relevant to the Company’s businesses.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2018. Attendance of each member at the
Nomination Committee meeting is set out in the table under
the section headed “Meeting Attendance” of this report.
Attendance of each member at the Nomination Committee
meeting is set out in the table under the section headed
“Meeting Attendance” of this report.

Summary of work

During the year, the Nomination Committee discussed and
made recommendation to the Board on the re-election
of retiring Directors in accordance with the Nomination
Committee’s written terms of reference.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available for inspection on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Summary of Board Diversity Policy, including
measureable objective, monitoring and review of the
Policy

The board diversity policy (the “Policy”) aims to set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board's
composition has been disclosed in the Report of the Directors.

Monitoring and review

The Nomination Committee has monitored the implementation
of the Policy and there is no derivation from this Policy for
the year ended 31 March 2018. The Nomination Committee
will keep on review this Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination Committee will
discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee.
The Remuneration Committee comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael
Mr. Zheng Yurui

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendation on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and senior management of
the Company, the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing such policy, and the review of
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management of the Company by reference to
corporate goals and objective resolved by the Board from time
to time. The Remuneration Committee will review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.

The principal elements of the executive Directors’ remuneration
package include basic salary, benefits in kind, discretionary
bonus, retirement benefits and participation in the share
option scheme adopted by the shareholders of the Company in
September 2011. The remuneration packages of the executive
Directors will be proposed by the Chairman of the Group
annually for the review by the Remuneration Committee based
on the following factors:

(@) the executive Director’s responsibilities and contribution;
(b) the executive Director’s individual performance; and

() performance of the business unit(s) headed by the
executive Director.

The independent non-executive Directors’ remuneration
includes Directors’ fee and participation in the share
option scheme, and subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration Committee. The term
of appointment of the independent non-executive Directors is
three years. Other detailed terms of appointment have been
disclosed in the Report of the Directors and the consolidated
financial statements. The Board's authority to fix Directors’
remuneration was granted by the Company’s shareholders at
the annual general meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during
the year ended 31 March 2018. Attendance of each member
at the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the
table under the section headed “Meeting Attendance” of this
report.

Summary of work

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
existing remuneration policy and structure of the Company
and the remuneration packages of the Directors; and made
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
executive Director and number of share options to be granted
to the executive Directors and management of the Group in
accordance with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms
of reference.

The term of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended
31 March 2018 are set out in the note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MEETING ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and as business
need arises. The Company’s memorandum of association and
the Articles provide for participation at meetings via telephone
and other electronic means. The Directors have full access to
information on the Group and independent professional advice
at all times whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 11 board meetings had
been held for reviewing business performance, considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company,
and other business matters. Attendance of each member at
the board meetings, board committee meetings and general
meetings of the Company, on a named basis, during the year
ended 31 March 2018 is set out in the table below.
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MEETING ATTENDANCE (continued) EREERR (@
Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings held during the Directors’ tenure of office

HWEEERY EENEHRETHERNY

Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings

HWZEE REZEE EHNZEE
Directors Bz £ EE EE EE REXE
Mr. Guo Jiadi kb 1111 NATER  NATER  NANER 072
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E Guo T nm NATER S NATER S NATER 22
Mr. Yan Pingfeng (Note i) RTELE (Hiti) 101 NATER NATER  NATER 02
Mr. Wang Chao (Note i) TREE (Hiti) 22 NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen BREET W NATER  NATER  NATHER 2
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter SBCEsE 1m 313 22 22 22
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael RETEE 111 33 22 22 22
Ms. Ma Shujuan (Note iii) BRB L (htii) 22 NATER NATER NATER  NATER
Mr. Zheng Jinyun (Note iv) BeER4 (Hitiv) 101 NATER NATER  NATER 02
Mr. Zheng Yurui BEREE 1111 33 212 212 072

Note i: Hfsti -

Mr. Yan Pingfeng resigned as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 5 February 2018.

BFEEEBHIARFTNTESE BT — N\
F_AAHEBEER-

Note ii:
Mr. Wang Chao has been appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 5 February 2018.

B i -
ITREADEZTAARARARNITES B -
—NE-_BRRB#EERK-

Note iii:
Ms. Ma Shujuan has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 5 February 2018.

B i
SRR T EEZE AR AR BUIENITES
BE-ZE—\F_ARBEEK-

Note iv:
Mr. Zheng Jinyun resigned as an independent non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 5 February 2018.

K ativ -
BeEAACBHEARTBIENTES A
T N\F_BAHRBEER-
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in the terms of reference
equivalent to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the
year, the policies of the corporate governance of the Company
were reviewed by the Board.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering
the liabilities of the Directors and officers that may arise out
the corporate activities which has been complied with the CG
Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or condition that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue in business. Accordingly, the
Board has prepared the financial statements of the Company
on a going concern basis. The Board also acknowledges its
responsibility to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in the Company’s annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators
as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

The above statements, which should be read in conjunction
with the independent auditor’s report set out from pages
92 to 98 of this annual report, are made with a view to
distinguishing for Shareholders how the responsibilities of
the Directors differ from those of the auditor in relation
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Having
made appropriate enquiries and examined major areas
which could give rise to significant financial exposures, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018, the Directors considered the Group has applied
appropriate accounting policies consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable in accordance
with applicable accounting standards. The interim and annual
results and reports were published within the time limits as
required under the Listing Rules after the end of the relevant
periods to provide stakeholders with transparent and timely
financial information.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of Director's responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for Directors will be
arranged at the expenses of the Company where necessary.
From 1 April 2017 to the year ended 31 March 2018, each
of the Directors has participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars and/or studying materials
relevant to Director's duties and responsibility. Their training
records have been provided to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office
functions.

The Group has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office
functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

All divisions/departments conducted internal control
assessment regularly to identify risks that potentially impact
the business of the Group and various aspects including key
operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance
and information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted
annually to confirm that control policies are properly complied
with by each division/department.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group engaged
an independent accounting firm for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control systems. Key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls are examined and the
independent accounting firm provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed
the risk management and internal control systems, including
the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the
year ended 31 March 2018, and considered that such systems
are effective and adequate. The annual review also covered
the financial reporting and internal audit function and staff
qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

With reference to the Internal Audit Manual of the Group, the
Group’s internal audit function has been established to provide
risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight to the
Board through the Audit Committee. The risk management
and internal control systems are reviewed and assessed on
an on-going basis by the Audit Committee and the executive
Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at least
once each year by the Board. These systems were considered
effective and adequate.

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls
for handling and dissemination of inside information. Since
shares of the Company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, the Company has adopted a policy which aims
to set out guidelines to the Group’s directors, officers and
all relevant employees to ensure inside information of the
Company is to be disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner in accordance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
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TEERBE

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and the
Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted.
He/she is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is
fully appraised of the relevant legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and facilitating the induction and professional development of
Directors.

Mr. Chiu Ngam, Chris resigned as the Company Secretary with
effect from 20 February 2017. On 28 April 2017, Ms. Chan
Po Yu (“Ms. Chan”) has been appointed as the Company
Secretary.

During the year under review, Ms. Chan has attended relevant
professional seminars to update her skills and knowledge. She
met the training requirement set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

() How Shareholders Can Convene A Special General
Meeting And Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene a
special general meeting, and special general meetings
shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by
the Companies Act, and, if default, may be convened
by the requisitionists. On the requisition of members
of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, the Directors forthwith proceed duly
to convene a special general meeting of the Company.
If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

() Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the

Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company
either by email at info@chinasandi.com.hk or by post to
the Company’s Hong Kong head office at Unit 3309, 33/
F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also make
enquiries with the Board directly at the general meetings.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company recognises the importance of the
communication with shareholders. In order to maintain and
further enhance the investors’ relationship with the Company’s
shareholders, the Company established various channels of
communication with its shareholders:

(1

The annual general meeting provides a platform for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
members of the Board and external auditors will attend
the meeting. The Group encourages all shareholders to
attend and raise any comment on the performance of the
Group. The Board welcomes to exchange views with its
shareholders at the meeting.

The Company has regularly met with financial analysts,
fund managers and potential investors during year ended
31 March 2018, in order to enhance the understanding
the Group’s operations and developments.

Information relating to the Company’s financial
information is provided through publications of annual/
interim reports, announcements, circulars and press
release.

The Company has established a corporate website
which provides regularly updated Company financial
information and other corporate information.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no change in
the Company’s constitutional documents.
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EEEHESE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the "Directors”) herein
submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the performance of the Group’s by operating
segments for the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out in note
10 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018
and the financial performance of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 99 to 224.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND COMMENTARY

Financial Results

The financial results and business review of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the annual report
and particular on the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” from pages 6 to 39.

Environmental measure and performance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate
social governance essential for creating a framework for
motivating staff, and contributes to the community in which
we conduct our businesses and creating a sustainable return to
the Group.

Detail of which are disclosed in our Environmental, Social and
Governance report, which will be issued separately by the
Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable of relevant
laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its
immediate and long-term goals. We enjoy good relationships
with suppliers and customers with mutual trust. Accordingly,
our management have kept good communications, promptly
exchanged ideas and shares business update with them when
appropriate. During the year ended 31 March 2018, there
were no material and significant dispute between the Group
and its suppliers and/or customers.

Employees are the valuable assets of the Group. The Group
strives to motivate its employees with a clear career path
and improvement of their skills by encouraging them to take
part in external training courses, professional seminars and
examinations and support them by sponsoring. The Group put
efforts into providing staff with a harmonious, positive and
inspiring working environment. The Group always adheres
to its people-oriented concept, values and maintains their
employees’ legitimate rights and interests.

By providing employees with a good working environment
and competitive trainings, employees’ productivities and their
performances are greatly improved.
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EEEHESE

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial conditions, results of operations,
businesses prospects would be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our
Group’s businesses which including business risk, policy and
market risk, operational risk and financial management risk.

Business Risk

Performance of our Group’'s core business will be affected
by various factors, including but not limited to economic
conditions such as performance of property markets in regions,
which would not be mitigated even with careful and prudent
investment strategy and strict procedure.

Policy and Market Risk

As a key economic pillars industry for the PRC’s development,
the property sector is more susceptible to the impact of macro-
economic and industrial policies. Our Group's performance
may be adversely affected by changes of the political, social
and economic conditions in the PRC if we are unable to
respond to the ever-changing market condition in a timely
manner.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Responsibility for managing operational
risk basically rests with every function at divisional and
departmental levels. Key functions in our Group are guided
by their standard operating procedures, limit of authority and
reporting framework. Our management will identify and assess
key operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk
response can be taken.

Financial management risk

The main financial management risk and the Group’s
financial management measures are shown in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in
the future.
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EEEgREE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION R EREE

A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities — ANEBESFAEAMBNEENGAEERE
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five E -BENIEEERERSNE (HBiae 7%
financial years, as extracted from the published audited KEZZEUBHREREEY (ER) )&
consolidated financial statements and restated as appropriate, FIEAT o

is set out below.

Results e

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1-HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)

ZE-\F —E—tF —E-RF —T-hF —T-NF
FET FAEL FAET FAT FET

(4= E 7))
REVENUE U 5 707,694 297,559 109,750 132,964 130,838
PROFIT/LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ARNAVHERANEEAFE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS wFl/ (B8)
OF THE COMPANY 156,326 (169,389) 161,076 (266,506)  (439,261)
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EEEHESE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION BEERME &)
(continued)
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interest EE BERIERES
As at 31 March
R=ZA=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)

“E2-N\FE —T—+F TR ZT-hF —T-MOF

FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
(K E5) (& Z7)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FnBEE 4,409,889 4,355,726 4,788,386 3,990,495 4,313,501
CURRENT ASSETS mBEE 2,826,471 1,619,357 1,200,860 314,956 704,686
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 7,236,360 5,975,083 5,989,246 4,305,451 5,018,187
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBEE 1,987,144 1,165,133 1,057,233 228,043 140,318
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ENEIN=N 1,813,123 1,771,946 1,593,617 1,356,919 1,863,974
TOTAL LIABILITIES BaE 3,800,267 2,937,079 2,650,850 1,584,962 2,004,292
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST ~ JFiEfifEs 38,485 31,654 39,763 27,673 26,470
NET ASSETS BEEFME 3,436,093 3,038,004 333839 2,720,489 3,013,895
Notes: Fff &t -

1. The consolidated results of the Group for the years ended 1. AEEEE-_T—NOF —T-—AFRK=

31 March 2014, 2015 and 2016 were extracted from the E-RNFZA=1+t—"HIEFENGEEE
Company’s 2014, 2015 and 2016 annual reports respectively, E DB AR E—NF =
while those for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 were T—RHFR_TE—R"EFEEFHR MEBE=-F
prepared based on the consolidated statement of profit or loss —N\FERZE—+tF=ZA=+—HLFE
and other comprehensive income as set out on page 99 of the AR A EE D ENGR A VB HREREIEFT
consolidated financial statements. BircEmkEMEEREE -

2. The consolidated assets, total liabilities and non-controlling 2. AREBR-_ZE—NER-_Z—HEFE=AH

interests of the Group as at 31 March 2014 and 2015 were =+t HBHEREEE BEATERIFER
extracted from the Company's 2014 and 2015 annual reports BEIHBEEARRHN - —NOFR
respectively, while those as at 31 March 2018, 2017 and 2016 —E-RAFEFER MRZZE-N\F =F
were prepared based on the consolidated statement of financial —tFRERZE-A"F=A=+—HM&EE
position as set out on pages 100 and 101 of the consolidated BE BABEABELRIFERERS DERGS
financial statements. B3R R £ 100101 B AT H 4R A B IS Ak
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended 31 March 2018 and subsequent thereto are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company’s share options during
the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BONDS PAYABLE

Details of movements in the Company’s bonds payable during
the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
102 of this annual report and in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution amounted
to approximately HK$1,324,235,000 as at 31 March 2018 (31
March 2017: approximately HK$1,344,195,000).
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EEEHESE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the vyear, less than 10% of the Group's sale were
attributable to the Group's largest customer and five largest
customers respectively.

In addition, during the year, less than 40% of the Group’s
purchases were attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

None of the Directors, any of their close associates or any
substantial shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers during the year.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group did not
made charitable contributions.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guo Jiadi (Chairman)

Ms. Amika Lan E Guo

Mr. Yan Pingfeng (Resigned on 5 February 2018)
Mr. Wang Chao (Appointed on 5 February 2018)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

Mr. Zheng Jinyun (Resigned on 5 February 2018)
Ms. Ma Shujuan (Appointed on 5 February 2018)
Mr. Zheng Yurui

In accordance with the Bye-laws 111(A) and 111(B) of the Bye-
laws of the Company, Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael, Mr. Yu
Pak Yan, Peter and Mr. Zheng Yurui shall retire from office by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the "AGM").
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the Bye-laws 115 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Wang Chao and Ms. Ma Shujuan, being the
newly appointed Directors, shall retire from office by rotation
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”), aged 59, is a merchant and was
appointed as the Chairman and an executive Director of the
Company with effect from 12 December 2014. Mr. Guo is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, incorporated
in Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI")
respectively engaged in investment holding and also a director
and legal representative of certain operating subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC. Mr. Guo is also an ultimate beneficial
owner of a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Guo started his business in international trading and,
in 23 years, diversified into businesses including footwear
manufacturing, chemical technology, mining, real estate
development and hotel investment with presence throughout
Europe, the United States, Hong Kong, Shanghai, Fujian,
Shaanxi and Jilin. Mr. Guo has over 28 years of experience in
trading business and over 18 years of experience in property
development.

Mr. Guo entered into the property market in the PRC by
establishing Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
("Fuzhou Gaojia”) and has since acted as its chairman. Fuzhou
Gaojia has obtained FEARANMBEFHERBELXEZ
FEZ(EH) (Qualification Certificate (Class 1) for Real Estate
Development Enterprise in the PRC*) from A A R HEHE
1+ 5= i 2B 2 2% 28 (Department of Housing and Urban and
Rural Development of the PRC*). Fuzhou Gaojia has completed
certain real estate projects in Fuzhou, Putian, Baoji and
Shanghai.

Mr. Guo is the father of Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, who is an
executive Director of the Company. Apart from the aforesaid,
Mr. Guo does not have any other relationship with any
Director, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholder(s) of the Company.

* For identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Amika Lan E Guo (“Ms Guo”), aged 32, has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Company with effect
from 9 July 2014. Ms. Guo is responsible for the overall business
development of the company. Her current position is the Director
of Business Operations and is responsible for general operation
management, corporate development and planning matters. Ms.
Guo has graduated from Simon Fraser University in Canada with a
bachelor degree of Business Administration. She also holds a MBA
degree from The University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Guo is the daughter of Mr. Guo Jiadi, who is the Chairman
and an executive Director and the ultimate beneficial owner of a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
Ms. Guo does not have any other relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of
the Company.

Mr. Yan Pingfeng (“Mr. Yan"), aged 37, has been appointed
as an executive Director of the Company with effect from 15
September 2016. Mr. Yan holds a bachelor’s degree of Economics
from the Jimei University* (5832 KE2), the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"). Mr. Yan also holds a Certificate of Accounting
Profession* (Z it #EEE K FEZE) issued by the Ministry of
Finance People’s Republic of China. Mr. Yan has more than 12
years of experience in accounting, financing, operational and risk
management in property development industries.

Mr. Yan held various managerial positions in companies
specialised in property development industries prior to the joining
of the Group. Prior to 1 January 2018, Mr. Yan was the general
manager of the Fujian Sinco Industrial Co., Ltd., (“Fujian Sinco”)
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Yan
was also be responsible for the overall operation for the various
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC.

Mr. Yan does not have any relationship with any Director, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of the

Company.

Mr. Yan resigned as an executive Director on 5 February 2018.

* For identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wang Chao (“Mr. Wang”), aged 41, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 5 February
2018. Mr. Wang hold a bachelor’s degree of Laws from the
Xiamen University* (EFJKE). Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in companies that specialised in property development
industries for over ten years. Mr. Wang is the general manager
of Fujian Sinco since 1 January 2018 and responsible for the
overall operation for the various subsidiaries of the Group in
the PRC.

Mr. Wang does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of
the Company.

Non-Executive Director

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (“Dr. Wong"”), aged 60, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 September
2009. Dr. Wong Yun Kuen has been re-designated from
independent non-executive Director to non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 15 September 2016.

* For identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Non-Executive Director (continued)

Dr. Wong received a Ph.D. Degree from Harvard University,
and was “Distinguished Visiting Scholar” at Wharton School
of the University of Pennsylvania. He has worked in financial
industries in the United States and Hong Kong for many
years, and has considerable experience in corporate finance,
investment and derivative products. He is a member of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Dr. Wong is the chairman and an executive director of UBA
Investments Limited (stock code: 768) and Far East Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 36), an executive director
of Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Ngai Shun Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1246), and an
independent non-executive director of Kingston Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 1031), DeTai New Energy Group
Limited(stock code: 559), Kaisun Energy Group Limited
(stock code: 8203), GT Group Holdings Limited(stock code:
263), Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (stock code:
3823) and Synergis Holdings Limited (stock code: 2340). Dr.
Wong was also an independent non-executive director of
Bauhaus International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 483)
from October 2004 to December 2016, Huge China Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Harmony Asset Limited) (stock
code: 428) from September 2004 to January 2015, Kong
Sun Holdings Limited (stock code: 295) from April 2007 to
November 2014, Huajun Holdings Limited (stock code: 377)
from October 2010 to September 2014 and KuangChi Science
Limited (stock code: 439) from June 2007 to August 2014,
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 444) from
September 2012 to December 2017 and Far East Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 36) from December 2014 to
July 2017. All the companies mentioned above are listed on
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Dr. Wong does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of
the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael, aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 9 July
2014. Mr. Chan was also appointed as the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chan
holds a bachelor degree of Business Administration (Honours)
in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a member with practicing certificate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has
over 10 years of working experience in the fields of accounting
and audit, corporate secretarial management and corporate
governance.

He is currently the company secretary of China Sunshine Paper
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2002), which is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, as well as Northeast
Electric Development Co., Limited (stock code: 42), a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the PRC and listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange respectively. Mr. Chan acted as the company
secretary of Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited (formerly
known as “Birmingham International Holdings Limited”) (Stock
Code: 2309) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange from June 2015 to October 2016.

He was also an independent non-executive director of
China Gem Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Yueshou
Environmental Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 1191) from 7
October 2013 to 17 July 2014. Mr. Chan has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director for three companies,
namely China Wah Yan Healthcare Limited (stock code: 648)
since 15 July 2014, New Wisdom Holding Company Limited
(formerly known as “Epicurean and Company, Limited”)
(stock code: 8213) since 8 November 2016, and Prosper One
International Holdings Company Limited (formerly known
as “Tic Tac International Holdings Company Limited”) (stock
code: 1470) since 20 September 2017.

Mr. Chan is the director of MCI CPA Limited. Mr. Chan
does not have any relationship with any Director, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (“Mr. Yu"), aged 67, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 31 December
2010. Mr. Yu was also appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Yu has over 30 years of experience in real estate and
financial services industries. Mr. Yu holds a Master of Science
Degree in Financial Services from American College in
Pennsylvania, USA.

Mr. Yu is currently an independent non-executive director of
Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited (stock code: 2322).
He was an executive director and the chairman of Kong Sun
Holdings Limited (stock code: 295) from 1 August 2008 to 1
September 2014 and executive director of Far East Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 36) from 12 November 2014
to 31 October 2017. Mr. Yu was also an independent non
executive director of Kingston Financial Group Limited (stock
code: 1031) from September 2008 to September 2016 and
GET Holdings Limited (stock code: 8100) from 30 July 2010 to
29 January 2014.

Mr. Yu does not have any relationship with any Director, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Zheng Jinyun (“Mr. JY Zheng”), aged 55, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 11 April 2012.
Mr. JY Zheng completed the China CEO Management
Innovation Executive Program with the relevant certificate
of Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 2003 and completed the
CEO Innovation Executive Program (2% & A& FHE BL) with the
relevant certificate of Fudan University in 2005. Mr. JY Zheng
has commenced his own international trading business since
1978 and expanded his business to the global market. Mr. JY
Zheng started to expand his business to the development and
management of residential and commercial properties in 2006.
Mr. JY Zheng is the committee member of the current Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Fujian Province
(lBEEARBUEHEEHEZE) and the honorable citizen of
Putian City FHMEEMR).

Mr. JY Zheng does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of
the Company.

Mr. JY Zheng resigned as an independent non-executive
Director on 5 February 2018.

Mr. Zheng Yurui (“Mr. YR Zheng"), aged 63, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 11 April 2012.
Mr. YR Zheng graduated from Party School of Central
Committee of C.P.C. with undergraduate diploma in 1999,
majoring in administration and he is a senior economist.
From 1971 to 1998, Mr. YR Zheng worked in several state-
owned companies and private companies including a factory
in which he acted as a deputy general manager. From 1998
to the present, Mr. YR Zheng founded his own footwear
manufacturing company, acting the chairman. From 2008
to the present, Mr. YR Zheng has served as a director of a
property development company concurrently. Mr. YR Zheng is
the representative of the Tenth and Eleventh People’s Congress
of Fujian Province BEZEF TE FT - EARREZARS)
and the representative of the Fourth, the Fifth, and the Sixth
People’s Congress of Putian City (BEHMEHMN/E - EHE - F <
EARKREZRKRS).

Mr. YR Zheng does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of
the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Ma Shujuan (“Ms. Ma"), aged 34, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 5 February 2018. Ms.
Ma graduated from China University of Political Science and
Laws* (FBIBUEARZ) in 2007 with a Bachelor's degree in
Laws. She also holds a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration in Finance from Shanghai Jiao Tong University*
(E/B%Z B AK2). Ms. Ma is a practicing lawyer in the PRC. She
has over 10 years of extensive experience in different kinds of
legal and financial works including corporate finance, mergers
and acquisitions, property investment, trust and commercial
litigations. She is currently a practising lawyer of Beijing King &
Capital Law Firm, (Shanghai Branch)* (1t RR &R (8 )2ETEH
FfT).

Ms. Ma does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of
the Company.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Guo Jiadi, being the existing executive Director, has
entered into service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing on 12 December 2014 and
the service contract had been renewed for a further term of
three years commencing on 12 December 2017.

* For identification purposes only
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Each of Ms. Amika Lan E Guo and Mr. Chan Yee Ping,
Michael, being the existing executive Director and the existing
independent non- executive Director, respectively, has entered
into service contract with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing on 9 July 2014 and the service
contracts had been renewed for a further term of three years
commencing on 9 July 2017.

Mr. Wang Chao, being the existing executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing on 5 February 2018.

Mr. Yan Pingfeng, who was resigned as an executive Director
with effect from 5 February 2018, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing on 15 September 2016.

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen, was appointed as an independent non
executive Director on 18 September 2009, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing on 18 September 2009 and the service
contract has been renewed several times for a further term of
three years commencing on 18 September 2015.

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen has been re-designated from an
independent non-executive Director to a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 15 September 2016.
Following his re-designation, Dr. Wong Yun Kuen has been
entered into a service contract with the Company with the
term of three years commencing on 15 September 2016.

Mr. Yu Pak Yan Peter, being the existing independent non-
executive Director, has entered into service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 31
December 2011 and the service contract has been renewed
several times for a further term of three years commencing on
31 December 2017.

Ms. Ma Shujuan, being the existing independent non-executive
Director, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing on 5 February
2018.

Mr. Zheng Yurui, being the existing independent non-executive
Director, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing on 11 April 2012 and
the service contracts had been renewed several times for a
further term of three years commencing on 11 April 2018.

Report of the Directors

EEEHES

BEECRESYN (&)

I ITEEAmika Lan E Guom + M IRE
BYERTESMRBFLEESHHAR
A UREEH - A-_E—WNE+ANLR
BT EBE=F REGHNELEE A=
T—tFttANBRE—FHBHA=F-

BERTEFEBAELECBARFTLR
BEH BT \F_AOBEUNLR
H=%-

BEELEE (BN \F-_AABET
WITER)CEARFILREAH B
E-RNELATRABRVE AR =F-

HEEBIN-_TTNFNLATN\HRES
ERBUFBNTES BEEARBEILR
Bat A-TTZNFAATN\BROS
RP=F YEBREEERKALH H=
E-RAFNAATNRRE-—FTRE=F-

HEERBIE T R"FAATRAEMR
ARRVBIULIFATERTRAEIFNTES-
AER BEEELEBARF R RS
BR-BZE-RFAATHABRRERAH=
o

BEBYFATESRACELEDER
RAFINRBEH B _T——F+=H
=ST-HERH=F RESHEKLER
EE AT tF+-_A=t—BiEk
— S RH=F-

REBUFHTEEFTNRLICEAR
ARV RBa AT N\F_FAAH
B R =5F-

BEBYIFRTEFL EIRALECDEBAR
BRI RBELN BT —Z—FMNA+—
RESH=F REAHNCKBREE"
BTN \FOA+—-RBRE-FT/H=
o

PE=ZEZERERDE 2017/185F &




72 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

Report of the Directors

EEEHESE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Mr. Zheng Jinyun, who was resigned as an independent non-
executive with effect from 5 February 2018, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 11 April 2012 and the service contracts had
been renewed for a further term of three years commencing
on 11 April 2015.

In addition, all Directors of the Company shall be subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company. The term of office of each Director may also be
terminated with three months’ notice served by either party on
the other.

The emoluments of the independent non-executive Directors
will be determined by the Board (as to be authorised by the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM) at its discretion
with reference to their duties and responsibilities.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM has entered into a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 7 August 2013, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, Fujian Sinco entered into a joint venture agreement
with Fuzhou Gaojia, a company controlled by Mr. Guo Jiadi,
an executive Director and the ultimate beneficial owner of a
substantial shareholder of the Company, for the establishment
of a PRC joint venture for engaging in investment,
development, sale, lease, management of properties and other
ancillary services in the PRC, including the project, for property
development.

As Fuzhou Gaojia was controlled by Mr. Guo Jiadi, who is
an executive Director and the single largest shareholder of
the Company and the father of Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, the
executive Director, and his associates, Fuzhou Gaojia, is a
connected person of the Company.

On 15 December 2016, Fujian Sinco entered into an
agreement with Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd (the “Fuzhou Gaojia”) pursuant to which the Fujian Sinco
agreed to acquire and Fuzhou Gaojia agreed to sell 95% of the
equity interests of Fujian Jingdu Land Co., Ltd, the (the “Fujian
Jingdu”) at an aggregate consideration of RMB455,816,462
(the “Fujian Acquisition”). Fujian Acquisition was completed
on 26 May 2017.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Concurrent with the Fujian Acquisition, Fujian Sinco and the
Fuzhou Gaojia entered into another agreement pursuant to
which the Fujian Sinco agreed to acquire and Fuzhou Gaojia
agreed to sell 95% of the equity interests of Xian Sandi Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd at an aggregate consideration of
RMB202,437,651 (the “Xian Acquisition”). Xian Acquisition
was completed on 16 June 2017.

Fuzhou Gaojia, being an associate of Mr. Guo lJiadi, is
therefore a connected person of the Company. Mr. Guo Jiadi
is an executive Director, the chairman of the Company and
a controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, each of
the Fujian Acquisition and the Xian Acquisition constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Further details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 15 December 2016 and
circular dated 16 March 2017.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
by the Group during the year are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company has complied
with the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules for
those related party transactions which constituted non-exempt
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions.
Other related party transactions either did not constitute
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions
or constituted connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions but were exempted from all disclosure and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” disclosed above and note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements headed “Related Party Transactions”, no
other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHESE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the year.

Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”) is an executive Director, the
chairman of the Company and a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Guo carries out property development and
investment businesses and other businesses in the PRC through
companies controlled by him, including but not limited to
Fujian Sandi Property Development Limited (the “Fujian Sandi”)
and Fuzhou Gaojia.

To deal with the potential conflict of interests between Mr.
Guo and the Company, Mr. Guo; Fujian Sandi; Fuzhou Gaojia
and the Company had entered into a deed of non-competition
dated 1 January 2015 (the “2015 Deed”). Each of Mr. Guo;
Fujian Sandi and Fuzhou Gaojia; (the “Covenantor(s)”) has
given its non-compete undertakings in favour of the Company
on the terms set out below:

(@) The Covenantors will not, and will procure his/its close
associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, engage,
invest or be involved in any manner any business which
competes with the business of the Company from time to
time with the following exceptions:

(i) the holding of shares of a company which is
engaged in the business of acquisition of land
for development, building construction and
acquisition of real properties (including projects
with construction in progress) in the PRC for sale,
lease or other investment purposes (the “Property
Investment Business”) and whose shares are listed
on a recognised stock exchange provided that such
shares represent not more than 10% of the voting
rights at the general meetings of such company;

(i)  the engagement in the Property Investment Business
through the Group;

(iii) the acquisition or holding of real property for self-
use;

(iv) the property projects that the Covenantors have
already engaged as at the date of the undertakings;
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(v)  the engagement of property projects in any province
of the PRC in which the Group has not considered,
planned to or invested in the development of its
Property Investment Business;

(vi) the engagement of property projects in any province
of the PRC in which the Group has considered,
planned to or invested in the development of its
Property Investment Business subject to the right of
first refusal granted to the Group (on the terms set
out in the undertakings).

Since the date of the 2015 Deed, the scope of the
operation of the Group was expanded. Therefore, Mr.
Guo and the Company has entered into a new Non-
competition Deed on 15 March 2017 (the “2017 Deed”)
to replace the 2015 Deed. Further details was disclosed in
the announcement dated 15 March 2017. Set out below
is a summary of the principal terms of the 2017 Deed and
relevant information.

Mr. Guo (for himself and as the agent for his close
associates) irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes in
favour of the Company that:

(@) he shall and shall procure that his close associates
not to, directly or indirectly, engage in, invest in,
participate in, whether on his own account or with
each other or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person or company or otherwise holds or
owns any interest in any manner in the PRC in any
business that may compete, directly or indirectly,
with the Group Business;

(b) he shall provide all the information that the
Company reasonably considers to be necessary to
enforce the undertakings given by him under the
2017 Deed and would make an annual declaration
on compliance with the 2017 Deed in the annual
report of the Company; and

(c) he and/or his close associates shall abstain from
voting in the Board meetings and the general
meetings of the Company in relation to any matter
in connection with 2017 Deed,;
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Report of the Directors

EEEHESE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued)

(a)  (continued)

Mr. Guo further undertakes to the Company that he shall
not (and shall procure his close associates not to):

(@) solicit or entice away any customer, contractor,
supplier, director, employee or consultant of the
Group (or any potential customer, contractor,
supplier with whom the Group has already entered

into negotiations); and/or

(b) use, disclose to anyone or publish, or allow
the disclosure or publication of, the non-public
information in relation to the Group (trade secrets,
business strategies or otherwise) that he or his close

associates received or may receive;

If any New Business Opportunity is made available to
Mr. Guo and/or his close associates, he and/or his close

associates:

(i)  shall issue a written notice to the Board pursuant
to the terms of the 2017 Deed and provide the
information reasonably requested by the Company
to facilitate the Company making an informed
evaluation of the New Business Opportunity; and

(i) shall not pursue or otherwise participate in the new
business opportunity in any manner unless and until
the New Business Opportunity has been declined
by the Group, provided that Mr. Guo and/or his
close associates cannot pursue the New Business
Opportunity on terms more favourable than those

offered to the Group.

If Mr. Guo and/or any of his close associates wishes to sell
any interest in the Guo Business (same meanings as defined
in the announcement dated 15 March 2017) (in whole or
in part) to any third party (the “Opportunity for Sale”), Mr.
Guo will offer and will procure that his close associates to
offer the Opportunity for Sale to the Company and the
Company shall have a right of first refusal in respect of such
Opportunity for Sale (the “Right of First Refusal”). In this

regard, Mr. Guo and/or his close associates:

(i)  shall issue a written notice to the Board pursuant
to the terms of the 2017 Deed and provide the
information reasonably requested by the Company
to facilitate the Company to reasonably evaluate the

Opportunity for Sale; and
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued)

(a)  (continued)

(ii)

shall be at liberty to offer the Opportunity for Sale to
third parties if the Opportunity for Sale is declined by
the Group, provided that the terms thereof shall not
be more favourable than those provided to the Group.

The Non-competition Undertakings do not apply to the
following:

(a)

(b)

(@)

(d)

the same property projects excluded from the 2015
Deed (being those property projects of Mr. Guo and/or
his close associates already in existence as at the date
of the 2015 Deed);

the hotel business in connection with the hotels set
out below which has been engaged by Mr. Guo (and/
or his closes associates) prior to the Group’s proposed
engagement in the hotel sector:

(i)  the existing 5-star hotel named “Sandi Ramada
Plaza Hotel* (= #FEEZEEHAE)" which
is located in Cangshan District, Fuzhou, Fujian
Province;

(i)  the existing 5-star hotel named “Double Tree
by Hilton Hotel Putian* (B H =i % @ E &
MOBJE)" which is located in Putian of Fujian
Province; and

(i) the proposed 3-star hotel named “Putian Sandi
Pesht Boutique Hotel* (75 = s i AT 5 dro B /5 )
which is located in Putian of Fujian Province;

the holding of or being interested in, directly or
indirectly, by Mr. Guo and/or his close associates any
shares in any company, provided that (i) such shares
are listed on a recognized stock exchange; and (ii)
the total number of such shares held by Mr. Guo
and/or his close associates does not amount to more
than 5% of the issued shares carrying voting rights;

the engagement in any business via the holding of
the equity interests through the Group;
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Report of the Directors

EEEHESE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued)

(a)

*
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(continued)

(e) the acquisition or holding of property by Mr. Guo
and/or his close associates for their respective self-
use;

(f)  the engagement in the Group Business in any
province in the PRC where the Group has not
considered or planned to carry out the Group
Business; or

(g) (subject to the provisions regarding the New
Business Opportunity) the engagement in the Group
Business in any province in the PRC where the
Group has considered or planned to carry out the
Group Business.

The obligations of Mr. Guo under 2017 Deed shall be
terminated upon the earlier of:

(a) the Shares ceasing to be listed on the Stock
Exchange; and

(b)  Mr. Guo and his close associates together ceasing to
control 30% (or such percentage as may from time
to time specified in the Listing Rules to be regarded
as a controlling shareholder) or more of the voting
rights at any general meeting of the Company.

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr.
Guo declares that he complied with all the terms and
conditions as set out in 2015 Deed and 2017 Deed.

Save as disclosed, during the year and up to the date
of this report, no Directors are considered to have an
interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules, other than
those businesses for which the Directors were appointed
as directors to represent the interest of the Company
and/or the Group.

For identification purposes only
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571,
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO") which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO; or (iii) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code"”) as asset out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

(i) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company
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Report of the Directors

EEEHESE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(i) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company (continued)

Notes:
1. The 2,846,461,002 Shares include:

a) 2,526,046,801 Shares held by United Century
International Limited(the “United Century”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI") with limited liability which is wholly owned
by Mr. Guo lJiadi.

b)  The Shares of 320,414,201 held by King Partner
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
with limited liability which is wholly-owned by Mr.
Guo Jiadi.

2. This represented United Century’s long position in
312,500,000 underlying shares which constituted
unlisted physically settled equity derivatives pursuant to
an arrangement entered into with Huarong International
Financial Holdings Limited (the “Huarong”) during the
year. Huarong is taken to have the short position in the
same underlying shares.

3. As at 31 March 2018, Mr. Guo Jiadi, an executive Director
and Chairman of the Company was entitled to receive
share options to subscribe for a maximum of 2,400,000
Shares upon exercise of the options in full.

4. As at 31 March 2018, Mr. Wang Chao, an executive
Director of the Company was entitled to receive share
options to subscribe for a maximum of 3,000,000 Shares
upon exercise of the options in full.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BEENFETHRAERRD 2
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHORT POSITION HEURRAEKABRRERE LB 2
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND B HEROREEZERZAE
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY (%)
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)
(ii) Interest in the issued share capital of the (i) REQATMEBLIECRITRAZE
Company'’s associated corporation: =
% of the registered
Registered capital capital of the
held in associated
Name of associated associated corporation as at
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest corporation Position 31 March 2018
BR=F-NF
REEE ZAZt-HRE
£ 3.3 REEEER EHtE FrisafEx Bft EEERMEARAM
Mr. Guo Jiadi Fujian Jiake Industrial Interest of controlled Registered: Long 49
Company Limited corporations RMB216,000,000
(the"Fujian Jiake") (Note 1) (Note 2)
B4 BRRENEXERAA REEE T ARE e 49
([BRER]) (ﬁ/f&i) (K2) 216,000,0007C
Notes: Bzt
1. The Company indirectly held 51% equity interests of 1. ARBBEERAEZENBAREEZ
Fujian Jiake through an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary, ERBEAERAR([BELR])
Fujian Sinco Industrial Company Limited (“Fujian Sinco”), (—MRFEFERK L2 BREEA
a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability. 7 )Fﬁ&%ﬁ?&%&ﬂﬂ%ﬂx% &
Therefore Fujian Jiaka is an associated corporation of the CRIREBRES BRI E R
Company for the purposes of the SFO. $Tiﬂi%$ Al ABEEAE -
2. Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou 2. wNEEFBEFREARAR ([18
Gaojia”) held 49% equity interests of Fujian Jiake, Fuzhou MEEDFEEEERN Z249% K
Gaojia is a company established in the PRC and ultimate oBMEEANRFRBKLZAFA
controlled by Mr. Guo Jiadi. A R B hN 3k 5 A B AR o
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Report of the Directors

EEEHESE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(ii) Interest in the issued share capital of the
Company’s associated corporation: (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short position in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, otherwise
notified to the Company and Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code. Nor any of the Directors and chief
executive had any interest in, or had been granted any
right to subscribe for the securities of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, other than the interests of a director or
chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the heading
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interest in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations” above, the following persons (not being a
Director or the chief executive officer of the Company) have
an interest or a short position in Shares or underlying Shares
which would be required to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or will be, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group:
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EEEHES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST FTERRARGD REER D 2
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND wmRRE (&)

UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)
Interests in ordinary shares and underlying shares of RAQATEREEIIETEERRME

HK$0.01 each of the Company Bz R
Approximate % of
Number of Number issued share capital
issued ordinary Number of of share in the Company
Name Nature of interest shares held underlying shares options held ~as at 31 March 2018
ERZZ-N\F
- =Rzt -H
) BEERf AAAERGRE
B/ 1% EEME LERYE RERAEE FERREZE BOBEM
Long Position
#e
M. Guo Jiadi Interest of controlled corporations  2,846,461,002 (Note 1) 312,500,000 (Note 1) - 70.8%
Ihngics REEE R (Hi1) (K1)
@gq/eflcial owner - 2,400,000 (Note 1) 0.1%
ERREA i)
United Century International En eficial owner 2,526,046,301 (No(g 1) - 56.7%
Limited EREEA (Hi1)
King Partner Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 320,414,201 (Note 1) - 7.2%
ERlEA (W)
Huarong International Financial Interest of controlled corporations 312,500,000 (thg 23) 625,000,000 (Note 2b) 21.0%
_ Holdings Limited B (Hitza) (Hitz)
ERARSRERERAR REEE R
Beyond Steady Limited En eficial owner 312,500,000 (Nog‘ej 2a) 625,000,000 (thg 2b) - 21.0%
EREEA (Bfita) (Biz2b)
Short Position
Y
Huarong International Interest of controlled corporations - 312,500,000 (Note 2¢) - 7.0%
_finandial Holdings Limited o (Hrt2c)
ERERSRERERLT REEE R
Beyond Steady Limited @gg/eflcial owner - 312,500,000 (No\t‘e1 20 - 7.0%
ERBEA (Brztac)
Notes: Bt et -
1) Please refer to Note under section headed: Directors’ and Chief 1) B2MFE0HE[EELTBITHRAE 2
Executives’ Interests on page 80. | — B B

2) a) The 312,500,000 held by Beyond Steady Limited (the 2. a) 312,500,000/% HBeyond Steady

“Beyond Steady”), a company incorporated in BVI with Limited ([Beyond Steady ] )54 -
limited liability which is indirectly wholly owned by Beyond Steadyﬁ’ﬂif‘%ﬁfgﬁﬁ%ﬁf
Huarong International Financial Limited (the “Huarong”). MR ERRAG AERBBEKRE
BMIERARAR ([FR]) HEE2E
wH-
b)  Beyond Steady has security interest in 625,000,000 b) Beyond Steady2625,000 OOOHX$
underlying shares of the Company. NEIRIE Eﬁﬂxfﬁqﬂ%ﬁﬂ*ﬁﬁ e
¢)  This represented Beyond Steady’s short position in Q #§Beyond Steady312,500,000/%
312,500,000 underlying shares which constituted unlisted 1RRANR () 8K R - ARIRF A B2 United
physically settled equity derivatives pursuant to an Century»zTiE'Hﬂ# BRIELT™
arrangement entered into with United Century during the HE/RALTE T A United
year. United Century is taken to have the long position in Century%ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬂﬁ B8 17 R
the same underlying shares. BifE -
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EEEHESE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Interests in ordinary shares and underlying shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company (continued)

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during the
year ended 31 March 2018 are set out below:

(a) Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the AGM
of the Company held on 16 September 2011 and the
Stock Exchange granting approval of the listing of and
permission to deal in the shares of the Company to
be issued under the share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) on 15 November 2011, the Company has
adopted the New Scheme and terminated the share
option scheme adopted on 23 November 2001 (the
“Old Scheme”). The Old Scheme was terminated on 16
September 2011.

The New Scheme

At the AGM of the Company held on 16 September
2011, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a New Scheme. The purpose of the New
Scheme is to provide the Company with a flexible
and effective means of incentivizing, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits
to the participants. There appears to be no material
difference between the terms of the Old Scheme and
the New Scheme, other than the scope of participants
which, under the New Scheme, is more specific than that
covered under the Old Scheme. The New Scheme covers
any employee (full time and part time) holding salaries,
consultants, agents, contractors, consumers and suppliers
as the Board in its sole discretion considers eligible.
Moreover, in relation to the various circumstances under
which an option will lapse, e.g. death and termination of
employment, the periods following such circumstances
during which an option-holder may exercise their options
are different under the two schemes.

FTERRTRARG R EBERGD 2
BmERAE (&)

RAATEREEVIBTZERKRIME
AR 2R ()

B LEEEEN RZE—-NE=A=+—
H  AARWEEEMRMALT (EERAQF]
FETHAERINHEERARRG 2K
MR D PR RIEE S RS KA
BEXVERFE2 K30 BB AR R) KB 3 B
HBEF SR BEGNEB6KETEZ
Erfhits s EmsR R -

FH 1R
HE-ZT—\F=A=+—HILFEZR
T4 RS T ¢

(a) RBIRFESTE
BRER-_ZT——FNATRBETZ
ARABRRBFRG BB ERRE
ERBRAR_E——F+—A+H
Bt ERERE R 8 (T35 8])
BFETZARBRND LT REE
ARARERMFE WRIER-F
Z—F+—-AT=ZHERHBRE
AHEI(TEFE]) - EFFER—F——
FARATRAKLE-

#at &
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EEEHES

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued) BRERDHER (&)
(a) Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BRESE (&)
The New Scheme (continued) BErd (&)

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
(i) the total number of shares to be issued under the
options of the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue; and (ii) the
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company then in issue.

Options may be exercise at any time not exceeding a
period 6 years from the date on which the share options
is accepted. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable period
and the number of shares subject to each option will be
determined by the Board at the time of grant. As at 31
March 2018, 46,000,000 shares options were granted
pursuant to the New Scheme, of which 15,000,000 share
options have been cancelled during the year ended 31
March 2017. The share options under the New Scheme
vested on 22 February 2016 and the vested option will be
exercisable at an exercise price of HK$0.285 per share in
accordance with the following schedule:

25%: from 22 February 2016
25%: from 22 February 2017
25%: from 22 February 2018
25%: from 22 February 2019

REARRRIPIRF LA (VR H
Bl BB TT 2 BRI BB S
BANAE BTN 210% + R (i)
A —FE& LA e FEREAR
oz BB PTS K 2 B 3TT Ml T 3
TERNBETSBEARREHITR
NZ1% °

B & 498 A B B T B B 64F HAfE
ARERITEERE - TEERESRE
BB TEERRUATERSE: ()X
REBMDRE LB ZWHE : (i)
REERH AR ABEERAZF
BHUTHE - R (i) R B 2 EfE

EEe RN BELEREREESH
BREZTFEE - BBH TEHR
Fit kOB R N\F=A
=-+—H %E46,000,00017 & f& &
EREFHFTEIR - E#15,000,000
NEREREZ 2 —+t&=A8
T+ BLEFEREEHE -FTEE
TZBERER-_TE—RF_A=-+=
AEE MR B 2 BIRES T IRE
T B R IZITEE & AR0.285%8 7T
171 -

25% B -_E—XRF-_A-+-Hit
25% B -_ZE—+F-_A=-+=-H#
5% BE—N\F-_A=Z+=H#E
5% BT NF-_A=-+=H
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued) BREHBHZ )
(a) Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BBRRFESTE (&)
The New Scheme (continued) et (&)
Particulars of the options movement under the New HE_Z—N\F=Z=A=+—HBILFE
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March TR T o RS g T
2018 are as follow: R ONE
Number of shares options
ERE"A
Granted  Exercised Reclassified  Cancelled Exercise
Beginningof  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe Endofthe  priceper  Date of grant of
the year year year year year/Expired year share share option Exercisable period
R EREE/ =1 BRE
£ ERRE  ERE ENAR 5} ] g8 %[ REAH L]
Directors gz
Mr. Guo Jiadi Imgkt 2,400,000 - - - - 2,400,000 0285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016 to
21 February 2022
It S “ERE
ZR=tzH ZR-tzR%
“Z--f-A-+-R
Mr. Wang Chao (Note) T4 (A& - - - 3000000 - 3000000 0285  22February 2016 22 February 2016 10
21 February 2022
ZE30E ZE0E
“E-t-8 ZAZTZRE
—“E--E-F-t+-H
Ex-Director AES 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 0.285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016 to
21 February 2022
ZT-5E Z50F
“F-f-H ZR-tzBHZ
“E--E-F-t-H
Employees and EERER 26,100,000 - - (3,000,000) - 23,100,000 0.285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016 to
consultants 21 February 2022
ZERE ZERE
ZR=tzH ZR-tzR%
ZE-CFZF-1-H
Total @ 31,000,000 - - - - 31,000,000
Note: i aE -
Mr. Wang Chao was appointed as an executive director on FHRAEER-ZZT—N\F_ARAEZREAR
5 February 2018. WITEE-
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)

b)

Issue of Warrant Shares of the Company

On 21 December 2015, the Company and Chance Talent
Management Limited (“Chance Talent”) entered into
the warrants subscription agreement (the “Warrants
Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to issue to Chance
Talent, and Chance Talent has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for the warrants of the Company (the
“Warrants”). Subsequently pursuant to a special
resolution passed at the Company’s special general
meeting held on 10 May 2016, the Shareholders
approved the Warrants Subscription Agreement. On 23
May 2016, the Board of the Company announced that
all the conditions precedent set out in the Warrants
Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and the
issue of unlisted warrants has been completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Warrants Subscription Agreement. The Company issued
the Warrants at a total subscription price of HK$0.01 to
Chance Talent, entitling Chance Talent to subscribe for in
aggregate up to a maximum amount of HK$75,000,000
worth of warrant shares at the exercise price of HK$0.24
per warrant share (the “Warrant Share”) on or before
27 December 2017, or, if the Company requests for
extension and Chance Talent agrees to such request, on
or before 24 December 2018. Upon full exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to the Warrants, a total of
312,500,000 Warrant Shares will be allotted and issued
to the warrantholder.

On 24 January 2017, Chance Talent and Kong LinglLing,
an independent third party of the Group entered into
the warrant purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the Chance Talent intended to sell and Kong Lingling
intended to purchase the Warrants at a consideration of
approximately HK$4.7 million. The sale and purchase of
the Warrants completed on 24 January 2017.

Report of the Directors

EEEHES

BREHBHE 2)

b)

BOTAQNTARRERRHD
RZZE-—RAF+_A=Z+—HB K
A A]HiChance Talent Management
Limited ([Chance Talent|)&] 3 52
EERAEHZE ([ RREZFRE
WEl)  BHARBEIEHEREM
Chance TalentZ17 & Chance Talent
BHERERBARLARRIRESE (R
RIERE]) - BER-_ZZT—XFHA
THRHBIZARIARREEINARE
BBAZ —HERRAZER  REAER
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BEREHZE 2 TA LRGN
EEEMN MBI LTRREED
BERREZREDGZ ZBER LK
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Z+tE Bk ZE (AR R ERKIE
B} Chance TalentR Z & &k 8
R-_ZE—-—NE+-_A-+WHBE=xHZ
A IR{TEESRBREERD (7
MAEERD )02 B TRERZBE
75,000,000/ 7T 2 AR #E 38 IR 19 © ¢
PITERREBWNE 2 REEEL &
$£312,500,0000% 58 I% 4 75 A 17 5 &
BLB RBITTRREBRAEAC

N_FE—+%F—H=-+PH " Chance
TalentEE R EBE B E = FFLEBEE]
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Talent#t & R LIS IS #i I8 B R AR &
F KB A %4,700,0007 7T - R A 4
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)
b) Issue of Warrants Shares of the Company

On 19 December 2017, Beyond Steady Limited (the
“Beyond Steady”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited,
and Kong Lingling, entered into the warrant transfer
agreement, pursuant to which the Kong Lingling
intended to sell and Beyond Steady intended to purchase
the Warrants at a consideration of approximately
HK$18.8 million. The sale and purchase of the
Warrants again completed on 19 December 2017.
On 22 December 2017, Beyond Steady subscribed for
HK$75,000,000 worth of Warrant Shares at the exercise
price of HK$0.24 per share and a total of 312,500,000
shares were allotted and issued to the Beyond Steady.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 21 December 2015, 10 May 2016, 23
May 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 15
April 2016 respectively.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme adopted by the Company
disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE GROUP

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of
the employee’s merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, with
consideration to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as in
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees of the Group,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” above.

MR R e

b) BITXRATZREIRRKRHD
W_ET—+F+=H+/H Beyond
Steady Limited ([Beyond Steady ] -
REBBERESRIZERBERAR 2 EE
BB AR BRI LR RE
FHEEDSE B RRBLER
Beyond Steady#tf# B R #F - (KB
75 #718,800,000/8 7T - RIREFE 2 B
BEREAR-_ZE—tF+-A+NAZE
KR —_E—+F+-_A=+=8H"
Beyond Steady ATT#{E&EAX0.247% 7T
BB (E75,000,00078 T K R R 4 35
B&in - & $£312,500,000A% & B 2% % 2%
77 ¥ Beyond Steady °
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EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE GROUP

Other than operating the statutory mandatory provident fund
scheme for Hong Kong employees and participating in social
insurance for its employees in the PRC in accordance with
the relevant PRC regulations, the Group has not operated any
other retirement benefits schemes for the Group's employees.
Details of the Group's retirement benefit scheme in operation
for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 5(I) to
the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Details of major events after 31 March 2018 are set out in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report and note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance practices
is set out in the Corporate Governance Report accompanying
the annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
INFORMATION AND DIRECTOR’S INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Directors and other officers, for the time being acting in
relation to the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or supposed
duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any)
as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year ended 31
March 2018, which provides appropriate cover for certain legal
actions brought against its directors and officers. The level of
the coverage is reviewed annually.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a prorata basis to
the existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

On 15 December 2016, Fujian Sinco entered into an
agreement with Fuzhou Gaojia pursuant to which Fujian
Sinco agreed to acquire and Fuzhou Gaojia agreed to sell
95% of the equity interests of Fujian Jingdu at an aggregate
consideration of RMB455,816,462 (the “Fujian Acquisition”).
Fujian Acquisition was completed on 26 May 2017.

Part of the consideration of the Fujian Acquisition was settled
through the Company allotting and issuing 800,000,000 new
shares at the issue price of HK$0.2745 each to United Century
International Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI which
is directly and wholly owned by Mr. Guo lJiadi, on 26 May
2017.

On 22 December 2017, Beyond Steady subscribed for
HK$75,000,000 worth of Warrant Shares at the exercise price
of HK$0.24 per share and a total of 312,500,000 shares
were allotted and issued to the Beyond Steady, raising gross
proceeds of approximately HK$75,000,000. For details, please
refer to the section headed “Capital Structure — (i) Issue of
Warrants Shares of the Company” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries have purchased, sold or redeemed the Company’s
securities for the year ended 31 March 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the best knowledge of the Directors, it
is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each independent
non-executive Director, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. It
also reviews the effectiveness of the audit process and risk
evaluation. The Audit Committee which comprised Mr. Chan
Yee Ping, Michael, Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter and Mr. Zheng Yurui
being independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the
accompanying financial statements prior to their publication.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2018 have been audited by Messrs. BDO
Limited. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint Messrs. BDO Limited as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Guo Jiadi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYREBE®RES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA SANDI HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Sandi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
99 to 224, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

(Refer to notes 5(e), 6(c) and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements)

Management estimated the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties to be approximately HK$3,952,998,000
as at 31 March 2018, with a fair value gain for the year
then ended of approximately HK$2,796,000 recorded in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. To support management’s estimation
of the fair value, the Group engaged an independent external
valuer as the management’s expert to perform valuations on
the Group's investment properties at the end of the reporting
period.

Valuation of the Group’s investment properties is dependent
on certain key assumptions and estimations that require
significant management judgement.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

The valuation was inherently subjective due to the significant
estimates used and significant changes in these estimates
could result in material changes to the valuation of the
investment properties.

Our key procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

(i)  Assessing the appropriateness of the methodologies
and the reasonableness of the key assumptions and
estimations used;

(i)  Checking the appropriateness of the key input data used
and determination of fair value;

(iii) Engaging an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment
on the appropriateness of the methodologies and the
reasonableness of the assumptions and estimations
adopted in the valuation for estimating the fair value of
the investment properties; and

(iv) Evaluation of the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of management’s expert and auditor’s expert.

Net realisable value of properties under development
for sale and properties held for sale

(Refer to notes 5(h), 6(d) and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements)

The net carrying amount of the Group’s properties under
development for sale and properties held for sale as at
31 March 2018 was approximately HK$1,249,179,000.
Impairment loss of approximately HK$11,608,000 was
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Estimations of net realisable value of the Group’s properties
under development for sale and properties held for sale
involves significant judgements and is critically dependent
upon the Group’s estimation of the market selling prices and
the future costs to completion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Net realisable value of properties under development
for sale and properties held for sale (continued)

Our major procedures in relation to management'’s assessments
of the net realisable value of the properties under development
for sale and properties held for sale included:

(i)  Assessing, on sample basis, the reasonableness of the
future costs to completion of the properties under
development estimated by the management based on
the underlying documentation such as approved budgets
of development project costs and existing construction
contracts;

(i)  Assessing, on sample basis, the appropriateness of
the estimated selling price of the properties used by
the management by comparing them to the recently
transacted prices and prices of comparable properties in
the vicinity of the development projects; and

(ili) Assessing the appropriateness of the basis of the
determination of the net realisable value of the properties
under development for sale and properties held for sale,
and evaluating the reasonableness and consistency of the
key assumptions used by the management.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

BUZBMBES

BB ERGRE M RRARE
NEE (#)

EERIFRSKTORE ETERER
RC(EABBNER) ETHNEZ EX—
BEARH R TR AR B - sHR Rt
AIARMEFREEREE MRS ERYE
MEBIEAERAEFEFREMBHRR
15 A& K R 47 & B TS ¥R 3R P 1E B0 48 DR
o RIABRERRAATRRIEE KR -

ERE (BAETER) ETTEZNBR
oRERTERAE R T EXIER
REJE o API TR -

o HRIAIREAE B HREF SEA RR T B R
BB WK TEE AR R E
% Rt RAITEREFARYEL
B LA R R 7T 2 A E R B AZUR
o EREME R AR - B HGE
ARES R BR  BE ERER ER
PR S BN A ERIE Sl 2 £ Bt
KB A REF M 8 2 E A RIR
At B LR = 1 OK BE 3 3R R 85 BR T 28 B
HY B K BA AR Rt 0 LR

FREAEAZ AR R R N EEIE ] - PARE
MEZEF BEENLIFY &

T
HE
SEAMEFNERERERER -

o FEEFRFARASTHENSEER
ER R AR EN SR -

s HEERAFELZSTERMNNG
BIEEHL SR - RIBEFMERNEZER
EORERLAFEREHELBNRE
B E KT HEE M- e Al BE B 2
i BEEENRBRERNELS
REEE - MRBMRBRFEEKRTE
EE AABBEZBEBEPIRE
EREIBGRAEMBRRPHIEH
RE-REABOKETR  BIHA
FEFLAERBER B AERZ
ERNZEMBRE B IEATRGHEX
BE AR RRFHEKIBRAALSE

B ERETRBERLE-

PE=ZEZERERDE 2017/185F & 97




98 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

Independent Auditor’s Report
VA BARES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ngai Hang
Practising Certificate no. P04743

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

GEREBERHEMEZE KRS X

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &% —

T\ EZA=+—HILEE

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
(Restated)
D
Fit 2t FET TFET
(#&E%l)
Revenue Y 25 ) 9 707,694 297,559
Cost of properties sales W) 3 35 & K AR (354,734) (208,300)
Other income H AU A o 9 59,709 48,735
Other net gains/(losses) Hih e/ (B8 ) F5H 11 21,658 (52,402)
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment BREWMEZ N TERE
properties (BE) 20 2,796 (81,090)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets 12 AF{EF A8z 2 B75
at fair value through profit or loss BEEATE(BB) K
= 26 (8,920) 9,477
Loss on early redemption of notes IREBOIZE 2 BB - (5,025)
Impairment loss on properties held for  #F{EH &Y% 2 R EE 18
sale ) 22 (11,608) -
Staff costs 85 TARKA (17,123) (13,934)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREETE
equipment (2,145) (2,100)
Other operating expenses H At 48 & 5 2 (91,277) (85,186)
Finance costs b E KA 12 (54,217) (94,084)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRPrIS B AR A,
(E538) 14 251,833 (186,350)
Income tax (expense)/credit s (BX%) #H% 13 (91,013) 10,333
Profit/(loss) for the year KEZHRA, (FEE) 160,820 (176,017)
Other comprehensive income, after HZETHEHFI/EZTER
tax, that may be reclassified ZHMEEWR R
subsequently to profit or loss: HIE
Exchange differences on translating MBS RE L 2B
foreign operations HERE 272,949 (163,375)
Total comprehensive income for the ANEEZ2EWNFZEE
year 433,769 (339,392)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: J«,l(-ltkﬁ:t)ﬁ‘fﬁ/ﬁﬂ/
Owners of the Company iN/NETEZ ¥ =N 156,326 (169,389)
Non-controlling interest FEFE IR A 4,494 (6,628)
160,820 (176,017)
Total comprehensive income UTATEAEZERE
attributable to: W
Owners of the Company ViNNETE T =N 426,938 (331,283)
Non-controlling interest FEFE IR HE A 6,831 (8,109)
433,769 (339,392)
(Restated)
(#EE3)
Earnings/(loss) per share ERERN,(BE) 16 \
Basic BN HK3.60 cents &l HK(4.04) cents 1L
Diluted e HK3.55 cents &4l HK(4.04) cents /&1l
FE = HIZERERAF 2017/18F ] 99




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &

As at 31 March 2018 R-ZE—NE=H=+—AH

At At At
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
(Restated) (Restated)
ZE-N\E “E—tF ZE-RF
ZA=+-H ZA=t-H MA—H
lif3 TErx A7 A7
(E&75) (mE5))
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties REN% 20 3,952,998 3,551,719 3,860,877
Property, plant and equipment VEN T 19 5,327 6,370 8,131
Properties under development ERPNE 21 358,190 305,736 250,531
Properties under development for sale FEZRDNE 2 - 435,524 477,594
Deposit for subscription of exchangeable bonds ~ REARHES 7S - - 131,301
Deposit and prepayment for properties under BREANE BREREMNTE
development 25 78,978 56,377 59,952
Deferred tax assets ERRBEE 33 14,396 - -
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 4,409,889 4,355,726 4,788,386
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development for sale and GERRONERBELENE
properties held for sale 22 1,249,179 609,521 519,203
Accounts receivable EWER 23 7329 5,441 3,975
Loan receivables ElER 24 25,000 259,332 -
Other receivables, deposits paid and prepayments — E th MR E ke RENTE 25 1,072,600 88,161 28,471
Available-for-sale investments AR MERE - - 3,597
Financial assets at far value through profit or loss A TEH AR 2B BEAE 2 133,857 142,777 -
Investments held for trading RIEEERE 27 125,745 164,087 216,489
Amounts due from related companies FElBELRE 44b)) 140 295,441 1,221
Income tax recoverable mREFER 10,369 13,206 -
Pledged bank deposit EERRIER 630 567 601
Cash and cash equivalents BeRELE 28 201,622 40,824 427,303
Total current assets TBEEAR 2,826,471 1,619,357 1,200,860
Total assets EEAE 7,236,360 5,975,083 5,989,246
Current liabilities RBaE
Accounts payable MR 29 159,307 180,351 135,303
Other payables, deposits received and accruals iR B hiEe RESER 30 83,474 98,081 65,908
Advances received from pre-sale of properties BUEENE BUFA 1,346,389 371,889 123,442
Amounts due to related companies ERBELANE 44(p)f) 2,016 211,152 263,939
Amount due to non-controlling interest RS TE 39(d) 153,885 - -
Notes payable NES: - - 137,937
Bank borrowings RTEE 31 184,623 303,660 327,718
Income tax payable ERMEH 57,450 - 2,986
Total current liabilities YL 1,987,144 1,165,133 1,057,233
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR BARR R

As at 31 March 2018 R-ZZ—/\F=H=+1+—H

At At At

31 March 31 March 1 April

2018 2017 2016

Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

(Restated) (Restated)

ZE-)\E “TtF “2-RF

\ ZA=+-H ZA=t-H MA—H

il TEn TAT TETL

(mE3)) (&E7))

Net current assets RBEERE 839,327 454,224 143,627

Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRHEE 5,249,216 4,809,950 4.932,013
Non-current liabilities FRBaE

Bonds payable &% 32 10,339 9,900 9,511

Deferred tax liabilities ELHERE 33 757,337 665,727 718,687

Bank borrowings RIEE 31 1,045,447 1,096,319 865,419

Total non-current liabilities FRYARAE 1,813,123 1,771,946 1,593,617

Net assets EERE 3,436,093 3,038,004 3,338,396

Capital and reserves attributable to owners of A2 FEEABERER #E

the Company

Share capital R 4 44,589 33,464 24,734

Reserves E1 3,353,019 2,972,886 3,273,899
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &7 7 &5 A i 3,397,608 3,006,350 3,298,633

Non-controlling interest PR 38,485 31,654 39,763
Total equity ERAE 3,436,093 3,038,004 3,338,396
On behalf of the Board REEES

Guo Jiadi Wang Chao
25 hn g IR
Director Director

BF EF

HE = EZERERDE 2017/185F & 1 01




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERBEH X

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ—-ZF

—NEFE=ZHA=+—HIEFE

Conversion (Accumulated Equity
Convertible Share  Share-based option/ Exchange losses)/  attributable to Non-
Share  Preference premium  compensation Capital Merger warrantsfluctuation Other Retained ownersof the  contralling
capital shares account reserve Tesenve resenve reserve reserve reserve eanings  Company interest Total
Notes HK$'000 HK'$000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000
IR AEE BRiE/ 2R ) FRFEEA
fus ERGE EXRDRE  EBRR &
Fi Tir
A1 Apiil 2016 HN-B-7ERA-R
(As previously reported) (FH8E) 24734 283858 3,640,011 1,824 8,837 - 9,261 (12,798 - (798,209) 3,097,518 28676 312619
Merger accounting restatement 2 - - - - - 236,386 - (8,522) - (27,249 201,115 11,087 212,202
At 1 April 2016 (Restated)
24,734 283858 3,640,011 1,824 8837 236,886 9,261 (81,320) - (825458) 3,298,633 39763 33383%
Loss for the year x 5 - - - - - - - - - (169,389) (169,389) (6,628) (176,017)
Other comprehensive income Efb2ENE - - - - - - - (161,894) - - (161,8%) (1481 (163375)
Total comprehensive income FENEEE - - - - - - - (161,894) - (169,389) (331,283) (8,109) (3393392
Equity-settled share-based transaction EZZEM G AEE
35 3 - - - 1,61 - - - - - - 161 - 1,611
Forfeiture of share option RRE - - - (133) - - - - - 133 - - -
Issue of ordinary share BIEER gl 1,600 - 35,789 - - - - - - - 37,389 - 37,389
Conversion of convertible preference & T/ KB %R
shares kA 7,130 (283,859) 276,128 - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer between reserves BE7mEE 37(ii) - - (3,640,117) - - - - - 1462,051 2,178,066 - - -
At 31 March 2017 (Restated) RZF-t£=h
=t-A(&E5) 33464 - 31241 3302 8,837 236,886 9,261 Qa3214) 1,462,051 1,183,352 3,006,350 31,654 3,038,004
Conversion Equity
Share  Share-based option/  Exchange attributable Non-
Share premium  compensation Capital Merger warrants  fluctuation Other Retained to ownersof  controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings  the Company interest Total
Notes HKS'000 HK'$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
NRAREE BRE/2R KAREEA
Bx  RHEER ZHERE s 1] AltRE RRRE EXRBRE RhiE REEA EEEE  FERES @it
FiEr 7 i FEr FEr FEx FEr FEr FEr FiEr FiEr FiEr
At 1 April 2017 (Restated)
33464 312411 3302 8,837 236,386 9,261 (243,214) 1,462,051 1,183,352 3,006,350 31,654 3,038,004
Profit for the year REFEF - - - - - - - - 156,326 156,326 4,494 160,820
Other comprehensive income E2Ek - - - - - - 270,612 - - 270,612 2331 272,949
Total comprehensive income 2EkELE - - - - - - 210,612 - 156,326 426,938 6,831 433,769
Equity-settled share-based transaction - - 760 - - - - - - 760 - 760
Issue of ordinary shares and cash BHARE
consideration of entities under RefE
common control 34(ii) 8,000 211,600 - - (331,040) - - - - (111,440) - (111,440)
Exercise of warrant shares frieAREERy 34(iv) 3,125 81,136 - - - (9.261) - - - 75,000 - 75,000
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=1-H 44,589 605,147 4,062 8,837 (94,154) - 21,398 1,462,051 1,339,678 3,397,608 38,485 3,436,093
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRNER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ—ZF— N \F=A=+—HILFZF

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000
(Restated)
—E-N\#F —t&F
FET FET
(geE5)
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHRERE
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETISE AR F, (E18) 251,833 (186,350)
Bank interest income RITH B WA (695) (1,736)
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BB REREBTE
equipment 2,145 2,100
Dividend income from listed investments EmEE ZREWMA (816) (899)
Finance costs A& KA 54,217 94,084
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - FE MRz W
equipment = (100) (57)
Impairment loss on properties held for sale  H{EHE ¥ 2 BEE1E 11,608 -
Interest income from debt securities BEBEEFBUWA (1,529) (4,259)
Interest income from loan receivables JEUWE A B U A (4,460) (15,076)
Interest income from deposit for REARBEFZEZESTE
subscription of exchangeable bonds WA - (14,282)
Interest income from financial assets at fair A FEGFABRZHEE
value through profit or loss ER B WA (26,660) (12,378)
Fair value (gain)/loss on investments held BIEEERENRFE (K
for trading wm) /B8 (21,013) 52,402
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment KREYENRFE (KE),/
properties &8 (2,796) 81,090
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at }E’AEF{E.#]\TE s WIEE
fair value through profit or loss N EEE (W) 8,920 (9,477)
Loss on early redemption of notes Tmiﬁﬁ EEEE - 5,025
Net realised gain on disposal of HEREEERECEE
investments held for trading W 558 (645) -
Share-based payment LA B& 1% E%SEZH%E\ 760 1,611
Effect of foreign exchange difference ERERECTE (6,541) (4,947)
Operating profit/(loss) before working LBESEEE L% G T
capital changes /(JEETE 264,228 (13,149)
Increase in properties under development FTEERTMERFELE
for sale and properties held for sale M (89,189) (49,066)
Increase in accounts receivable JE Wi BR FR3E hn (1,228) (1,741)
Increase in loan receivables JE W & 3R N (25,000) -
Increase in other receivables, deposits paid HibpEWE ENEe &
and prepayments TEAS SR IEIE h1 (940,728) (53,966)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable FERTBRFX CRA) /3N (38,229) 54,323
Increase in advances received from pre-sale B UK TEE ¥ % ~ FB UL K18 18
of properties hn 881,964 261,617
(Decrease)/increase in other payables, H A e 30 IE EHSUE?‘E&
deposits received and accruals FEEHER CRd ), /#hn (23,119) 45,069
HEZHERERAR  2017/18FHK 1 03




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000
(Restated)
—E-N\EF —ET—+tF
FET FET
(geE5)
Cash generated from operations KEMSRE 28,699 243,087
Income tax paid ERMEH (27,671) (16,378)
Net cash generated from operating RETHMBREFH
activities 1,028 226,709
Cash flows from investing activities RETBZRERE
Interest received 2 U FLE 695 1,736
Dividend income received from listed Bl EmRE 2R EWA
investments 816 899
Interest income received from debt B EBE 5 2 F B WA
securities 1,529 4,259
Interest income from loan receivables JEUE KA B UL A 9,696 9,269
Interest income from deposit for REARBRELF2ZESHE
subscription of exchangeable bonds W A - 12,310
Interest income from financial assets at fair ~ EZ QA F(EzF A8 2 BB E
value through profit or loss 2= B A 24,324 12,378
Decrease/(increase) in loans to third parties E=HEZRL, (Em) 271,138 (265,221)
Proceed from disposal of property, plant HEME BMENEZEZFT
and equipment 1FRIA 156 86
Proceed from disposal of investments held HERBEEEREZIER
for trading 15 60,000 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYHE HEMK (684) (789)
Payments to construction of properties ERERAYE AR
under development (16,285) (63,348)
Payments to construction of investment ERIEEWE AR
properties (12) (370)
Repayment from available-for-sale EEAHNERE
investments - 3,459
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZBME (FTA)RLSF
investing activities -6 351,373 (285,332)

China Sandi Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017/18



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRNER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—ZE-)N\F ZE—tF
FER FET
(geE5)
Cash flows from financing activities METHZ2RERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITEE 215 IAE 271,192 1,537,022
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEER (572,863)  (1,286,254)
Interest paid B AR B (80,080) (118,824)
Payment for early redemption of notes REPEBERERE 2 - (150,000)
Payment for the acquisition of entities Wi HL Rl I B B8 2 1 3K
under common control (111,440) -
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BITEBR TS HIE - 37,389
Proceeds from exercise of warrants TR R IE R 2 G RIA 75,000 -
Increase in amount due to non-controlling JE ) FE 12 AR 2 R IE S AN
interest 145,253 -
Changes in balance with related companies  EREE R 7] 7 4568 & 90,942 (351,789)
Net cash used in financing activities MEETBFAREFEHE (181,996) (332,456)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBELEEEM OF)
cash equivalents H 170,405 (391,079)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FYIzRekBEEEE
year 40,824 427,303
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEREGH 28 (9,607) 4,600
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FroRekBEEE 201,622 40,824
Analysis of balance of cash and MR zHe MIReFEHER
cash equivalents at end of period il
Bank and cash balances RITRIES &5 201,622 40,824

REZAZERERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
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GENERAL

China Sandi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and
Unit 3309, 33/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are engaged in property
development, holding of property for investment and
rental purpose in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and money lending business in Hong Kong.

MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT

On 15 December 2016, Fujian Sinco Industrial Co., Ltd.
("Fujian Sinco”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. ("Fuzhou Gaojia"), the vendor which is beneficially
owned by the common director, Mr. Guo lJiadi, entered into
agreements pursuant to which Fujian Sinco conditionally
agreed to acquire and Fuzhou Gaojia conditionally agreed
to sell each of 95% of equity interests of Fujian Jingdu
Land Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Jingdu”) and Xian Sandi Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Xian Sandi").

—RER
RE=EIZERBR AR ([AQF])
ARBREAMKY CEREERA
AlCEBROREBBERZFAEBRA
A ([BRAT]) Eme AR A 25
WMEE R BB 2 5 BT
M Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda & & /& T
7 38 1 168-2005% {5 /2 1 0 PH FE3318
3309F ¢

ARRIZEBRGRITREER HE
EMBARIEXEBANPEARHK
ME(THE ] YMEER FHERER
BRHERBRZMENRREBEBET
B

eHEtEEY
RZEBE-—XNE+_-_A+HB B
ERIBEEBRAR ([BRELE] A
ARrlzEE2ENBAR)EEM
SERMERZEERAA (BN
F AEH BAMRXARERMNES
N ERER )RR Bt @
BABMAEBREREREmMERMNSES
BHERELERERERBEXER AT
([BERE] ) ML=l E i EF
BERAR (AL =) & B /5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB R R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT

(continued)
Fujian Jingdu

On 26 May 2017, the Company completed its acquisition of
95% of equity interests of Fujian Jingdu.

The consideration for acquiring the Fujian Jingdu is
RMB455,816,462, which comprises RMB196,000,000
for acquiring 95% of the equity interests of Fujian Jingdu
("Fujian Equity Consideration”) and RMB259,816,462
for the entire amount of the loans owed by Fujian
Jingdu to Fuzhou Gaojia as at 31 October 2016 (“Fujian
Loan Consideration”). The Fujian Equity Consideration
was settled through the Company allotting and issuing
800,000,000 new shares at the issue price of HK$0.2745
each to United Century International Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI which is directly and wholly-owned
by Mr. Guo Jiadi, on 26 May 2017. Part of the Fujian Loan
Consideration was paid in cash by Fujian Sinco to Fuzhou
Gaojia for amounts of RMB150,000,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2017 and the remaining portion of
RMB109,816,462 was paid in May 2017.

2.

SHEEEYN (#)

BERHM
RZE—+FRARZ+/XB ARA
5T UK R 4R 12 S AT Y95 % AR A

WERERBIREAARK
455,816,462 EARA B ERAR
WHERERHISLREN AR
196,000,000 T ([t@E K ENRE])
R ZE—R"F+A=+—HRE
BREEIAENSELEARE
259,816,462 T E R ([FBEEK
RE]) EEREREEBARF
RZE—+FRHA -+ NBILET
B & M%0.2745/8 JLMUnited Century
International Limited (—ERREE
TEEFMAKZ AR BB NE
CEBEBEREZEHRR) KRBT RET
800,000,000 #T & 7 15 - F 18
BEFRRECHEREAMREE=ZT
—+tFZA=Z+—BLFEURSE
mEM s EZ 1 AR%150,000,000
TC AR T E D AK®109,816,462
TER-ZE—t+FRALN-

REZAZERERAR

2017/185F & 1 07



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
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MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT 2. BOtEEEYN (#)
(continued)
Xian Sandi A=

On 16 June 2017, the Company completed its acquisition of
95% of equity interests of Xian Sandi.

The consideration for acquiring the Xian Sandi is
RMB202,437,651, which comprises RMB95,000,000 for
acquiring 95% of the equity interests of Xian Sandi (“Xian
Equity Consideration”) and RMB107,437,651 for the entire
amount of the loans owed by Xian Sandi to Fuzhou Gaojia
as at 31 October 2016 (“Xian Loan Consideration”). Part
of the Xian Loan Consideration was paid in cash by Fujian
Sinco to Fuzhou Gaojia for amounts of RMB50,000,000
during the year ended 31 March 2017. The remaining
portion of RMB57,437,651 was paid in May 2017.

The directors of the Company have determined that the
application of merger accounting to the acquisitions of
Fujian Jingdu and Xian Sandi, being a business combination
involving entities under common control, under Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” (“AG 5") issued by the HKICPA, will provide
more relevant and useful information to financial statement
users as it better reflects the economic substance of the
transaction.

Under merger accounting, based on the guidance set out
in AG 5, the consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statement items of the combining entities
or businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

RoF—tFXA+AR AATR
P U B 752 = 3 995 96 4 <

WEALZ =B 2REAARE
202,437,65170 AR KER
% = 395 % A% # &9 A R #95,000,000
T(AZRERE]) ERZ=ZF—X
FHA=t+—HAZ-#EREMNS
4% ARM107,437,651 T E R
([AZERRE]) HrALXERK
BEHABEARREE-_Z—tF=
A=+—BLEFEUREABMNESE
£+ AR #50,000,0007T © £ & 5
AR ®57,437,651 T ER -2 —+F
AN

AAREERTE REELGMQ
R B B FT 8 51 55 [ KR Z
e asEstE]l (15185155
1) At e AR AR KERER
WRFAL =@ (B RARZES TR
ZEEAH) BRUBHRRERE
RUFELZHBALARNER FEE
ERRRH 2 EBEEY -

RiEAHEHE ENGFHESIE5%
Pr#iiEsl A BHmRREHFREAR
2HIEHBERAHERBIEH M
BHKRER  HMAAHERLER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB R R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT

(continued)
Xian Sandi (continued)

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. The assets and liabilities of
the acquired entities or businesses should be recorded at
the book values as stated in the financial statements of
the controlling party. No amount is recognised in respect
of goodwill or excess of acquirer's interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation
of the controlling party’s interest. The adjustments to
eliminate share/registered capital of the combining entities
or businesses against the related investment costs have been
made to merger reserves in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the prior years have been restated to include assets
and liabilities and the operating results of Fujian Jingdu and
Xian Sandi, as if these acquisitions had been completed
since the dates the respective entities or businesses came
under the control of Mr. Guo Jiadi. The consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 April 2016 and 31
March 2017 have been restated to adjust the carrying
amounts of the assets and liabilities of the Group, had been
in existence as at 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 as if
those entities or businesses were combined from the date
when they first came under the control of Mr. Guo Jiadi (see
below for the financial impacts).

2.

SHEEEYN (#)

BR=HE (&)
BHEBIEH 2 EEFETIRESR
HTZBRAREEAH AR RKEBE
BREHNEERABRIZRIEST
B 75 R 3% Pt B9 Bl D {EL B © PR32 5
NEREHRAED IR KRG
O E BB AR Y E
RIEBERBZAIBRIEE BER
FRBEZ A FERES LKA Z
NERTMNEE - ERGEEERE
TONAHHREREHERAEXHE 2K
/M AR EBREIRE KA 2 K
TR TR o

BEFENGAEREEMEZEKE
R REEREYPRAGEAESRE
REBEIFFARBERBEAL =B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=HA=+—HILFZF

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT 2.

(continued)

BHEFHEED (4

tREIHHEE T —LtF=H
—t+t—BUFEZGAEENEME

The effect of restatements described above on the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March EWRKREEBERIRZZEWT
2017 by line items is as follows:
Business
combination of
entities under
2017 common control 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Originally
reported) (Restated)
AREH
“TtF XBAH ZELF
TET TET FiEr
(RE2%) (BE75)
Revenue & 99,244 198,315 297,559
Cost of properties sold BEMERA - (208,300) (208,300)
Other income Ef A 48,625 110 48,735
Other net losses HtEEEE (52,402) - (52,402)
Fair value loss on an investment property ~ R& M%7 N FEER (81,000) - (81,090)
Fair value gain on financial assets BRATEF ARG BBEER
at fair value through profit or loss FEYE 9,477 - 9,477
Loss on early redemption of notes BEEESE Y EE (5,025) _ (5,025)
Staff costs BIARA (8,513) (5,421) (13,934)
Depreciation of property, plant and nE BEREGERE
equipment (785) (1,315) (2,100)
Other operating expenses EpSERY (50,505) (34,681) (85,186)
Finance costs BEARK (89,669) (4,415) (94,084)
Loss before income tax BREERAER (130,643) (55,707) (186,350
Income tax credit FEHEE 10,333 - 10,333
Loss for the year rEERHR (120,310) (55,707) (176,017)
Other comprehensive income, after tax, H&MEEHFIEZBR < Hith
that may be reclassified subsequently ~ 2E K MBRHE:
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign #ENEEBKES 7 EFZ5
operations (151,959) (11,416) (163,375)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZHKZAHE (272,269) (67,123) (339,392)
Loss attributable to: UTALEEER:
Owners of the Company RRaEERA (116,467) (52,922) (169,389)
Non-controlling interest JEIERRE (3,843) (2,785) (6,628)
(120,310) (55,707) (176,017)
Total comprehensive income UFATEEZEREAR:
attributable to: ‘
Owners of the Company RAFHEEA (266,802) (64,481) (331,283)
Non-controlling interest IR ER (5,467) (2,642) (8,109)
(272,269) (67,123) (339,392)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB R R

T \E= A=+ —HIFFE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT 2. BHERIEEN (&)
(continued)
The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement BIHR_-ZF —\EE ﬁ Bziza
of financial position as at 1 April 2016 is as follows: MR RZZENT
Business
At combination of At
1 April entities under 1 April
2016 common control 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Originally
reported) (Restated)
S HRE S
ZE-FN Bz —Z-RN4N
A—A EBEH A—H
T T TFEL
(REZ®) (gE35))
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment property REME 3,860,877 - 3,860,877
Property, plant and equipment nE BEREE 3,189 4,942 8,131
Properties under development BRAME - 250,531 250,531
Properties under development for sale BEERTNE - 477,594 477,59
Deposit for subscription of exchangeable ~ REBEAREESR 2 KE
honds 131,301 - 131,301
Deposit for properties under development ~ EEF Y% 2 %4 - 59,952 59,952
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 3,995,367 793,019 4,788,386
Current assets hBEE
Properties under development for sale and ~ FEEBRWERBELENE
properties held for sale - 519,203 519,203
Accounts receivable JEUEE X 3,975 - 3,975
Other receivables, deposits paid and EfofelE  EfRe RENK
prepayments B 17,596 10,875 28,471
Available-for-sale investments At HERE - 3,597 3,597
Investments held for trading BIEEERA 216,489 - 216,489
Amounts due from related companies ERBEEARNE 25,419 (24,198) 1,221
Pledged bank deposit BERARTER - 601 601
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHAeEE 387,187 40,116 427,303
Total current assets RBEEL®E 650,666 550,194 1,200,860
Total assets HEE 4,646,033 1,343,213 5,989,246
FEI=HZERERAT 2017/18F ] 1 1 1




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT

2. EEEEY (&

(continued)
Business
At combination of At
1 April entities under 1 April
2016 common control 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Originally
reported) (Restated)
S R S
“E-RFH B —EB-RFH
A—H EHak A—AH
FAL FAL T
(REZH) (& E5)
Current liabilities RBEE
Accounts payable RN 5,167 130,136 135,303
Other payables, deposits received and EthERTIE BhiRE REE
accruals F 49,225 16,683 65,908
Advances received from pre-sale of properties & B E W%z BRFE - 123,442 123,442
Amounts due to related companies ENBEARNE 719 263,220 263,939
Notes payable ENZEE 137,937 - 137,937
Bank borrowings RITEE 89,834 237,884 327,718
Income tax payable ERMEHR 3,049 (63) 2,986
Total current liabilities RBARAR 285,931 771,302 1,057,233
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/ () 3FE 364,735 (221,108) 143,627
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 4,360,102 571,911 4,932,013
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bonds payable EfER 9,511 - 9,511
Deferred tax liabilities ETHARR 718,687 - 718,687
Bank borrowings RITRE 505,710 359,709 865,419
Total non-current liabilities FRBAELE 1,233,908 359,709 1,593,617
Net assets BEFE 3,126,194 212,202 3,338,396
Capital and reserves attributable to A2 FEEARERARFE
owners of the Company
Share capital B 24,734 - 24,734
Reserves G 3,072,784 201,115 3,273,899
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ ARATHEE AEHER
Company 3,097,518 201,115 3,298,633
Non-controlling interest FERER 28,676 11,087 39,763
Total equity ERAR 3,126,194 212,202 3,338,396
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB R R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT

(continued)

The financial effect of the restatements to the Group's

equity on 1 April 2016 is summarised below:

2. a4tg

sHEES (4

BIHAEBR T RFOA—H
Mt 2 B BT

=

Business
At combination of At
1 April entities under 1 April
2016 common control 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Originally

reported) (Restated)
S R S
ZE- EN Bz ZE-NF[
A—A EBEH A—H
T T FET
(R%2%) 2]
Share capital BA 24,734 - 24,734
Convertible preference share AR ELR 283,858 - 283,858
Share premium account RinE B 3,640,011 - 3,640,011
Share-based compensation reserve IRDREE BERE 1,824 - 1,824
Capital reserve EARE 8,837 - 8,837
Merger reserve afEE - 236,886 236,886
Conversion option/warrants reserve iR/ AREEGE 9,261 - 9,261
Exchange fluctuation reserve e (72,798) (8,522) (81,320)
Accumulated losses 2iER (798,209) (27,249) (825,458)

Equity attributable to owners of the ~ ADFHEHE AELRER
Company 3,097,518 201,115 3,298,633
Non-controlling interest FEERER 28,676 11,087 39,763
Total @t 3,126,194 212,202 3,338,396

FEI=HZERERAT 2017/18F ] 1 1 3
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT 2. BOtEEEYN (#)

(continued)

The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2017 is as follows:

BIHR-_FT—tF=A=t—HZ
HAEMBIORKR ZTZENT

Business
combination of

31 March entities under 31 March
2017 common control 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Originally
reported) (Restated)
R
I ERC ZEtE
=F=1-H RBAH =R=1-H
T TAT &
(REZR) (E75))
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment property REMF 3,551,719 - 3,551,719
Property, plant and equipment nE BEREE 2,523 3,847 6,370
Properties under development BRAME - 305,736 305,736
Properties under development for sale BRERRTME - 435,524 435,524
Deposit for acquisition of companies - UNCd 6 225,506 (225,506) -
Deposit for properties under development  EEF £ 2% % - 56,377 56,377
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 3,779,748 575978 4,355,726
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development for sale and  FFEEETNERBELENE
properties held for sale - 609,521 609,521
Accounts receivable &R 5,441 - 5,441
Loan receivables EWE 259,332 - 259,332
Other receivables, deposits paid and el  ERRE RENK
prepayments B 28,008 60,153 88,161
Financial assets at fair value through BATEGANBRHBEE
profit or loss 142,777 - 142,777
Investments held for trading BIFEBERE 164,087 - 164,087
Amounts due from related companies ERBEEARNE 24,062 271,379 295,441
Income tax recoverable i E &R - 13,206 13,206
Pledged bank deposit BERRTER - 567 567
Cash and cash equivalents RehAeEE 24,673 16,151 40,824
Total current assets RBEEAE 648,380 970,977 1,619,357
Total assets HEE 4,428,128 1,546,955 5,975,083
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mE BB R R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT

2. EHEEEEY (#)

(continued)
Business
At combination of At
31 March entities under 31 March
2017 common control 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Originally
reported) (Restated)
N HEZH S
“TtF B2 TtF
ZA=t+-H EBa0 ZA=t-H
FEL FATL T
(RE2%) (& &5)
Current liabilities RBEE
Accounts payable RN 3,526 176,825 180,351
Other payables, deposits received and EthERHIE BhiRE REE
accruals F 35,752 62,329 98,081
Advances received from pre-sale of properties R FEEME 7 BU A - 371,889 371,889
Amounts due to related companies ENBEARNE 22,568 188,584 211,152
Bank borrowings RTRE 59,691 243,969 303,660
Income tax payable G 2,529 (2,529 -
Total current liabilities RBEEARE 124,066 1,041,067 1,165,133
Net current assets/(liabilities) THEE/ (8E)FE 524,314 (70,090) 454,224
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER 4,304,062 505,888 4,809,950
Non-current liabilities ¥RBaE
Bonds payable EfES 9,900 - 9,900
Deferred tax liabilities BEREAR 665,727 - 665,727
Bank borrowings RORE 735,510 360,809 1,096,319
Total non-current liabilities ¥RBaBAE 1,411,137 360,809 1,771,946
Net assets BERE 2,892,925 145,079 3,038,004
Capital and reserves attributable to ~ RAFEEARERARfE
owners of the Company
Share capital R 33,464 - 33,464
Reserves [ 2,836,252 136,634 2,972,886
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ AL T EHF AR ER
Company 2,869,716 136,634 3,006,350
Non-controlling interest FPERR 23,209 8,445 31,654
Total equity LT L 2,892,925 145,079 3,038,004

REZAZERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT 2. BOtEEEYN (#)

(continued)
BHEHEE—_TE—+F=A=1+—H
EFEAKE CSRERREFEE

The effect of the restatement on the Group’s basic and
diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2017

is as follow: ZREWMT:
2017
HK cents
—E—+tF
AL
Impact on basic and diluted loss per share ¥EREAXREBBEEB &
As originally stated R 53R (3.56)
Adjustment arising from exercise of warrants ITERIRHEE IR () EER AR
shares 0.12
Adjustment arising from business combination  HEZEHI 2 EB A HELA ZAE
under common control (0.60)
Restated =gl (4.04)

REREESRRRM B ETHT
RHFEEY -

Certain comparative figures have been restated
to conform with current year's classification and
presentation.
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The Group has adopted the following new or
revised HKFRSs (which include all HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") that are
relevant to its operations and effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017.

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised Losses

Annual Improvement Amendments to HKFRS 12,
to HKFRSs 2014- Disclosure of Interests in
2016 Cycle Other Entities

REBDRMATHEBSEED
~g ([BEGFEIE])HEM
HEASEZEAHELIN _-F
—tEFEMNA-ARZERFARZ
FEHRE R # ] HEMEFT
BEMBREEN BEMEE
BB HREER FB G EL
(&R £ REE-

BB g £ THRE
FIRAOEET R

BB g ER RAZRERER
FRNETA  EEFEHEE

BEMBREE BRAVBRIE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RAEBUBEREER ([F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") EBEREEmEER]) (&)
(continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — (a) HAFHITRIET BB

effective 1 April 2017 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the notes to the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Consistent
with the transition provisions of the amendments,
the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior year. Apart from the
additional disclosure in note 43(b), the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of
deferred tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments
measured of fair value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact
on these consolidated financial statements as the
clarified treatment is consistent with the manner in
which the Group has previously recognised deferred
tax assets.

HEA-R-ZF-—tFOEA-
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

(a)

(b)
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Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 April 2017 (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, to clarify
that the disclosure requirements of HKFRS 12,
other than the requirements to disclose summarised
financial information, also apply to an entity’s
interests in other entities classified as held for sale
or discontinued operations in accordance with
HKFRS 5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

The adoption of the amendment has no impact on
these consolidated financial statements.

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply
these changes on the date they become effective.

3.

RMEBVBREENN ([F
EMBHREEL]) (@)

(a)

(b)

R REIER] & BB |
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RIERT A RE M B 8 9 2
wE
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BB R ERE /N IR
DEE) BRBEMEREEL
F12RNERT A REMERDY
RERE BEREMBREE
AIFB 12RO BEBERE (RERH
BRI ZOELKEBRIN)  RRBE
BB R S ERIESY FE I
MEBEBENME RIS EBINE
ANERNEMERNDBERET
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RAEBUBEREER ([F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") EBEREEmEER]) (&)
(continued)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BHEMEMARER ZFHTRE

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

BAERMBREER (&)

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BEMBREEN BAMBREER
HKFRSs 20152017 Cycle ? s LT —2-RFE
T EEHN
FRE#?
Amendments to Classification and Measurement of BERBREER AROHEFRIZD
HKFRS 2 Share-Based Payment Transactions' F2RMEFTAR BREE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ EERBRELR SBTA
£9%
Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative BRMBRSEN RFEFFUR
HKFRS 9 Compensation? FORME TR B 1
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BANMBREEN RERPANZ
Customers' £155% Yzs!
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EEMBRERED KEEFANZME
Customers (Clarifications to FISHOETR  (BFEEUBR
HKFRS 15) ! ERAFE155)
HKFRS 16 Leases? ERUBHRELR HE
F165%
Amendments to Transfer of Investment Property ' BBEHEAB0 RANZER
HKAS 40 SN
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and BE (ARIBRE IMNERHRAERN
Advance Consideration’ 2BZEE) - HAE
RRE2

A5 (ABREBERE AEHEEN
ZEZEE) -  TEIW
BEE23R

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments?

! RZB-NF—-A—Raz&

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2018 Fil 86 2 5 E BAfE A 3
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 RZTE-—NF—A—B=zz’&
1 January 2019 Fil 86 2 5 E BAfE A 3

BB HEEAE25H 8915
X -LURGBNFRXZH DT
Kitg

A FER] AL R I R ER R IR
BB TS RBNRZEMES
FHRIEEHRE RS HEEIN
B RERNT: EABINHE

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification

and Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-
vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-
settled share-based payments; share-based payment

transactions with a net settlement feature for EFREE R AR R AR
withholding tax obligations; and a modification to MNRRZ A RX5ERHRE
the terms and conditions of a share-based payment REEE SEDREENURND S

BT 9 30 AR 5T -

that changes the classification of the transaction
from cash-settled to equity-settled.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BHEMEMARER ZFHITRE
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issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test)
are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if
the objective of the entity’s business model is both
to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and
to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading
at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments
are measured at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at
FVTPL replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39
and new general hedge accounting requirements
to allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the
amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. B EBUBEREERN([F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") EBEREEmEER]) (&)

(continued)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BHEMEMARER ZFHTRE

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at FVTOCI if specified
conditions are met — instead of at FVTPL.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of
the framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-steps
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and
quantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BHEMEMARER ZFHITRE
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issued but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations;
application of principal versus agent; licenses of
intellectual property; and transition requirements.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of
the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also,
the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify
its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. B EBUBEREERN([F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") EBEREEmEER]) (&)

(continued)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BHEMEMARER ZFHTRE

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40 - Transfer of
Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from
investment properties there must be a change
in use and provides guidance on making this
determination. The clarification states that a change
of use will occur when a property meets, or ceases
to meet, the definition of investment property and
there is supporting evidence that a change has
occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of
evidence in the standard as a non-exhaustive list,
thereby allowing for other forms of evidence to
support a transfer.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 - Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining
the date of the transaction for determining an
exchange rate to use for transactions that involve
advance consideration paid or received in a foreign
currency and the recognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability. The Interpretations
specifies that the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part thereof) is the date on which the
entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

ERIEBMBREER (&)
BB BT ERE05E LT
E-REYXER

ERTRE  REARBLHREY
X HasADBER X5
tEh A EE R IR - BB R
ERRBCEMENAHTE
NEaRBEMEEERERERHR
BlhoBERELE-

TR R R B R E
MBI Ei A B E
RNt E T

BB (BB HREe2EEEE)
FRREF225 — MR B RIAAE
ZRBIEERZ A8 UWEBE
P R ENREWINETFE B
URHERIFEEEENIFERR
BR3P i P O BEE K 1 4 45
Sl X BERE - BLEEE B R
REBEE FXXHBA (HH
h—80D ) R E A E X1 S &Y
REBH RERBEERAX
MRWE BN EMEENIEE
BEESFERREZH-

PE=ZEZERERDE 2017/185F & 1 23




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

RMEBVBREENN ([F
EMBHREEL]) (@)

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BHEMEMARER ZFHITRE
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issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance
over how to reflect the effects of uncertainty
in accounting for income taxes. Under the
Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether
to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately
or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity
shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have
full knowledge of all related information when
making those examinations. If the entity determines
it is probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or
the “expected value” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Assessment on the impact of amendments,
new standards and interpretations

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and interpretations is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far the Group
has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected
impacts are discussed below. As the assessment
completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, the actual impacts
upon the initial adoption of the standards may
differ, and further impacts may be identified before
the standards are initially applied in the Group’s
interim financial report for the six months ending
30 September 2018. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition
options, until the standards are initially applied in
the financial report.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. B EBUBEREERN([F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") EBEREEmEER]) (&)

(continued)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BHEMEMARER ZFHTRE

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

Assessment on the impact of amendments,
new standards and interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, HKAS
39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement. The Group plans to use the
exemption from restating comparative information
and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 April
2018. Expected impacts of the new requirements on
the Group’s financial statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group has assessed that its financial
assets currently measured at amortised cost
and FVTPL will continue with their respective
classification and measurements upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9.

The Group does not have any financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore
the new requirement may not have any impact
on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.

(b) Impairment

The Group expects that the application of the
expected credit loss model will result in earlier
recognition of credit losses.
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1 26 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

Assessment on the impact of amendments,
new standards and interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's
accounting as a lessee of leases for offices which
are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is
expected to lead an increase in both assets and
liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the statement of profit or
loss over the period of the lease. As at 31 March
2018, the Group had non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$327,000 as set out in
note 41. The interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset under HKFRS 16 will replace the rental charge
under HKAS 17. The operating lease commitments
as shown in off balance sheet item will be replaced
by “right-of-use asset” and “lease liability” in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group. Other than the above, the Group does not
anticipate that the application of this standard will
have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

The standard will be mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date. The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach
and will not restate comparative amounts for the
year prior to first adoption.

Except the possible impacts of adoption of HKFRS
9 and 16 as discussed above, the Group is not
yet in a position to state whether the other new
pronouncements will result in substantial changes
to the Group’s accounting policies and financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB R R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs
and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except
for investment properties and certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

4. RBEE

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 5.

(a) Business combination and basis of

FTESTRE
(a) XBEHRGEEE

1 28 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
of the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment on the asset transferred, in which
case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to the
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair
value. The Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interest that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB R R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 5. TESFBEER (&)
(continued)
(a) Business combination and basis of (a) ¥BEAGHHEGEEE(£H)

consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair
value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified
as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or
loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities
were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interest that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such
non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interest even if
this results in those non-controlling interest having a
deficit balance.

WeiE 77 5 T 885 2 (T SRR B
RWEBEHz A EER - HRR
HREZARERARRENG
B8 (RERKE A HE 1218
A)AMBESHERRNEERRZ
DR Z F# B B 7 B R
RoDBEREEKBBEZHARN
BB EMERRAES N RS
RFER ©

REBNHIE A RS 2 EEIN
TEBMAREZFIRE AR BHE
mR 5 o N E R M IF A
B®ZREES T AEE  ARBR
HEERMBARZ AR
HE) - AR RER S
BRSSP B A EZ A
EZR CHEERENERER URE
RARRBEAB A

BAREEKREMWE QRS
By 5 P A M S B 1R /S A
TWEZZE: \BERREZA
FEEEAREERDZ AFE
ZHRER (DM B AR 2 EE
(BEBE) LA BERTMIEE
P 2 BAEREE - AERE
b EERRENBARE
B8z 2 RAIAMER T AR
WHEBEEXABDRLE-

Wig g JRim iz (BB A
RlzRBEHAERED) ZRHE
RNTHERE 2D S
FEREEEE R RS
g AEemimARERBNIE
TR R IR G E Bk S IR
s R EBA SRR AR T
N

REZAZERERAR

2017/185F & 1 29



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

(b) Merger accounting for business combination

(c)

1 30 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from
the controlling party’s perspective. No amount is
recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase
gain at the time of common control combination,
to the extent of the continuation of the controlling
party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of
the combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the entities
or businesses had been combined at the end of the
previous reporting period or when they first came
under common control, whichever is shorter.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control
is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB R R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ—ZF— N \F=A=+—HILFZF

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 5. TESETEE (&)

(continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment d) Y% BEREE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes
its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its present working
condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment other than
construction-in-progress are depreciated so as to
write-off their cost or valuation net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Furniture, office equipment and 5-10 years

motor vehicles

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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e MR RN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

(e)

U]

1 32 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

Investment properties

Investment properties are property held either to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties are measured at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently at fair value with any
change therein recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of assets other than financial
assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs to sell and value in use) of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB R R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

()

(9)

Impairment of assets other than financial
assets (continued)

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derives from the asset or cash
generating unit, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risk specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group's net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets at their fair value or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding lease commitment is shown as
a liability. Lease payments are analysed between
capital and interest. The interest element is charged
to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant
proportion of the lease liability. The capital element
reduces the balance owed to the lessor.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

(9)

(h)

1 34 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Properties under development for sale and
properties held for sale

Properties under development for sale and
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
is determined by reference to the sale proceeds of
properties sold in the ordinary course of business
under prevailing market conditions, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs
to completion.

Development cost of property comprises cost of
land use rights, construction costs, depreciation
of machinery and equipment, borrowing costs
capitalised for qualifying assets and professional
fees incurred during the development period.
On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as
current assets unless the construction period of the
relevant property development project is expected
to be completed beyond normal operating cycle.
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mE BB R R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

(i) Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for
which the asset was acquired. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and all other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. A regular way purchase or
sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

Investments held for trading

These assets include financial assets held for
trading. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract
may be designated as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

1 3 6 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise
principally through the provision of goods
and services to customers (trade debtors), and
also incorporate other types of contractual
monetary assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they
are classified as non-current.

Financial assets are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition
when:

- the financial assets are managed,
evaluated and reported internally on a
fair value basis; and

—  the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the discrepancies in the
recognition or measurement of relevant
gains or losses arising from the different
basis of measurement of the financial
assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (continued)

If the financial assets contain one or more
embedded derivatives, they are designated as
at fair value through profit or loss unless:

— the embedded derivatives does not
significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise be required under the
contract; or

- it is clear with little or no analysis when
a similar hybrid (combined) instrument
is first considered that separation of the
embedded derivatives is prohibited.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset is
impaired. Financial asset is impaired if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset and that
event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include:

—  significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

—  granting concession to a debtor because
of debtor’s financial difficulty;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or reorganisation.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(iii)

1 38 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

For loan and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the financial asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. When any part of
financial asset is determined as uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account
for the relevant financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group has one category of financial
liabilities being financial liabilities at amortised
costs. These liabilities, including accounts
payable, other payables and accruals, bank
borrowings, bonds and notes payable
and amounts due to related companies
and non-controlling interest, are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable transaction costs incurred and
are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares in which the
Group has no contractual obligation to redeem
and will only be converted to the Group’s own
equity instruments, which is classified as equity
items and measured at fair value at initial
recognition.

When the convertible preference shares are
converted, the convertible preference shares
are transferred to ordinary share capital and
share premium. Transaction costs relating to
issuance of the equity instrument are charged
directly to equity.

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

5. FESHEE (#)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=HA=+—HILFZF

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 5. TESFBER (&)
(continued)
(i) Revenue recognition () WasmEs

Was A W BIRREZ 2 F
BEtE -WHEIAEFEFPRE
B B At R B A 1 L F0ORL

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customers returns and other
similar allowances:

(i)  Revenue from properties under development () FEBRPYERSELD
for sale and properties held for sale in the EMENRAENEER
ordinary course of business is recognised when NEmBE#DER B
the properties are delivered and titles have TR K R SR
been passed, at which the following conditions
are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer s AEEBYIXMBRE
the significant risks and rewards of E’]Ejﬁﬂ N 0] R e

ETEXR EBEY

ownership of the properties, which

is when the construction of relevant

%L‘“*% AR

properties has been completed upon R 78 A K W B 48
delivery and collectability of related FEUR FRIBES
receivables is reasonably assured;

e the Group retains neither continuing AEETEEEEY

managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the properties sold;

ERE—REHEAE
HMENSEEREZ
B REREEHLY

BRI

e the amount of revenue can be measured WA 2 FERES ] SE 5t
reliably; =i

e it is probable that the economic benefits B 58 Ba &R
associated with the transaction will flow mIRA A RERARE
to the Group; and IR

e the costs incurred or to be incurred MRXHEEENBE
in respect of the transaction can be B B B AN BE AT S AT
measured reliably. go

Deposits received on properties sold prior to

WARER B AL E B EE YK

the date of revenue recognition are included BEREREaMERARFT AR
in the consolidated statement of financial FEE-
position under current liabilities.

(i) Rental income from properties letting under (i) KEMHEBETHEADMEZ

HeEWARBRZEIZNEE
FHIRER

operating leases is recognised on a straight
line basis over the lease terms;
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

()]

(k)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)  Property management income and related fee
is recognised when the services are rendered,;

(iv) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the
effective interest rates applicable; and

(v) Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment is
established.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it/they operate(s)
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=HA=+—HILFZF

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 5. FESHEE (#)
(continued)
(k) Foreign currencies (continued) (k) ¥ (&)
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On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the rates approximating to
those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interest as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in
profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated
as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

V)

(m)

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees
render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related

service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees
and others providing similar services, the fair value
of the options at the date of grant is recognised
in profit or loss over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase in the employee share
option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at
the end of each reporting period so that, ultimately,
the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting
period is based on the number of options that
eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are
factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a
market vesting condition.
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5. FESHEE (#)

U]

(m)

BERF

(i) EHESHEF
R EB RN SENE
SRHEEERE 2 FER
EHMREBET @ ARKE
gz EERMN (BB
Eﬂ%%)ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬂ
NEBRHEBRE 2 F
J_£ W EE 27 °

EHEHFR I E
8 BETORKFEMED
e RNE BRI
R W as RIER B

(i)

(iii) BEBEEFI
BEBEANAEET B
BUH 2 3% 5 18 F By ) K
SEER S AT BERAR
Mz BEAKAE (LARF

ERE)
R GBHEE AR

fidf (A1 B Ko LA 1R AR AR 75 2
AR BRSO - R I X

HEBZ AT EREBHANER
mAMER - MDA MERBR

RIS RGN - 3B B
REREPRERB THE 2R

ATEHE  SIEm5EHRRMT
%FEW BUE AR R B I fE

RZBRA2BIRBERREBZ

%k%%ﬁ 8o MG RE R
E%A%%ﬁ%h% NEZE

BRI - R B P A H b 5R 8 5R{T
BER BITmERERT SR

BRI E R - fHRREZE
HMIZRB RN TERERG
GE

REZAZERERAR

2017/185F & 1 43



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

(m) Share-based payments (continued)

(n)

(o)

1 44 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

Fair value is measured using the Option Pricing Model.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other
than employees and others providing similar services,
the fair value of goods or services received is recognised
in profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity
is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which will
probably result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 5. TESETEE (&)

(continued)

(p) FREH

(p) Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Except for goodwill and recognised assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at
the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=HA=+—HILFZF
5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 5. TESFEE (&)
(continued)
(p) Income taxes (continued) (p) PR (&)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable ELEBIBAESRAME AR
temporary differences arising on investments in REMELERRGERZRME
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to R M AR A BR B BE SR I R
control the reversal of the temporary difference and BB AEREEITENAR
it is probable that the temporary difference will not 7% 2 38 [0 BI E B 3

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except ﬁﬁ SH IR ERm R R - MR AT
when they relate to items recognised in other SRR E M 2 E KSR 2 IE
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are E BRERIRIN ERBERT
also recognised in other comprehensive income or TEIRR Efh 2 E UL aR FE AR - S e
when they related to items recognised directly in HRNEREERRAZIEE G
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised BTGB i E iR o

directly in equity.

(q) Related parties (q) BEAL
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s (@ WEBUTAL BIZAL
family is related to the Group if that person: HEALTZHEBEREE
B#AE

() has control or joint control over the (i) 1EHIs R H A s
Group; ;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; (il HAEEBEAFTE
or 7753

(i) is a member of key management (i) WAEEXANATRE
personnel of the Group or the Company’s RAIZEEZEREN
parent. 8o

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) WG T & B
following conditions apply: EREARNEEFRE:

() The entity and the Group are members of () ZEROAXEEER
the same group (which means that each — 5B 2KERA
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is (BNEEAF-WEA
related to the others); GIAEEY01=NGIE

sLE A REE)

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture (il —"REBRSERE
of the other entity (or an associate or ZHENTREE D
joint venture of a member of a group of Z(XE5—EBRK
which the other entity is a member); BRAIZEEE T

BRElzHE REY
BERE):
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ—ZF— N \F=A=+—HILFZF

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

(continued)

(g) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply: (continued)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates

6.

BA 52 = 5t F BT K (G5 R REE
AEZ2EERR

%%F’gﬁﬁﬁ’il/’\ﬂrﬁl R ZBLR
EEEEMIRRMEL 2 EERRER
ﬁﬁ{’ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ fat RR&R - ZF R
At RABBRRIREEAELR ARG
RzEBRA B T HEEMRER
REEMEL -BERERISHHRN

ZEGHF-

A& B R E RS ARG RAERRR
Reg: ﬂEquZ“@JZZD{%??’E;?,\ :

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is ﬁ'Jﬁ?ﬁ L ETE BN E MR
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the MBI 2T EEHRIE
period of the revision and future periods if the revision HifE BB st s 28N E SR

affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year are discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

Management estimates the expected useful lives for
its property, plant and equipment and determines
the related depreciation policy. The estimated useful
life of the property, plant and equipment and the
residual value reflects management’s estimates of
the number of years that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of
property, plant and equipment. It could change
significantly as a result of technological innovations
in response to industry cycles. The depreciation
expenses in future accounting periods may be
adjusted if there are significant changes in those
estimates.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b) Recoverability of accounts, loan and other

(c)

receivables

Recoverability of the accounts, loan and other
receivables are reviewed by management based on
the receivables’ aging characteristics, management
evaluation of the current creditworthiness and
past collection history of each customer and
debtor. Judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, and the
financial conditions of the customers and debtors
may undergo adverse changes since the last
management evaluation. If the financial conditions
of the customers and debtors were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional provision may be required in
future accounting periods.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer. In determining the fair value,
the valuer has based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates of market
conditions. In relying on the valuation report,
the directors have exercised their judgements
and are satisfied that the assumptions used in
the valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions would
result in changes in the fair value of the investment
properties and the corresponding adjustment to
the amount of gain or loss would be recognised in
profit or loss.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(d) Net realisable value of properties under

(e)

1 50 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

development for sale and properties held for
sale

Properties under development for sale and
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
the cost and net realisable value. Based on the
experience of the directors of the Company and
the nature of the subject properties, the directors
of the Company determine the net realisable
value of properties under development for sale
and properties held for sale by reference to the
estimated market prices of the properties under
development for sale and properties held for sale,
which takes into account a number of factors
including the recent prices of similar property
types in the same project or by similar properties,
and the prevailing real estate market conditions in
the PRC. The directors of the Company estimate
the future cost to completion of the properties
under development by reference to the actual
development cost of other similar completed
projects of the Group, adjusted by certain current
market data.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, impairment
loss of HK$11,608,000 has been made in the
consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (2017: HK$Nil).

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of properties
under development for sale and properties held for
sale amounted to approximately HK$1,249,179,000,
net of write-down of HK$11,608,000 (2017: carrying
amount of HK$1,045,045,000, net of write-down of
HK$Nil) in the PRC.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The
PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of
the sales of properties less the estimated deductible
expenditures, the cost of land use rights and all
relevant property development expenditures.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(e) PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") (continued)

()

Significant judgment is required in estimating the
amounts of land appreciation and the applicable
land appreciation tax rate due to the uncertainty
of proceeds of sales of properties and deductible
expenditures.

However, the implementation and settlement of
the tax varies amongst different tax jurisdictions
in various cities of the PRC and certain projects of
the Group have not finalised their LAT calculations
and payments with any local tax authorities in
the PRC. The amount of the land appreciation
is determined with reference to proceeds of the
sales of properties less the estimated deductible
expenditures, including the cost of land use rights
and all relevant property development expenditures.
The Group recognised the LAT based on the
management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome
could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and these differences will impact
the income tax expense and the related income
tax provisions in the periods in which such tax is
finalised with local tax authorities.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions and deferred
taxation involves judgement on the current and
future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The Group carefully evaluates tax implications
of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislations.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 6.
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(g) Fair value measurement (99 RFHEFE

1 52 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group's financial statements require measurement
at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far
as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised are (the “fair value
hierarchy”):

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from

market data).
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 6. BEISTHERMATIEE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION REZFTERIR (2
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(g) Fair value measurement (continued) (9) AFEEFE(E)

The classification of an item into the above levels DEIEEE LMERTIEREG A

is based on the lowest level of the inputs used BB REER  BEHIER

that has a significant effect on the fair value ZAVEFEEEATE-IAR

measurement of the item. Transfers of items RN AR 2 B 7 5 3% A HR R

between levels are recognised in the period they HER o

occur,

The Group measures a number of items at fair REBEAFEFES TEE

value:

e Investment properties (note 20); o BEWE (KIFF20) :

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or e BAVEFABZZIVHG
loss (note 26); &E (MIsE26) ¢

e Investments held for trading (note 27); and o HEEFERE (M7E27)

4

e Equity-settled share-based transactions (note s HmABEURMHAEEZ
36). X5 (Hi5E36) °

For more detailed information in relation to the fair E@LMIEE AT EFAECES

value measurement of the items above, please refer HHER FE2EEBME-

to the applicable notes.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. EXEBER
The Group's objective of managing capital are to AEEZERAEEBBRRBRALE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going BERFERERE N M ARRTRE
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders Wk RBEMAREEE RN I
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an RIFREEREEAREE R -
optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital. There WEHRRZEARNERBE KRB RIT &
was no change in capital management policies and 2o
objectives from prior periods.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, REBZERERBES (BEMRT
comprising bank borrowings and bonds payable disclosed BTR2FABBE 2 RITIEE A RER
in notes 31 and 32, cash and cash equivalents and B) MIs28k27Fi B2 HE & &
investments held for trading as disclosed in note 28 and REFELAFIEFEEREARAER
27 and total equity, comprising share capital, retained (BRERKIE34R3I7TA DRI E 2 K
earnings and reserves as disclosed in notes 34 and 37 RREBEA L GEE) BB
respectively.
The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows: REEBZEERBLLENT :
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
(Restated)
—E-N\E —TE—+F
FET FET
(geE7)
Net debts FEERS 913,042 1,204,968
Total equity MR 3,436,093 3,038,004
Net debts to equity ratio FEBE R R 27% 40%
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 8. MKEMmEE

Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and
currency risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investments in other entities.

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

AEEMAHEERR RBESRA
@ FRERREERRINAEE
ZEHEXBGARTEL -AKHEITE
HRNEMERETRAREMSRZ
P B 5 LR -
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8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 8. BIKERERE &)
(a) Credit risk (a) =ERR

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposit,
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, loan
receivables, other receivables and amounts due from
related companies except for prepayments, present
the Group with credit risk regarding its financial
assets. The maximum exposure is the carrying
amounts of the respective financial assets at the end
of reporting period. The Group has a concentration
of credit risk in relation to certain of its major
customers and loan receivables.

The Group has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit risk is managed through the
application of credit approvals, credit limits and
monitoring procedures. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade, loan and other receivables at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for balances with
recoverability problem.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and debtor. The default risk of the
industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. At the end of reporting period, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
accounts, loan and other receivables are set out in
notes 23, 24 and 25.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which comprise pledged bank deposit and
cash and cash equivalents, is limited because the
counterparties are banks with sound credit-ratings.

EERRTER B LkReF
B EUWRRT - BB ER Hib
& W3R TR I E W B Bk 2 B SRR
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8.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 8. MBEMEE &)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBESRAR
Individual operating entities within the Group AEBEANZERIKEEREAEST
are responsible for their own cash management, BEHERSEESEE BiER®
including the short term investment of cash B RHREREREEAE
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected NERReF K AEEBBE
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent TR TE 2 AR - RIZBRF R
company’s board when the borrowings exceed RIESGHERAFEE - AE
certain predetermined levels of authority. The ErBERREREERDESS
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity KA R MR AT B SR & BBy
requirements and maintains sufficient reserves of ARMiG L2 RNBHFHE A
cash and readily realisable marketable securities ENEHERERSDEST K-
to meet its liquidity requirement in the short and
longer term.
The following table details the remaining contractual TRAVNREBEZ FETEMBE
maturities at the end of reporting period of the BERMEB R FIHRE L EIR -
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which DIREBEEORMRREERE (8
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows BAEONE (nEZ L - Al
(including interest payments computed using BBERBRERRZIBITHE) #
contractual rates, or if floating, based on current BB ) RAEBEHE
rates at the end of reporting period) and the earliest KB 2 &FHEFHI -
date the Group can be required to pay.
Total More than  More than
contractual Within 1year  2years but
Carrying undiscounted ~ 1yearor  less than lessthan ~ More than
amount  cashflow ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 year
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
CE
ABRRE  -ER -F% [k
BEE  REAR EZx  EREA  BIER i34
FEn Féx FEn Fixn FEn FEn
2018 ZE-)\E
Accounts payable ET& 159,307 159,307 159,307 - - -
Other payables and accruals RN B REHER 63,802 63,802 63,802 - - -
Amounts due to related companies  FEREE A 778 2,016 2,016 2,016 - - -
Amount due to non-controlling EfERERTA
interest 153,885 153,885 153,885 - - -
Bank borrowings BITfEE 1230070 1,593,256 311,111 307,164 586,158 388,823
Bonds payable EffE# 10,339 12,010 710 11,240 - -
1619419 1,984,276 690,891 318,404 586,158 388,823
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8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 8. BIKERERE &)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBESRAR (£)
Total More than  More than
contractual Within Tyear 2 yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than ~ More than
amount  cashflow  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 year

HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
&8
ARERE AR i MER
FHE  RELE EZk  BRER  HIER nER
TR T AT FET T TET
(E3) (BE3) (BE7) (B E7) (B E5) (BE5)

2017 ZE-tf
Accounts payable ERER 180,351 180,351 180,351 - - -
Other payables and accruals Hioeft B R et B 85,914 85,914 85,914 - - -
Amounts due to related companies  FEREE A 778 211,152 21,152 211,152 - - -
Bank borrowings BEE 1,399,979 1,825,645 447,763 257,701 649,708 470,473
Bonds payable Eff s 9,900 12,780 770 770 11,240 -
1,887,29 2,315,842 925,950 258471 660,948 470,473
(c) Interest rate risk (o RNEE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from REE 2 F =@ E 2R B
bank borrowings and bonds payable as disclosed 31ENDRIEEZRITEEMNR
in notes 31 and 32 respectively. These financial REMES ZEFer T ARE
instruments issued at fixed rates expose the EFEET BHRAEEAZR
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group FEM R - R AEE L&
has no cash flow interest rate risk as there are no REBNEFBZEBE BT &
borrowings which bear floating interests rates. The EXBRERENERR KNEE
Group has not used any financial instruments to I AR A Al & g T H A=
hedge potential fluctuation in interest rates. BT E -

PE=ZEZERERDE 2017/185F & 1 57




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

8.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Currency risk

(e)

1 58 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most
of the transactions denominated and settled in
Renminbi (“RMB"”) which is not freely convertible
into other foreign currencies. Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries of the Company transact in their
functional currency and therefore no currency risk
is expected to arise in respect of these subsidiaries.
The Company’s financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"”) and fluctuations
of RMB against HK$ will result in adjustment to
financial amounts. The Group currently does not
utilise any forward contracts, currency borrowings
or other means to hedge against its foreign currency
exposure.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from equity instruments classified as
investments held for trading. All of these
investments are listed. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to equity price risk due to the fluctuation
of fair value of investments held for trading.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy
and sell securities are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of individual securities compared
to that of the Index and other industry indicators,
as well as the Group’s liquidity needs. The Group
would closely monitors the market condition of
listed securities and regularly reviews the exposure
to the equity price risk on investments held for
trading.

8.
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8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(e) Equity price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis on equity price risk includes
the Group’s financial instruments, which fair
value or future cash flows will fluctuate because
of changes in their corresponding or underlying
asset’s equity price. If the price of the investments
held for trading had been 10% higher/lower,
profit (2017: loss) for the year would increase/
decrease by HK$12,575,000 (2017: decrease/
increase by HK$16,409,000) and reserves would
increase/decrease by HK$12,575,000 (2017:
HK$16,409,000).

9. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents income generated from the principal
activities of the Group. Revenue and other income
recognised during the year are as follows:

8. HM¥EKRER#)
(e) RERMR (&)
HBE DT
RERRBRESTBIEAEE
ST A EQAFESAKES
REGRHEMARERESAEEE
REZEBMEE - WFIERS
BEBEIIRERS, THK10%  FA
B (ZE—tFEE)
hn,/S#A412,575,00008 T (—ZF
—+tF R 116,409,000
BL) EEEEEM R
12,575,000 7T (ZE —tF:
16,409,000/ 7T) °

9. WHERHEMKA
WHIEREAEBFEER ZWA -
RAFEER 2 Wam REIk A
T

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
(Restated)
—EF-N\E —T—tF
FET T
(g&E7))
Revenue W e

Rental income Hae A 53,735 44,730

Property management and related fee #) 2% 2 LiEMEE AU A
income 59,709 54,514
Sale of properties MEHE 594,250 198,315
707,694 297,559
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9. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued) 9. hmRHEMBA &)
2018 2017
HK$"000 HK$°000
(Restated)
—ZE-N\F —ET—+F
FER FET
(ge=E7))
Other income EigA
Bank interest income RITH B UA 695 1,736
Dividend income from listed EWREZREWA
investments 816 899
Gain on disposal of property, plant TEME  WME KEE 2 WS
and equipment 100 57
Interest income from debt securities BRFEHZFBIA 1,529 4,259
Interest income from loan receivables & U & 3 > ) 2 U A 4,460 15,076
Interest income from deposit for REBOIRBER LS B
subscription of exchangeable bonds A - 14,282
Interest income from financial assets XA F(EF ABFZ 2 HHBEE
at fair value through profit or loss F B U A 26,660 12,378
Exchange gain, net SN U 25 % R 25,222 -
Others HAb 227 48
59,709 48,735
10. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 10. 2 PER
The Group determines its operating segments based on AEERBEKIEZLERARESRH
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision- WE(AREERATE) BEHK
maker that are used to make strategic decisions. D ER o
The Group has identified two reportable segments, REBECHRMREZRT®RE DA
the business of property development and property MEZRLMERE - A THMAE
investment. The following summary describes the ERETHREDH 255

operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

e Property development business: development and s WMEXERER MEBRNHEE
sale of properties

e Property investment business: letting properties and o WEREBEXER: HEMEREMH
providing property management services MEE IR R
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10. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 10. 7 &RER (#)
During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, there HE_Z-\FRZZTE—tF=H
are no inter-segment transactions made. Central revenue _+ HiEFE - I,\\\LTTET—J’\*
and expenses are not allocated to the operating segments R -FRKWXTBREIESREL
as they are not included in the measure of the segments’ 28 RERENEDHEF
profit/(loss) that is used by the chief operating decision- (JESTEM,\EE;&%LR %%E{‘aﬁ& b2}
maker for assessment of segment performance. BRIV AR AZFIER ©
(i) Business Segments (i) XKoI
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue L‘ATE&?&@. AT HmEDEE
and results by operating and reportable segments: DZAREBEW S REE DT
Property development
business Property investment business Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
(Restated) (Restated)
NERRER NEREERK h
“E-N\f ZE-t%5 ZEB-N\f ZZ-+t§ ZB-N\Ff CZE-if
FEn ?/575 FEn FATL Thrx FET
(mE5)) (mE5))
Revenue from: Wi
External sales HoNEE 594,250 198,315 113,444 99,244 707,694 297,559
Inter-segment sales HHFEHE - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue BYRENDUE 594,250 198,315 113,444 99,244 707,694 297,559
Reportable segment gain/(loss) ATHREDPhE
(&#) 169,560 (63,537) 30,027 (57,027) 199,587 (120,564)
Interest revenue FlakE 229 652 4,051 16,135 4,280 16,787
Interest expense MEx (5,345) (4,415) (47,664) (70,584) (53,009) (74,999)
Depreciation ik (1,393) (1,076) (292) (315) (1,685) (1,391)
Income tax (expense)/credit FER (%) 8% (76,362) - (14,651) 10,333 (91,013) 10,333
Impairment on properties held for ~ H{ELENE 7 FE
sale (11,608) - - - (11,608) -
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment &Y% 2 A FERE/
properties (B - - 2,79 (81,090) 2,79 (81,090)
Asset and liabilities information =~ ZEREBEZEH
Segment assets PHEE 2,902,495 1,571,384 3,976,375 4,069,772 6,878,870 5,641,156
Addition to non-current assets REERDEE 35,582 78,506 12 572 35,594 79,078
Segment liabilities AHEE (2,175.244)  (1,407,001)  (1,608,710)  (1,493202)  (3,783,954)  (2,900,203)
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10. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment

10. 7 HER (#)
(i) AFBESPWE -B% &

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities EREEZHE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000
(Restated)
—E-N\EF —ET—+tF
FET FAT
(#&&E7)
Revenue W &8
Reportable segment revenue AT HE D K= 707,694 297,559
Elimination of inter-segment E 58 > 2B R U &R
revenue - -
Consolidated revenue ZEE U 707,694 297,559
Profit/(loss) before income tax KBFFEHRAIER (EHE)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 78 F & o 26& F,(E8) 199,587 (120,564)
Fair value gain/(loss) on BIEEEREZ AT ERKE
investments held for trading (E8) 21,013 (52,402)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial RAFEFFABRZMBEEER
assets at fair value through FE(EE), W
profit or loss (8,920) 9.477
Finance costs BB B A (1,208) (19,085)
Loss on early redemption of notes 2R IE O ZEE 7 F18 - (5,025)
Interest income from deposit for FREE A (S 5 2 12 & F B WA
subscription of exchangeable
bonds - 14,282
Interest income from financial WA EFABT 2 BEEER
assets at fair value through Bl A
profit or loss 26,660 12,378
Interest income from loan R E R 2 A B A
receivables 866 -
Exchange gain/(loss), net bE W et (518 ) 558 25,222 (11,500)
Net realised gain on disposal of HEFIEEERE 2D E BN
investments held for trading Pk 645 -
Unallocated corporate income KA A RWA 2,355 5,191
Unallocated corporate expenses K7 Bt A 7l X (14,387) (19,102)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before K FT1SFi B S R4 & 5% F
income tax expense (E8) 251,833 (186,350)
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10. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 10. 2 WBEHR (&)

(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment (i) BETHEsMBUE B &
revenue, profit or loss, assets and ERBEBEZHER (&)
liabilities (continued)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-N\E —E—+F
FET FET
(&=7))
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets BAYREDILEE 6,878,870 5,641,156
Cash at bank RITIE 2 59,993 4,544
Investments held for trading BEEEERSE 125,745 164,087
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABEZUBEE
through profit or loss 133,857 142,777
Loan receivables FEWE X 25,000 -
Unallocated corporate assets Ao ARIEE 12,895 22,519
Consolidated total assets LEBEERE 7,236,360 5,975,083
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities BFREDIEE 3,783,954 2,900,203
Amount due to a related company  FE <t — 81 B8 3 A &) 5K I8 20 22,500
Bonds payable e E 5 10,339 9,900
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ao ARIEE 5,954 4,476
Consolidated total liabilities meEBaERE 3,800,267 2,937,079

(iii) Geographical information (i) HEEH
During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, Eﬁ‘%ﬁ;ﬁ;:;ﬁ—)\iﬁ:%—t%
the Group's major operations and assets are situated :E :+f H JJ:¢§ TASKEE
in the PRC in which all of its revenue was derived. E%ﬂ‘%&ﬁéiﬂ{ﬁﬁéﬂh 1 AT

B EITNRERE -

(iv) Major customers (iv) ZEEF
There is no customer contributing over 10% of the @%:E—}\ﬁ&:g—fiz
Group's revenue for the years ended 31 March 2018 A=+—BILEFE BEESE
and 2017. REE 2 WEmB10% ©
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11. OTHER NET GAINS/(LOSSES)

1. Htplesx/ (B518) B8

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E-N\F —T—tF
F#ET FET

Fair value gain/(loss) on investments  H{EEBERE 7 AFEWE
held for trading (B#E) 21,013 (52,402)

Net realised gain on disposal of HEBEESREZEERINE
investments held for trading ik 645 -
21,658 (52,402)
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. ERAK

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
(Restated)
—E-N\F —T—+F
FET FET
(F&E5))
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEEZFE 78,045 131,994
Interest on bonds and notes payable JEfNEANMEE 2T E 1,208 19,085

Interest on amount due to a related  fEN —REREE D RIFIE 2 F B
company - 12,414
79,253 163,493
Less: Interest capitalised (note) B BRI (K aE) (25,036) (69,409)
54,217 94,084

Note:

Wit

BE_ZT-N\F=RA=+—RHILFEER
EHEERARRTEE (T —1F:
RITEEREN —HEERRRIE)E
£ EBBENME BRAEREENH
%o

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 March
2018 arose on the bank borrowings (2017: bank borrowings
and amount due to a related company) as mentioned in note 31
are capitalised fully to expenditure on qualifying assets.
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

13. B (ER)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—B-NF -Tt%
FET FA&T
(g&E5)

PRC enterprise income tax H B 1 FE AT
— Current year —AFE 39,093 -
— Over provision in prior years —BRFEBERE (295) -
38,798 -
PRC LAT B+ b IR E A 47,124 -
Deferred tax expense/(credit) (note 33) IEEFIBF S (K% )(K7E33) 5,091 (10,333)
Income tax expense/(credit) PSR (%) 91,013 (10,333)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: 16.5%). No provision of Hong Kong profits
tax was made as there was no assessable profit derived
for both years.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC were subject to the
PRC enterprise income tax. The applicable PRC enterprise
income tax rate is 25% for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017 for the PRC subsidiaries.

The provision for LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rates of the appreciation value, with certain
allowable deductions.

22— N\F=Z=A=+—BLILtHF
B EBFEHIKE5% (T —+
F:16.5% ) (EFHERBUEFETE -
HAMETELEELERBE M
WA e R BB RS TR -

AREE R R 2 B R RIZAM AT E
CERABHR -PEMEARREE
E-NERZT—+tF=A=+—H
TEEZERATEEEMBRES
25% -

T IR AR B TR IR B AR B TR %
ERMOERBRE R - LR ER
Ty E B R RAE R AE B
WAk ETIEE -
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued) 13. FRIBHiExX (&) (&)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled RERZFREMAS A EGaBm RE

to the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax per the 2 E W R TRATAEBBRATEHA

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other wmAl (E51E) HER - mERA RS

comprehensive income differs from the theoretical mount BN EFECEREBECEZHEN
that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as ™~

follows:

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$°000

(Restated)

—ZE-N\F —ET—+F

FET FET

(F& &%)

Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETS R RIS, (EE) 251,833 (186,350)

Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits & &S5 HH %16.5%

tax rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZE—+F :16.5%)5t8
Fi1E 41,553 (30,748)

Effect of different tax rates of RE M BDARE R K LK 2 M B

subsidiaries operating in other NABRINABRERBZZE

jurisdictions 16,968 (2,442)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for  FMIEBHIM S » BERHRUIES

tax purposes IR e (8,125) (1,568)
Tax effect of expense that are not MRIFE MM S T RAY 2

deductible for tax purposes Wiss 2 6,340 6,858
Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses REEEESABETFEHIEEE

utilised this year LB E (2,795) (284)
Unrecognised temporary differences  RIER LR =B MM IEEIE

and tax losses 2,024 17,851
Tax effect of LAT THIERER 2 MG E (11,781) -
LAT IR ERR 47,124 -
Over provision in prior years B FEBEERE (295) -
Income tax expense/(credit) PriSHiR s (%) 91,013 (10,333)
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14. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 14. BRETBBANER (E#E)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at NEBZBRAEHRAEFRN, (EE)
after charging/(crediting): Bk (GEA) -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-N\EF e
FERT FET
(#&&E7)
Auditor's remuneration =% BRI BN 5 800 585
Exchange (gain)/loss, net X () EEFEE (25,222) 11,500
Minimum lease payments under HEMELEHERERE
operating leases on leasehold
properties 2,040 2,040
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIRAN(BEESENE):
emoluments):
Basic salaries and allowances BEARTE REM(BIEARD
(including share based payment) BEE R 15,745 12,692
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFFTEIME R
contribution 1,378 1,242
17,123 13,934

15. DIVIDENDS 15. K&

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended BHE-_Z—\FZA=Z+—8BL1LF

31 March 2018 (2017: HKS$Nil), nor has any dividend EHET MBI EaReE (=ZF

been proposed since 31 March 2018. —tF:EBT) B \F=A
=+ —HRTERNEMRKRE-

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 16. BRER(FE)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per RAEEBARGEEREAREER
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based M, (BE) RBEATSETE

on the following data:

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Restated)

—E-N\F —E—+F

FET FET

(ge&E5)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of AR EGRERLREHET
the Company for the purpose of (EB18) 2 R ARIEE AEL G

basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per  F|,/(&51#8)
share 156,326 (169,389)
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16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

16. EREA (FH#E) &)

Number of shares

R4 & B
2018 2017
‘000 ‘000
(Restated)
—E-N\EF —ET—+tF
FR TR
(feE7)
Weighted average number of ordinary FRETESREARET],(EHE)
shares (2017: ordinary shares and 2EER(CE—+E TEK
convertible preference shares) for the [ RI A& S i) IHE
purpose of basic earnings/(loss) per
share 4,348,418 4,191,540
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BERABEL R 2B ETE
shares in respect of:
— Share options —HE R pE 3,667 -
— Unlisted warrants —JE E TR AR 49,410 -
Weighted average number of ordinary AR ESREERF](F1E)
shares (2017: ordinary shares and ZERR(ZE—+F LR
convertible preference shares) for the & AJ3 A& 5 f%) hNtE T HE
purpose of diluted earnings/(loss) per
share 4,401,495 4,191,540

The Company issued 800,000,000 ordinary shares as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of Fujian
Jingdu which are under common control and accounted
for using merger accounting, the ordinary shares issued
are included in the calculation of the weighted average
number of shares for the years ended 31 March 2018
and 2017 as if these ordinary shares are issued and the
acquisition of Fujian Jingdu had completed on 1 April
2016.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of computing basic loss per share for the year
ended 31 March 2017 also has been adjusted for the
effect of the exercise of warrant shares on 22 December
2017.
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16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2018 is based on the profit attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$156,326,000 (2017: loss of HK$169,389,000) and
on the weighted average number of approximately
4,348,418,000 ordinary shares (2017: 4,191,540,000
ordinary shares and convertible preference shares).

Share options:

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the computation of
diluted earnings per share assume the exercise of the
share options since the exercise price of share options is
lower than the average market price of the Company’s
shares for the respective year. For the year ended 31
March 2017, the computation of diluted loss per share
did not assume the exercise of share options since the
exercise price of those share options was higher than the
average market price of the Company’s shares for the
respective year.

Unlisted warrants:

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the computation
of diluted earnings per share assume the exercise of
the unlisted warrants since the exercise price of those
unlisted warrants is lower than the average market price
of the Company’s shares for the respective year. For the
year ended 31 March 2017, the computation of diluted
loss per share does not assume the exercise of unlisted
warrants as they would decrease the loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company and have
anti-dilutive effect. Therefore, the diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2017 was based on the loss attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$169,389,000 and on the weighted average number
4,191,540,000 ordinary shares and convertible preference
shares during the year.

16. ERERA (FHHE) &)

HE T N\F=ZA=1+—HIFE
RKARBBEABEEREREF
(BB)DNDERARRES AENRSG
F1%7156,326,000 7T (—F—+F:
E518169,389,000/8 7T ) I N F 15 8x
#4,348,418,000fx LB (=T —+
T 1 4,191,540,0000% 57 A% Kz 7] #2 %
BER)FTE-

P
BE-ZT-\F=ZA=1+—HL#F
B A EEREERNERITERR
B AREERE 2 TEEERESF
EARRRBEOOFHTE-BE-T
—tF=ZA=+—"RHIFE FEE
BEEEEARRRITEERE B
EEREZITEESNEFEARF
Befn ) HE

JE TR RERE
HE-_Z—\F=ZA=+—HILF
B i EEREERFBRITEIEL
MR EE  BZEIELEmREEE
ZITEEERSEFEART RN HF
HHB - BE_ZE—+F=A=1+—
HIEFE FESRBEBEARRRK
fﬂi#imu R AE R AR

REEAEARGEBREBEREEGRE
BERE-EIl #E-_T—+F=A
Zt+—HUIEFEARRHEEAELS
REEBEDENRFRARRES A
JiE {5 B9 18 49169,389,0005% 7T K b #
19 #494,191,540,0000% X 38 L &
AR B AR AT & -
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17. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 17. EEM £
The emoluments paid or payable to the Company’s HE_Z-\FRZZT—tF=AH
directors for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 =+ —HLEFE BENSENEIAT
were as follows: BEE2MenT:

Year ended 31 March 2018
BZ-E-NE=ZA=1+-HLEE

Salaries,  Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits schemes Share-based
Fees in kind contributions payment Total

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HKS$'000
¥e- 2l BB ARG B

e REDAZS SRR BEZAR ok
FET FET FET FET FAET
Chairman: IE:
Guo Jiadi 20 1,950 75 - 70 2,095
Executive directors:  HITEE:
Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E Guo - 1,040 18 - 1,058
Yan Pingfeng (note(i) BRI (H3E() - 674 12 - 686
Wang Chao (note(ii)) THRR(K (i) - 70 2 88 160
Non-executive director: FHTEE :
Wong Yun Kuen THE 100 - - - 100
Independent non- BYFHTES:
executive directors:
Chan Yee Ping, Michael  [B4 71 - - - 71
Yu Pak Yan Peter SREC 100 - - - 100
Zheng Jinyun (notefiii)  E&E (A1 i) 51 - - - 51
Zheng Yurui BTl 60 - - - 60
Ma Shujuan (note(iv)  SRiE(Hfzt(iv) 12 - - - 12
2,344 1,859 32 158 4,393
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17. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

17. EEM € &)

Year ended 31 March 2017

Salaries,

allowances

and benefits in

Fees kind
HK$'000 HK$'000

o 28

HE_T—+tF=A=1—-HILFE

Retirement
benefit
schemes  Share-based
contributions payment Total

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BRRER CARR 1A B

we  REYIEG SEfT EEZMAR ek
FETL FHETL FHET FET FET
Chairman: IE:
Guo Jiadi B 1,950 - - 149 2,099
Executive directors: HTES
Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E Guo 780 - 18 - 798
Lin Jianbin (note(v)) WEE(H7t(v)) - 156 8 - 164
Yan Pingfeng (note() BT (H7E() - 438 16 - 454
Non-executive director: FEHITES :
Wong Yun Kuen (note(vi) =B (H5E(vi) 54 - - - 54
Independent non- BYFHTES:
executive directors:
Wong Yun Kuen (note(vi) =B (H5E(vi) 46 - - - 46
Chan Yee Ping, Michael ~ [REAF 60 - - - 60
Yu Pak Yan Peter B 100 - - - 100
Zheng Jinyun BeE 60 - - - 60
Zheng Yurui BT 60 - - - 60
3,110 594 42 149 3,895
Notes: HfaE -

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr. Yan Pingfeng was appointed and resigned as Executive
Director on 15 September 2016 and 5 February 2018
respectively.

Mr. Wang Chao was appointed as Executive Director on 5
February 2018.

Mr. Zheng Jinyun was resigned as Independent Non-
Executive Director on 5 February 2018.

Ms. Ma Shujuan was appointed as Independent Non-
Executive Director on 5 February 2018.

Mr. Lin Jianbin was resigned as Executive Director on 1
July 2016.

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen was re-designated from Independent
Non-Executive Director to Non-Executive Director on 15
September 2016.

i) BTFEEER-_Z-—RFAA+I
BR-_Z2-N\E_AREEDHEZ
ERLBHERITES -

(i) ETHBEER-_ZFT—-—N\F_AAAE
ZIEBRITES-

iy BWeEEER-_ZFT—-—N\F_-_AHAA
BHER M FEITES -

(ivy, BRBzt+tR-_Z—NE-AhA
ERIABYIERITES-

(v) MEBXER-_ZT—XR"EFLA—H
BERITES-

(viy BHEETIR=_Z—XR"EFnLA+H
ARBYIFNTEERHERFERNT
B=x-
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17. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (continued) 17. E5M < (2
There was no arrangement under which a director of the FAMETANARAEZTHEXRE
Company waived or agreed to waive any emoluments MEEAME 2 LB -FAN KEE
during the year. During the year, no emoluments were MEAARRESNEMME
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company as RIEEMASR AR E B R 2 2/
an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as SERBE ZBERME-

compensation for loss of office.

18. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 18. EEM 2
The emoluments of the five individuals with highest FRN AEERLEEeFALBE=S
emoluments in the Group for the year included three H(ZE—tF:=R)EF Hie
(2017: three) directors, details of whose emoluments FIEER EXHFE.

have been disclosed above.

Details of the emoluments of the remaining two (2017: FRN - HBMEBE(ZTE—tF -WE)
two) non-directors, highest paid individuals for the year HFEFEHERFTATZMEFBOT

are as follows:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
FHET FAET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e R REYHZR
kinds 1,769 1,961
Retirement benefits scheme RARTE A FT S 50
contributions 32 33
1,801 1,994
The emoluments of each of the above non-director LR FEEZREFATMEN T
highest paid individuals were fell within the following T&HE:
bands:
Number of individuals
AE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$ BT
Nil to 1,000,000 = %1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001% 1,500,000 1 1
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18. EEM £ (&)
ONgENSREEERE ML

management were within the following bands: BT :
Number of individuals
AE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$ AT
Nil to 1,000,000 = £ 1,000,000 - 1
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001% 1,500,000 1 1
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ¥ -HERZE
Furniture,
office
equipment
Leasehold and motor
Buildings improvements vehicles Total
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
HENE &R-BAE
EF £ RERRE &
FHETL FHET FET FET
(lgE35)) (LLE7)) (lgE75))
Cost R
At 1 April 2016 RZE-RFMNA—H 5,215 2,990 10,006 18,211
Addition NE - - 789 789
Disposal HE - - (305) (305)
Exchange adjustment ER I (311) (52) (279) (642)
At 31 March 2017 and RZZ—+E=F=+—H
1 April 2017 k-E—+FEMNA—H 4,904 2,938 10,211 18,053
Addition NE - - 684 634
Disposal HeE - - (293) (293)
Exchange adjustment IE 5 A 529 88 529 1,146
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E=F=+—H 5,433 3,026 11,131 19,590
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 19. ¥ -BERRZE @)
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Furniture,
office
equipment
Leasehold and motor
Buildings improvements vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
HENE HH-BLE
EF % RERAE Bt
FAT FET FHET FHET
(BE5) (LE5) (E5)

Accumulated depreciation e

At 1 April 2016 R_E—-~"ENA—H 1,164 2,045 6,871 10,080
Depreciation E 972 380 796 2,148
Disposal HE - - (276) (276)
Exchange adjustment IE 5% (91) (32) (146) (269)
At 31 March 2017 and RZE—tF=A=+—H

1 April 2017 k=—E—+#MA—H 2,045 2,393 7,245 11,683
Depreciation e 994 342 841 2,177
Disposal H & - - (237) (237)
Exchange adjustment B i, & 280 73 287 640
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=F=+—H 3,319 2,808 8,136 14,263
Net book value REEE
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=1+—H 2,114 218 2,995 5,327
At 31 March 2017 N_ZE—tF=A=1—H 2,859 545 2,966 6,370
The Group has reviewed the residual values used for the AEBECRBEGHERFMHEFEREE
purposes of depreciation calculations in the light of the ZTEE M AETENE 2 FE
definition of residual value in the accounting standard. Bemal PRI MAFT ERAEAERE
The review did not highlight any requirement for an BT HREMFER 2 FBREB ZF
adjustment to the residual values used in the current or FIRBESNBETFR REFH-

prior periods. These residual values will be reviewed and
updated annually in the future.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, deprecation HEe—_Z—\FZA=Z+—B81t#F

amounted to approximately HK$32,000 is capitalised to E FEX32,0008 TERLAEE

expenditure on qualifying assets (2017: HK$48,000). BEENRX (ZF—+F 48,000
HBIT) o
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ—ZF— N \F=A=+—HILFZF

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. REY=
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g-N\E T tF
FET FET
At 1 April R A—H 3,551,719 3,860,877
Additional costs NE KA 12 370

Transfer from property under EFERREP Y EEE

development for sale 14,289 -
Fair value gain/(loss) NFEWRE(EE) 2,796 (81,090)
Exchange adjustment PE 55, F8 & 384,182 (228,438)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 3,952,998 3,551,719
The investment properties are located in the PRC under ® éf MR B DA BRAE A
medium-term leases. As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, E-RZE—NEFRZZE—tF=
the investment properties are pledged to banks to secure A E ‘f“ H REMELHETF TR
bank borrowings (note 31) of the Group. T AEGEAREEMRITEES (M

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
had changed the use of a property, as evidenced
by commencement of an operating lease with an
independent third party tenant and accordingly the
property under development for sale is transferred to
investment property. On the date of reclassification, a
profit of HK$19,315,000 between the fair value of the
property and its carrying amount have been recognised in
profit or loss.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties as at the end of reporting period is using
significant unobservable inputs (level 3).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3.

31)

BHE-_Z2-N\E=A=+—HIL*F
B AEEERE —ENENRS
BERE-—ZRBUYF=FHEPHN—
SR GB A ZHFEEE
¢W%LA&§%% REFHEH
CRRYENFEAEREEZFED
ﬁﬂm3wpm%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁ%°

AFEER
REBREPERREDAZ A FE
HERAEATERGAZRE (£
=) -

EAZK¢F F-ANE R ZEAE
ARPEAEEE BVEEE=AE
ASEH -
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 20. REWE (&)

1 76 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties in
mainland China, assessed by Assets Appraisal Limited
(2017: Chung Hin Appraisal Limited), an independent
valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location
and category of the investment property being valued,
was based on the direct capitalisation approach.

The direct capitalisation approach was based on the net
rental income that can be generated from the property
under the leases to be executed for the property with due
allowance on the reversionary interest upon expiry of the
leases as assessed by the comparison method on vacant
possession basis. Discount rate at an opportunity cost of
capital is considered in arriving the present value of rental
income.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:

DNRPEER(E)

REBRTBEAM 2 REYETIHRIEB
VfhERMTHEEEFERRERA
A (ZE—tF PIFEARQA)
RAEERBRENLETHE Z2
AR AR A MR X BRI NETT
EEZIRE YRR MR A T8
CREEES &

BRBREREAZDERBEDER
BRUMEAEL 2 HERAFERE
B-WExRNEREEDRE 2ER
s AR DRALBEAREE
AERFHEBH -FEHEHSRAZRE
B 2ZRMRERZEREERA -

DRERNTFESFRE=R 2z FE
EYERMT

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-N\F —ET—+tF

FHET FAT

At 1 April R A—H 3,551,719 3,860,877

Additional costs NE KA 12 370
Transfer from property under EFERRP Y EEE

development for sale 14,289 -

Fair value gain/(loss) NEEWEE(EE) 2,796 (81,090)

Exchange adjustment PE W 2 384,182 (228,438)

At 31 March W=A=+—8 3,952,998 3,551,719
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used
and the key unobservable inputs to valuation of the

20. REWE &)
DNEBEER (&)

DHEERYF

EME=RTREYE

B FT A (A E R e R A BURHE

investment properties categorised within Level 3 of the gn R
fair value hierarchy:
Significant Relationship of
unobservable unobservable inputs to
Valuation technique inputs Range fair value
EXFTEER TABEERANE
EERM BARE #E HAVEZBHE
Furniture shopping Direct capitalisation Discount rate 6.0%  The higher the discount
mall, Fuzhou, the approach (2017: 4.0%) rate, the lower the fair
PRC value
hEEM ERBRENE BRE 60% HHEEXUE ATVELE
~RMBENES (ZE—+%:4.0%)
Rental value (per square RMB150 to  The higher the rental value,
metre and per month) RMB430 the higher the fair value
(2017: RMB100 to
RMB280)
HE(BTAREEA) ARB150TE HESS AFEES
ARE4307T
(Z2—+F:
ARE100LE
AR#2807)
Price per square metre RMB21,000 to  The higher the price per
RMB61,000 square metre, the higher
(2017: the fair value
RMB22,000 to
RMB61,000)
YK ER AR®21000TE BFIAEBRER AVE
ARM61,000m  #HE
(Z2—+F

Kindergarten, Xian,
the PRC

PEAZHRE

Direct capitalisation
approach

ERBRENA

Discount rate

R X
Rental value (per square
metre and per month)

RE(SFHRRER)

AR#22,000TE
AR#61,0007T)
8.2%

8.2%
RMB72 to RMBI1

AR®T2LE
ARBINT

REZAZERERAR

The higher the discount
rate, the lower the fair
value

AREES ATELE

The higher the rental value,
the higher the fair value

MESR ATESES

2017/185F &
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20.

21.

22.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

There was no change to the valuation technique during
the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above
property’s highest and best use, which does not differ
from their actual use.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The properties under development were located in
the PRC under medium-term lease. As at 31 March
2018, properties under development amounting to
approximately HK$358,190,000 (2017: HK$305,736,000)
are pledged to banks to secure bank borrowings (note
31) of the Group.

20.

21.

BREWE (#)
DNEBEER (&)
RAEE  HERMEEs-

NPEEDN B &R

ERBRAEE BERRARTET
[A] o
REPUE

BRPVEMARPE AP EHELORF
E-R-_ZE—N\F=A=+—8" %
B A ¥ % 49358,190,000/& 7T (=&
—+4F : 305,736,000/ 7T ) & T
RIT - UNESAEENFEITEE (K
£T31) o

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR 22. FERRDPYERBELE
SALE AND PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE Y3

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restate)
—E-N\EF —E—+F
FERT FEIT
(FeE5)
Properties under development for sale 7F& 3 Eh s 1,168,869 624,785
Properties held for sale BIELEWE 80,310 420,260
1,249,179 1,045,045

The properties under development for sale and properties
held for sale were located in the PRC under medium-term
lease. Properties under development for sale which are
expected to be recovered in more than twelve months
after the end of the reporting period are classified under
current assets as it is expected to be realised in the
Group’s normal operating cycle.

FEERTOEMFELEVERLR
FE AR HBEORE RHRKRE
HIR®& T —EARKENFERRET
MEDPBRRBEE REFAHRA
SELRELARANER -
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PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22. FERRTYWERBELE
FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES HELD FOR M (&)
SALE (continued)
The impairment loss on properties held for sale of FHEH M a0REEE11,608,000
HK$11,608,000 (2017: HK$Nil) is recognised in profit or BT (ZE2—tF B T)REE=
loss for the year ended 31 March 2018. The impairment Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEFENER
loss was due to the decrease in the estimated net R BMEBE ARG 2R F
realisable value. BR AR -
As at 31 March 2018, properties under development for RZE-NEF=A=1+—8 #BKH
sale and properties held for sale with aggregate carrying E#491,249,179,0008 T ( — T —+
value of approximately HK$1,249,179,000 (2017: % :1,045,045,0008 T) W FEER
HK$1,045,045,000) are pledged to banks to secure bank FYERFELEYED KT TR
borrowings of the Group (note 31). T UNESAEEMNRTES (M
31)°
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 23. BEWERRX
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-N\EF —E—+F
FET FAT
Accounts receivable JE W BR 3k 7,329 5,441

The credit terms in connection with sales of properties
granted to the buyers are set out in the sale and
purchase agreements and vary for different agreements.
A credit period of 30 days (2017: 30 days) is granted to
the tenants, while the Group normally received rental
income one month in advance. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
to recognise credit risk, with overdue balances regularly
reviewed by senior management. Accounts receivable are
generally non-interest bearing and their carrying amounts
approximate their fair values. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

AYMERHERTERNEEHRRIIRN
BEEp® TRHENEERNIR-
AEERTHEP30R (ZE—+t%F:
30F)ZEEM YEERE—EA
ESHE WA - AR EZKERIER
ARE 2z K KB AEREER

SREEENTS T HEHES
EeroRUWER—RARE  HE®
BEAFERAE AEBYERZE
BB AEANERS-

REZAZERERAR
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23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the
end of reporting period, based on the invoice date, was

23.

FEURBRRR (&)

AT B &S R AR R 3%
W AR R 2 Bk e D 4T

ZEMHE

as follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\E —E—+F
FET FAET
0 — 90 days 0%F90H 2,937 2,879
91 - 180 days 912 180H 635 1,006
Over 180 days 180H M F 3,757 1,556
7,329 5,441

The ageing of accounts receivable which are past due but

not impaired are as follows:

VAT 73 380 BB 1) RO (B 2 FE W AR 3R AR

EA
< -

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$°000

—B-N\E T +tF

TET T/8TT

0 - 90 days 0£90H 1,152 2,064
91 - 180 days 91£180H 465 644
Over 180 days 180H KA £ 3,642 1,414
5,259 4,122
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2%

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES

As at 31 March 2018, the loan receivables are secured,
interest bearing at fixed rate of 8% per annum and
repayable according to the date specified in the
respective loan agreements (2017: unsecured, interest
bearing at fixed rate of 5% per annum and repayable
according to the date specified in the respective loan
agreements).

The maturity profile of these loan receivables, net of
impairment losses recognised, if any, at the end of the
reporting period, analysed by the remaining periods to
their contracted maturities, is as follows:

24.

mE BB R R

—E-NF=ZA=1—HILFE

FE W B =X
R-ZE—-—N\F=F=+—8 EBHKE
REEER RETFNES%TE R
AIEREERBEEABHREE (=
T+ FE\IRE RETEFFE%
FTERBIEBEER HEIERBE
B) o

ZERWEFE NG D HERBERE
(mA) - BRHEQRE D KR
FHARNEEBBERDT

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-N\#F —tF

FET FET

Within 1 year 1F R 25,000 259,332

The loan receivables have been reviewed by the
management of the Group to assess impairment
which are based on the evaluation of collectability and
credit history, including default or delay on payments,
settlement records, and subsequent settlements of the
respective loan receivables.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the directors considered
that no impairment loss on loan receivables is necessary
as the loan receivables have been subsequently settled or
are not yet past due.

EREREAEEEEEEZ RE
FREWMAIKROMEREELHE B2
WSIER R BECH URIRE
BERIAEWRIA -

R-E-NEFER-_FT—LtF=H
=+—RH EFRK EFFW%n
ERER&EFH R AR HtERE
TR R (B B 1R

REZAZERERAR

2017/185F & 1 81



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

25. DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENT FOR
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/

25.

BRPMEZRERANAR
B/ HMERRE BENRE

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS PAID AND RN FIE
PREPAYMENTS
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-NF —E—+F
FER FET
(s&&E7)
Non-current assets: FRBEE:
Deposit and prepayment BRPMEZRE RTANKIE
for properties under development
Prepayment for properties under TR YR ZIENFRIB (M)
development (note (i) 16,519 -
Deposit for properties under BRERPYE RS (M)
development (note (ii)) 62,459 56,377
78,978 56,377
Current assets: REBEE :
Deposits e 4,440 49,328
Other receivables H e GRIE 12,221 27,828
Prepayments for acquisition LU + b 5 A TR N FRIE
of land use rights (note (iii)) (B L (i) 621,712 -
Prepayment (note (iv)) TEfT I (M aE(iv)) 434,602 11,343
1,072,975 88,499
Less: Impairment loss (note (v)) B REBE (K W) (375) (338)
1,072,600 88,161

Notes:

(@)

(i)

(iii)
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The amount represents prepaid construction cost for
developing hotels.

The amount represents deposit for the local governmental
authority for developing hotels with four-stars
accreditation. The deposit will be refunded to the Group
1.5 years after the hotels are in operation.

The amount of HK$621,712,000 (equivalent to
RMB497,700,000) represents the prepayments made by
the Group for the acquisition of land use rights in the
PRC for the Group’s property under development for sale
as detailed in the Company’s announcements dated 29
January 2018 and 9 February 2018.

st

(ii)

(iii)

% TRIR R B R OE TR & TR B R K
P

LR REENBA AR R E
RBEREFRBNIZ S - ZIREH
RBEERENSFREETAEE -

621,712,000 L (ZERARE
497,700,0007T ) 5K 1B 3 45 5 (& 3t Uk
BhETMERERARTEEGFE
BRERPYEMmMEMORE (FBH
RARABHBAE-_ZT—N\F—A
ZtTABRERZZE-NFZANRZ

NI




25.

26.
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mE BB R R

E-NF=ZA=1T—HIFE

DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENT FOR 25. BRPYEZERERFANARK
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/ B HtEWRIE EfFfERE
OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS PAID AND RESRE (2)
PREPAYMENTS (continued)
Notes: (continued) Biet: (48)
(iv)  The amount mainly represents prepaid construction cost (iv) ZARBXZERAEERGFEMESR
of approximately HK$389,931,000 (2017: HK$3,980,000) JEIEE%EH@ %Ak A5 49389,931,000
for the Group's properties development for sale. Bt (ZF — 14 :3,980,000%
JT) e
(v)  Movements in the provision for impairment of other (v EMEWZEZBREZGEZSHN
receivables are as follows: Nk
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
—E-N\EF —ET—tF
FET FHET
At 1 April A —A 338 360
Exchange adjustment M 5, 58 2 37 (22)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 375 338
The carrying amounts of the other receivables that were 3 #8360 HA O OB (E 2 B At FE MR IE 2
neither past due nor impaired relate to other debtors for AR T {8 B E 4t 3 A HA R REd 8k 2 1B
whom there was no recent history of default. AR -
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26. RAFEFABRZZUBEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

On 19 February 2016, the Company as subscriber, Sundo
Gas Limited (“Sundo Gas"”) as issuer and Mr. Zhong
Changming entered into a subscription agreement
("Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to whom the
Company has conditionally agreed to subscribe for the
redeemable exchangeable bonds (“Exchangeable Bonds”)
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$133,300,000
with 20% interest rate per annum.

As at 31 March 2016, HK$131,301,000 represented
the deposit for subscription of Exchangeable Bonds as
the precedent condition attached to the Subscription
Agreement were not satisfied.

The subscription of Exchangeable Bonds was completed
on 13 October 2016 (“the Issue Date”) and the maturity
date of Exchangeable Bonds is 29 October 2017.

RZE—RNF_A+HhLHB ARF
(fEA&RBE A) Sundo Gas Limited
([Sundo Gas] " ERZEITA) RER
B ETY — M REWE ([REW
F) B ARREBKEERER
fE AN © 48 %133, 300000;%ﬁ¢ﬂ”
20% 2 Al HEE Al R EH ([AIR
&%) -

R—_E—-—XRF=ZA=+—8"
131,301,000/8 7T AR E A RIREFH
2Ee ARBHEZREEEER

ARBEFR_FT—NRF+A
B(I#TEM]) K AT s

R
+=
EXEHEA-E—tF+AZTA

fz
He

HEZAZERARAR
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26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26. BAREFANERZHBEE
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THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The Exchangeable Bonds confer the right (“Exchange
Right”) upon the Company thereof, exercisable in whole
or in part upon the occurrence of an initial public offering
("IPO™) and listing of and permission to deal in the shares
of UC Energy, which is a subsidiary of Sundo Gas, on
the Stock Exchange, to exchange for in aggregate up
to a maximum of 123,934 shares in UC Energy at the
exchange price of approximately US$138.764 per share
in the capital of UC Energy, representing approximately
18.5% of the issued ordinary shares of UC Energy as at
the subscription date.

Sundo Gas may request early redemption of the
Exchangeable Bonds at any time prior to the maturity
date at a price equal to the sum of (a) the outstanding
principal amount with respect to the portion of the
Exchangeable Bonds to be redeemed, (b) a fee of 1%
on such outstanding principal amount, and (c) interest
on such outstanding principal amount at the rate and
period specified in the Subscription Agreement. Unless
previously redeemed, exchanged or cancelled and subject
to the occurrence of an IPO, Sundo Gas shall redeem the
Exchangeable Bonds on the maturity date the whole of
the principal amount of the Exchangeable Bonds at par,
together with accrued interest calculated in accordance
with conditions set out in the Subscription Agreement.

The Exchangeable Bonds are secured and supported by
the followings:

(@) the share charge created in favour of the Company
on 19 February 2016 by Sundo Gas in respect of
200,627 shares in UC Energy;

(b) the pledge of not less than 36.7% equity interests
in Jiangsu Guosheng Hengtai Energy Development
Co., Ltd. (L& BB ZRELRERBR A R]) given by
Shannan Tianyuan Investment Centre (LLFIR/RI%E
F.0) in favour of Fujian Sinco;

(c) a personal guarantee given by Mr. Zhong
Changming, the sole shareholder of Sundo Gas
in favour of the Company (collectively referred to
“Exchangeable Bonds Securities”).

(#&)

ARBMESFE TAREERN ([
#]) » 7EUC Energy (Sundo Gasfff
BARBRMERAREES ([BEKX
AAZEE) RAEBIXHA ETRE
BB 2B XBREHES
123,9348%UC Energyfl&fn ' X HE B
UC Energy®& A 47138.764%% 7T -
HERUC Energy AR 88 B BIE 31T
Bk 418.5% °

Sundo GasA] PA X 8f A A e 2 5kig
PERARBRES BRIEERUAT
BIEBFNEREE: QEFER—AT
RBELHEEA D 2 AEERESRE
DZAEEALENI %N ER &
(OZAEEASBELRBHRIETEH
R HEFENFE -BRIEE R BT
B X FREE AR
ZE%  Sundo GasBRBIEIRIRE
BEELOARBES 2 ASEE ER
BIERBE B TE R st E R EETF

B o
oy

Al REF 2 FER R ST -

(@) Sundo GasiR —ZF—~F _ H
+ 7L B $200,6278UC Energy
BRDBISZHAR AR AZHAZ
IRiDE

(b) WFRIFERE R OB TEREIE
BRERERBERATNT LR
36.7% MR EEH T EELRE:

() #ERIEHLA (Sundo Gasz ME—
fE ) AR R R A m A mED
B R AFELR o
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26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Further details of the deposit and the subscription of
the Exchangeable Bonds are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 August 2015, 29 December
2015, 19 February 2016, 14 June 2016 and 13 October
2016.

During the year, the Exchangeable Bonds had matured on
29 October 2017, and subject to the mutual agreement
of the Group and the exchangeable bond issuer, the
maturity date may be extended. As at the reporting date,
the potential extension is under discussion between the
Group and the issuer and no extension agreement has
been reached.

After taking into account the latest progress in
reaching settlement of the Exchangeable Bonds with
the exchangeable bond issuer and the guarantor, and
the Exchangeable Bonds Securities with supporting
information in respect of the estimated value of certain
of the Exchangeable Bonds Securities, the directors
considered that there is no recoverability issue of the
bond at end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Exchangeable Bonds
was compound instruments and designated as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as at the end
of reporting period was using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3).

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, there
were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level
3.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

26.

BATEFABRZHKEE
(#&)
EBARRES IR RRE 2 #E—
SHBHRARATBHA-ZZT—H
FNA-+WHEB —ZE—HRFE+-A
“+hB - ZE—R"F-A+NH"
TE-REFEAATHAR-ZE—RF
+A+=B2R%&E-

FR TRREFER T LT
T A= TR 5 AREERT
RIREFETARRBEE B A
TFER-RHERD AEERT
17 N IEAE 3 B EAE S0 - R 8 AL EE
B3

AT R A R E ST A RERA
Z R E A I E S SO R N F]
RBEFERR ARE T AIRRE
FERMREABENHEN &%
R RMEHREF T FEAKD
5 8 o

RZE-N\FERZZFT-—LF=H
=t—B AXRBEFSESTIA:
WHEE BB A FEF AR S M HEE
7o

DNFEER

BEREHR AEERAFETA
BaMBEEZ A TEFERRE
ARAATBEEABE (F=F)

BE_ZT-N\FhR_ZT—tF=H
“t—HLEFE F-ARE-_RZ
B EAFEAEER TEEAX
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PRERNTFEFRE=R2zrFE
EYER-
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26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

. BAVPEFABRRZVMBEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEER(E)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\#F —E—+F
FET FEIT
At 1 April KU A—H 142,777 -
Transfer from deposit for subscription  H 88 A] K& 5 2 1% & 55 5
of exchangeable bonds - 131,301
Fair value (loss)/gain ANFEER), W (8,920) 9,477
Exchange adjustment FE 5, - 1,999
At 31 March R=A=+—H 133,857 142,777
Note: et -

As at the Issue Date, 31 March 2017 and 2018, the fair value
of the Exchangeable Bonds was determined by an independent
professional valuer, AVISTA Valuation Advisory Limited, which
was engaged by the Group.

There was no change to the valuation technique during
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

The fair value of Exchangeable Bonds was derived as the
present value of contractual determined stream of future
cash flows discounted at the discount rate of 20.1% and
19.9% as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

As at 31 March 2017, since the possibility of the shares
of UC Energy listed on The Stock Exchange or such other
internationally recognised investment exchange of the
same or higher international standing through IPO from
the Issue Date up to 31 March 2017 was minimal, the fair
value of Exchange Right was minimal.

Following the maturity of Exchangeable Bonds on
29 October 2017, the Exchange Right had also
lapsed simultaneously and as such, it is excluded
in consideration of the fair value measurement of
Exchangeable Bonds as at 31 March 2018.

RETEH-_ZF-NFR_FT—LF=H
=t— B ARBEFNAFERAEE
ZENBYEEAEME BN GERE
PR BEE -

RBE-_ZT-N\FR_FT—tF=H
=t —BLEFER HERMILEE
o

ARBEEFZ A FEAE T —N\F
R-F—tF=A=+—AHHRE
20.1% M 19.9%8EIR 2 & #EE E AR 2K
BE&RBE

MN-ZE—+tF=A=+—H8  BHRUC
Energylefn BEZTHEIZE =T —tF
ZA=1T—HBEBERARESEE
R (S HMBERRAIZEERLFT
BEBHER%ESBEEA) EHz Al
BRI E R - R 2 A TFEMCT R
3 o

ARBMEFN-_F—LFtA=-TAI
BEHR B ERE RN Bt 7]
RBEFR _T-N\F=ZA=+—H
MR FEERRE BRRE-
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27. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

mE BB R R

18 Bz —_ZF—N\F=A=1+—HItFE

27. BIEEERE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
FHETT FHET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, & FTlRAE S LA FE
at fair value 125,745 130,663
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong, EEFTMEBES AT E
at fair value - 33,424
125,745 164,087

The above equity and debt securities are classified as
investments held for trading as they have been acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or
are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking. Changes in their fair values are recorded in profit
or loss (note 11).

As at 31 March 2018, the investments held for trading
represented an investment portfolio comprising 5 equity
securities listed in Hong Kong (2017: 7 equity securities
and 1 debt securities listed in Hong Kong). All of them
are securities listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

LR ARBEEESFDERFEER
ERE REAEKBENETEA
REHAREE StEAEFEREZ
EHpeMmITAEAS 2o BF
BB REAPBRE IR CHER
RBEX -HAFEEHOTAER
(BFEET1) @

R-E-—NF=A=+—8 B
ERER—BRELEE EHRBEES
HREB LM ZBAZESR (ZE—t
F7EREB LT ZIRAEF AR
EHRBEB LM EBES) ZEFHE
HFEEBRBIMER LT ZES-

2017/185F & 1 87
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28.

29.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At 31 March 2018, the cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$142 million (2017: HK$37 million, restated).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations. The remaining balance
of the cash and cash equivalents of the Group was
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The Group normally obtains credit terms ranging from 30
to 120 days from its suppliers. An ageing analysis of the

28.

29.

ReEkREEE
RZBE—-N\F=ZA=1+—H K&k
N4 £ {E#)142,000,0008 0 (= Z
—+ £ :37,000,000/8 7T (&L EF]) )
UIARKEBE ARERBAINEA
S B ANE B IR IR I AT - S IE K
NEEER TR -AEERS RE
CEBEZBBEUNB T E

FE 5 BR =X
AREBRBEEMRERLAS TI0HE120
BEEH U TARBREBHRBER

accounts payable as at the end of reporting date, based B EmERNERZERD
on the receipt of goods purchased, was as follows: Hig
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000
(Restated)
—ZE-N\F —E—LtF
FER FHET
(&&E75)
Current or less than 1 month BNEAsk D —E A 69,708 169,766
1 to 3 months —ZE={EA 19,585 1,308
More than 3 months but less than HBE=REAEIR+=@EA
12 months 2,465 5,323
More than 12 months BB+ A 67,549 3,954
159,307 180,351
The directors consider that the carrying amount of the BERR R N\FRZZE—F
Group’s accounts payable at 31 March 2018 and 2017 F=ZA=1T—H AKEEMNEHZ
approximates their fair values. FREEEAQFEREE-
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30. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

30. HtENRE ERERER

AND ACCRUALS FEst& R
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
(Restated)
—E-N\EF ZE—+F
FET FAET
(F& &%)
Other payables and accruals HEth B RIBRERTEA 49,855 72,718
Deposits received from tenants BEFWI ke 20,830 16,327
Receipt in advance T W R IE 12,789 9,036
83,474 98,081
31. BANK BORROWINGS 1. RITEE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-NF —E—+tF
FET FET
(ge&E5)
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE-—2ER 1,230,070 1,399,979
Total current and non-current bank borrowings were ENER G JEBNERSR(TIE S @ xBEIL AT
repayable as follows: HREE:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-N\EF —E—tF
FET FET
(ge&E5)
Loans repayable: AEEEN
Within one year —F R 184,623 303,660
More than one year, —FLA L BETHBBME
but not exceeding two years 243,205 392,087
More than two years, but not MEAE - BTERRF
exceeding five years 444,155 283,371
After five years FF1% 358,087 420,861
1,230,070 1,399,979
Portion classified as current liabilities DB ABEIE &2 25 (184,623) (303,660)
Portion classified as non-current DEAEENBHEEZHY
liabilities 1,045,447 1,096,319

HE = EZERERDE 2017/185F & 1 89
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31. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
dates in the loan agreements. The loan agreements do
not contain any repayment on demand clause.

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the bank loans were
secured/guaranteed the following:

(i)  the subsidiaries’ investment properties with carrying
value of approximately HK$3,952,998,000 (2017:
HK$3,551,719,000);

(i)  the subsidiary’'s properties under development with
carrying value of approximately HK$358,190,000
(2017: HK$305,736,000);

(iii) the subsidiaries’ properties under development for
sale and properties held for sale with carrying value
of approximately of HK$1,249,179,000 (2017:
HK$1,045,045,000);

(iv) rental proceeds over an investment property;

(v) entire ordinary shares of a subsidiary of the
Company;

(vi) corporate guarantees for the bank loan with
principal amount of approximately HK$814,858,000
(2017: HK$795,201,000) executed by the Company;

(vii) corporate guarantees for the bank loan with
principal amount of approximately HK$287,309,000
executed by Fuzhou Gaojia, which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Guo Jiadi, director of the Company
(2017: HK$418,397,000 executed by a subsidiary
and Fuzhou Gaojia);

(viii) corporate guarantees for the bank loan with
principal amount of approximately HK$127,903,000
(2017: HK$186,381,000) executed by Fuzhou
Gaojia, which is beneficially owned by Mr. Guo
Jiadi, director of the Company and Guo Shi
Investment Group Co., Limited, which is ultimately
owed as to approximately 95% by Mr. Guo Jiadi,
director of the Company; and
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31. RITEE (&)

FEIRIRTI A B SR % 2 FEEE R E
HIR AR - Bk thaa W BT EE K

{8 R A -

WR-E-NER-F—LFE=A
=+— 8 ROTEREEUTEER
7 RR

() BRM{E43,952,998,000/% 7T
—ZE—+%:3,551,719,0007%
OB ARIEEME

(i) Bt BB A 7] BR 18 49358,190,000
BT (ZZE—+% :305,736,000
BI)MEBERPYE:

(i) P~ BBREE491,249,179,000
BT (& —+4 : 1,045,045,000
BIL)WGEERPYERREE
HEME:

vy REWEBEEMERA:

(v) ARR—FHMBARNZEER

g

(vi) ARRBFLA % #814,858,00078
T (ZZF—+4%:795,201,000
BIL)MIRITTERE LD EE
R

i) BMNSE(BARREEH
MEEEEZBEE)RASH
287,309,000/8 LR SR1TE &
YR EER(ZZE—EF:
418,397,0007 7T - B8 — [ Y /8
NARBMNESERT)

(viiiy BMEE (AR ARIESH @
EEBERER) RIREEEE
ERAR (AARREESZMN
HMEERKERL95% ) LA ®
#9127,903,0008 L (=& —+
% :186,381,000/8 7T ) WIRITE
RELMPEER: R
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BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 31. RITEE ()

(ix) personal guarantees for the bank loan with principal (ix) ANARIEFZh0sE £ R EL N
amount of approximately HK$1,230,070,000 (2017: EERBLEZ L TRARL
HK$1,399,979,000) executed by Mr. Guo Jiadi, 1,230,070,0008 T (Z & —+
director of the Company, and Ms. Shen Bizhen, the 4 :1,399,979,000/8 7T ) KR 17
spouse of Mr. Guo Jiadi. ERELHEAER-

As at 31 March 2018, the bank loans include loans with RZE—NE=ZA=+—H8 E17

principal amounts of approximately HK$814,858,000 E%K@TEKE%’9814,858,0007%77:&

and HK$127,903,000 which bear interest at 5.88% and 127,903,000/ 7T * 9 Al #5.88% &

5.70% per annum respectively and are repayable by 5. 70%¢ﬂﬂ—?r§' Iﬁgﬁ\fgfﬂ

installments up to 31 December 2025 and 27 January FH+ZA=+—RBAER=ZZT=Z—F—

2021 respectively (2017: loan principal amounts of AZ+tRARBSHEENER (=

approximately HK$795,201,000 and HK$186,381,000 —+F : K& 5 hl#&R795,201,0008

which bore interest at 5.88% and 5.70% per annum 7T 12 186,381,000/ 7T, * 73 5l1#25.88%

respectively were repayable by instalments up to 31 N5 70%FMNEFEXED RN -

December 2025 and 27 January 2021 respectively). THRFTZA=T—BRZE=—F

—AZTtHASHEENER) -

As at 31 March 2018, the bank loans also include a loan RZE-—NF=ZA=+—8 K17

with principal amount of approximately HK$287,309,000 /\/T/\j]— &N & #9287,309,0007% 7T

(2017: HK$418,397,000) which bears interest at (ZE—+F: 418,397,0007%7_5) E’\J

8.46% (2017: 9.50%) per annum and is repayable by B % BRI FE I *£8.46% ( — %

instalments up to 28 January 2021 (2017: 8 July 2019). —+t%:9.50% )Eﬁ% : /,\E/‘f ==

F—AZ+NB(ZZ—+tF:
—hNEEANR)A ‘H)ﬂai%
BONDS PAYABLE 32. B&ES
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
=ZE-N\F —E—+tF
FER FA&T

Non-current liabilities: ERBNA E:

Bonds payable e ES 10,339 9,900

On 24 July 2015, the Company issued 7% coupon bonds
of principal amount of HK$11,000,000 (the “Bonds”) to
certain independent third parties. The proceeds received
by the Company were HK$11,000,000, with total issued
cost amounted to approximately HK$1,700,000. The
Bonds are denominated in HK$ and issued at par. Interest
is payable semi-annually and the principal will be repaid
when the Bonds fall due on 23 July 2019. The effective
interest rate of the Bonds is 12.08%. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, interest expense for the Bonds is
approximately HK$1,208,000 (2017: HK$1,160,000).

The Bonds contain a liability component and an early
redemption option.

RZE—RAF+-A-+WTBE AR
AMAETBYLE=ZF8TAc5
11,000,000 L 2B 7%EH ([&
%?J) ARAEWEFTERKE
11,000,000 JT i@ﬁéﬁﬁ$7%i’3
1,700,000/ JT & % Jh LA JT&f
BENEAEBRT - NEAGEFEX
HAEeEBREFR-_ZTE—NLFL
AZ+=ZRIHNEE-BHFER
FEAE1208% HE_ZT—N\F=
A=+—RLEFE BFFERAX
£ 491,208,000 L (& —+F:
1,160,000/ 7T ) ©

BEFERAaERNMEREREE
1o

PE=ZEZERERDE 2017/185F &
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32.

33.
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BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

Liability component represents the present value of
the contractually determined stream of future cash
flows discounted at the prevailing market interest rate
at that time applicable to instruments of comparable
credit status and providing substantially the same cash
flows, on the same terms, but without the embedded
derivatives. The interest charged on the Bonds for the
period is calculated by applying effective interest rates
of approximately 12.08% per annum to the liability
component since the Bonds were issued.

Early redemption options are regarded as embedded
derivatives not closely related to the host contract. The
directors consider that the fair value of the above early
redemption options is insignificant on initial recognition,
31 March 2018 and 2017.

DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

32.

33.

EBRES 2
BEINDAGHHITHARAREERE
KRB - FTFE A ITEXRE B R B
PR H RIRHEABERRERE =
TEERATETEMSBMTIAY®
BmSFE -mRESHD T A8
BEHFAEXHMKRFEIREGTE
BRI R 4912.08%5T & ©

REPBLOEEREASRANTET
AMBFANTEZTIHEE-EFR
R ALRFEOEEE AFER
NERRHEER_ZE-—NEFR_ZE
—tF=A=+—RHIETEK-

ELERIE (EE) &fE

(a) The followings are the deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (@) UNTAEAEERAFERATSF
recognised by the Group and the movements ERRAZEEHB(BEE) 8
thereon during the current and prior years: BERHEEH:

Losses
available for
Accumulated offset against  Accumulated
fair value future taxable tax
gain profit  depreciation LAT Provision  Impairment Total
HKS 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
it URKEH
AFE  ARERM 2ifE  THEEH
Wi ERIZEE ik B W it
THx THT THT THT THT THT
At 1 April 2016 RZE-~EMA-A 688,463 (29,517) 59,741 - - 718,687
Deferred tax (credit)/expense PRI A2 ELHE
to profit or loss (B8)/#x (20,196) (2,754) 12617 - - (10,333)
Exchange adjustment fE 5 (40,606) 1821 (3,842) - - (42,627)
At 31 March 2017 and RZZ-t£=R=1-H
1 April 2017 R-E-tEMA-H 627,661 (30,450) 68,516 - - 665,727
Deferred tax (credit)/expense  PMEFR: A2 BB
to profit or loss (B8)/RBx 699 6,119 12,957 (11,781) (2,903) 5,091
Exchange adjustment B A% 67,755 (2,921) 8,161 (700) (172) 7123
At 31 March 2018 RZ5-\E=zA=1-H 696,115 (27,252) 89,634 (12,481) (3,075) 742,941

Annual Report 2017/18
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33. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/
LIABILITIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(@

(continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, the deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset, and presented
as follows for financial reporting purposes:

33. EXERIB (BE) 8B (&)

(a)

(%)

RREAMBIRARES  EL
MEBEENRAGBEDHEE  SAHH
HEEWMZHNMT

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

—E-N\F —ET—+F

FET FEr

Deferred tax assets REFIBEE E (14,396) -
Deferred tax liabilities R IBEE 757,337 665,727
742,941 665,727

Deferred income tax assets were recognised for
tax losses carried forward to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. The Group has
unrecognised tax losses of HK$121,784,000 (2017:
HK$141,792,000, restated) to be carried forward
for offset against future taxable income which may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprise established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007.

As at 31 March 2018, deferred tax liabilities
of approximately HK$22,498,000 (2017:
HK$15,407,000) has not been recognised for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that the subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future.

(b)

BEMGHREETEERBR
4 F| 25 7] 35 38 K 2K P& 2R B i K
S Mt TAASE 2 AR E#
THER - AEEEARGEER
$H AR R E R TN A B R IER
15 E518121,784,0008 70 (=&
—+ 4 :141,792,0007 T (&
E5) ) A EBEAAE -

RIFFEEEMAEHRE £ E
FXAZEVINEE IR E (R E RSN E
FEEIRH R B ABUI0%H A
M -ZHEB T NF—A
—HREAN BRAR_ZTTLF
TZA=1t—HRENHEFN-

R-E—/\F=ZA=+—8 &
JE T IE B & £922,498,0007% 7T
— T —+4% 115,407,000/ 7T)
3 A% 5t 78 B 7S 5= 1 B B 1 R
i) oK B [B] 28 ) 485 A ) 78 410 1 T
R-BEEZRR ZEMBRAR
RARATREDIRZZE R o

REZAZERERAR
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. R
2018 2018 2017 2017
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
“E-\E ZE-N\E —E—+F —F—LF
RHEE 8 A |
Fiz FET i FETL
Authorised EIE.
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0.01E T2 E@EK 200,000,000 2,000,000 200,000,000 2,000,000
Convertible preference shares AR E &Rk 602,000 6,020 602,000 6,020
Issued and fully paid: EERTRAR:
Ordinary Shares EEED
At beginning of the year NEL 3,346,401 33,464 2,473,387 24,734
Issue of ordinary shares: BOERK
- Placing (note (i) - BE(H:L() - - 159,996 1,600
- Conversion of convertible - ERTIRRE LR
preference share (note (i) (BtsE(in) - - 713,018 7,130
- Acquisition of entities under g gk o
common control (note (iif)) (ffz (i) 800,000 8,000 - -
— Exercise of warrant (note (iv) - 1T RRAEE (B at(iv) 312,500 3,125 - -
At end of the year NELR 4,458,901 44,589 3,346,401 33,464
Convertible preference shares TR E £ K
At beginning of the year 1 - - 401,667 283,858
Conversion of convertible BIATARE SRR (M)
preference share (note (ii)) - - (401,667) (283,858)
At end of the year RER - - - -
Conversion to ordinary shares EREZER
At beginning of the year REL] - - 713,018 283,858
Conversion of convertible IR ATIRARE S IR (AR )
preference share (note (ii)) - - (713,018) (283,858)

At end of the year

NER -
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 8 September 2016, the Company issued 159,996,000
shares with par value of HK$0.01 each, at a price
of HK$0.24 per share by way of a placing. The net
proceeds from the placing, after deducting the related
placing commission, professional fees and all related
expenses, is approximately HK$37,389,000, out of which
approximately HK$1,600,000 and HK$35,789,000 were
recorded in share capital and share premium respectively
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

On 19 September 2016, the Company received written
notice issued by the holders of convertible preference
shares (the “CPS”) for a full conversion of the CPS
at the conversion price of HK$1.69 per share. On 28
September 2016, the Company issued 713,017,750 new
ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.01. Approximately
HK$7,130,000 and HK$276,728,000 were recorded in
share capital and share premium respectively during the
year ended 31 March 2017 after the conversion of CPS.

As detailed in note 2, pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement dated 15 December 2016 entered into
between Fujian Sinco and Fuzhou Gaojia, the Group
acquired 95% equity interest of Fujian Jingdu for
an agreed consideration of RMB196,000,000. The
consideration was satisfied by the allotment and issue of
800,000,000 shares of the Company at the issue price of
HK$0.2745 each to United Century International Limited
on 26 May 2017.

On 21 December 2017, the Company received written
notice issued by the holder of warrant for a full exercise
of the warrant to the extent of HK$75,000,000 at exercise
price of HK$0.24 per share. On 22 December 2017, the
Company issued 312,500,000 new ordinary shares with
par value of HK$0.01. Upon the full exercise of warrants,
the remaining amount of equity component amounting
to approximately HK$9,261,000 was transferred to
share premium. Approximately HK$3,125,000 and
HK$81,136,000 were recorded in share capital and share
premium respectively during the year ended 31 March
2018 after the exercise of warrants.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with
the existing shares in all respects.

34, R (&)
B et -

(@)

(iii)

(iv)

RZFE—XR"ENLANB KRR
fo & 5 NIZERR0.2478 7T 2 [EA& %
77159,996,000% f& 15 & R E A&
0.017% 7T » Bl & FT1S SRR 88 (&40
BREFAEERE SXEAKME
M%) 4/437,389,000/8 T
H /491,600,0007% 7T 135,789,000
BEAREBEE_T—tF=A4
“—t+—HLEFENRARRBRGEE
PN

RZZE—R"FNLA+IA EQd
U 21 ] #2 f% (8 % B (TAJ 3R IR B ot
BDEBBAZFENLRERESR
1.698 T EHEBIRRELR
WETmEM - R_ZE—RXENA
Z+NABRRAFEETT713,017,750
B EREECOVE T2 EBA -
230 AT AR (B ST R 1E - 97,130,000
W IT % 276,728,000/8 T 0 BIRNEE
—TE—+HF=ZRA=+—HILFEY
& 2N R A7 v (BB

A0 BT 522 BT 5 al - AR 45 4B i ST Bl
BINSETVHERE-_ZT—X
F+ZA+HBZEEHHE A%
& DA% E (B A R #196,000,000
TC UL BB 1R i R BB Y95 % AR - (R (B
TEBR—_T—tFRA=-+H
1% 217 {8 & 1%0.27457% JT A United
Century International Limitedf 2%
I E%17800,000,000% 42 R A% 15 i
XA e

RZE—tF+=ZA=+—8"
KRR EIRBEBZREB AED
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35.

36.
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CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

On 30 January 2012, the Company issued 601,666,666
convertible preference shares, in which 200,000,000
shares were converted into ordinary shares in 2012.
One convertible preference share of notional value of
HK$1.69 each (The notional value was HK$3 each before
the rights issue on 4 February 2016) shall be convertible
into one new ordinary share, subject to adjustment in the
customary manner, including share consolidations, share
sub-division, capitalisation issues, capital distributions,
rights issues and issues of other securities for cash as
discount of more than 20%. The convertible preference
shares rank (a) in priority to the ordinary shares of
the Company and any other class of shares to return
of capital; and (b) pari passu with ordinary shares of
the Company as to any dividends accumulated on the
convertible preference shares. The convertible preference
shares do not carry any voting rights. The convertible
preference shares are non-redeemable and are not listed
on any stock exchange. The fair value of the convertible
preference shares at the initial recognition was credited
to convertible preference shares.

All the remaining 401,666,666 convertible preference
shares were converted into ordinary shares during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to the success of the Group's operations.
Pursuant to this objective, an ordinary resolution was
passed at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 23 November 2001 for approval of adoption of a
share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”).

Eligible participants of the Old Scheme include directors
and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
Old Scheme was terminated on 16 September 2011. As
at 31 March 2018, there is no outstanding share options
under the Old Scheme.

35.

36.
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
16 September 2011, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) and the termination of the Old
Scheme.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible and effective means of
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants. There
appears to be no material difference between the terms
of the Old Scheme and the Share Option Scheme, other
than the scope of participants which, under the Share
Option Scheme, is more specific than that covered under
the Old Scheme. The Share Option Scheme covers any
employee (full time and part time) holding salaries,
consultants, agents, contractors, consumers and suppliers
as the Board in its sole discretion considers eligible.
Moreover, in relation to the various circumstances under
which an Option will forfeit, e.g. death and termination
of employment, the periods following such circumstances
during which an option holder may exercise their options
are different under the two schemes.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable period
and the number of shares subject to each option will be
determined by the Board at the time of grant.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

36.
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 36. ERLELURNDARESZRS

1 98 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Share options granted to a director or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within the date specified in the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the
grant of the share options or the expiry date of the new
share option scheme, if earlier.

On 22 February 2016, a total of 46,000,000 shares
options were granted to the directors, consultants and
employees of the Group at a cash consideration of HK$1
per grantee which entitle the grantees to subscribe for
new ordinary shares of the Company at an exercise price
of HK$0.285 per share. It shall be exercisable during
the period from the date of grant, first, second and
third anniversary of the date of grant respectively in the
following manner:

(@) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the date of grant;

(b) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the first anniversary of the date of
grant;

() 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the second anniversary of the date of
grant;

(#&)
MARRESRHREBRES B E A0
HEATEDERER - BAELEE
RNABBIIENITE A - L IN
MAER+ @A BEARARARE
DR RSB IERITE R K EEM
B A TR 2 R EIRERTS R
B AR BT EREE TR
M 20.1%MmARME (BARQRKRODIRE
B H 2 (BHEETE ) 8 15,000,00078
T BARREREARS FREREL
/o

RHBRgE s ZANEERT R 2B
PO AT BB AR - R AR A B B S
BHIBTZEBARE - IREBK
BZITEMHARREREE  IN
HTRBHGERKFALE  MERBH
TE2ERNBRER L A HER TFX
HBRER B ZERmE (UAREER
#) o

RZE—RNF_A=-+=H &#
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the third anniversary of the date of
grant.

The fair value of the share options amounted to
HK$6,548,000 was calculated using the Binomial
model by Chung Hin Appraisal Limited. The following
assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of share
options granted at grant date:

Grant date 22 February 2016

Valuation date 22 February 2016

Share price HK$0.285
Exercise price HK$0.285
Expected volatility 63.39%
Risk-free rate 1.17%
Early exercise multiple 220%
Dividend yield 0%

Vesting period 1 to 4 years

Annualised historical price volatility of the Company as at
the valuation date is deemed to be appropriate to serve
as the expected volatility of the ordinary shares of the
Company and is assumed to be constant and prevailing.

Yield to maturity in continuous compounding of Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Note with the time to maturity
similar to those of the share options is adopted as the
risk-free rate.

The options were expected to be exercised when the
share price of the underlying security of the options rises
to 220% of the exercise price.

For the past ten years to the valuation date, no dividend
has been declared and paid for the shareholders of the
Company. Dividend vyield is assumed to be zero in the
Binomial model.

The Group recognised the total expense of
HK$760,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
HK$1,611,000), in relation to the options granted by the
Company.

36. ERGEEURDABEEZRS
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 36. ERLELURNDARESZRS

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors of the Company, but may not be less
than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the

(%)

BRETEEHARARESTEE K
THRERATEEZE&ESE (AR
AR EERLBRERSR (AR
RPH)EBRZMERRERHATK
ME: (A ARRMNEREZRR D
BREAPNAERS AEBIME

B HmERMRFHETE - R
AR EfE

Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of the grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

RZE—NE=ZA=+—HBHKRTE
BREZ MEFHSB T AL A39
F(ZZ—+F:49%F)-

The options outstanding at 31 March 2018 have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.9 years
(2017: 4.9 years).

(a) The terms and conditions of the share options that (@ MUTFTARZZE—N\EFE-_ZT—+
existed at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows: F=ZRA=1+—BEFEZHEBIREK
R AEE

Number of options
Contractual Contractual

exercise life of
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price options 2018 2017
BREZR
RHAE FEH TR ARTEE NEXRE BREXE
I s
Options granted to an ex-director:
BFnESCRRE:
22 February 2016 Immediately to 3 years 22 February 2016 to HK$0.285 6 years 2,500,000 2,500,000
from the date of 21 February 2022
grant
“E-REZR ABEZARMASE —T-A~F-A-+ZR 0285871 6F 2,500,000 2,500,000
~+-H g Z-E-CE

“A=-+-H
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 36. B ELURNDARESZRS

TRANSACTIONS (continued) (&)

(@) The terms and conditions of the share options (a)

ATBRZZE-N\EFR-F—+t

that existed at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as
follows: (continued)

FZA=t—HFEZBRERK
IR ()

Number of options

Contractual Contractual
exercise life of
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price options 2018 2017
BREZE
RHAH BRH TS BRTRE NEXD BREXA
—E-N\E —T—tF
Options granted to directors:
RYES RRE:
22 February 2016 Immediately to 3 years 22 February 2016 to HK$0.285 6 years 5,400,000 2,400,000
from the date of 21 February 2022 (note (i)
grant
“T-R"¥ZR NBZEARLASE —ZT-~F-A-+-A% 028581 6F 5,400,000 2,400,000
~t=H i=F it Sk Sl ks = (Kt (i)
Options granted to employees and consultants:
BRYEERER BRE:
22 February 2016 Immediately to 3 years 22 February 2016 to HK$0.285 6 years 23,100,000 26,100,000
from the date of 21 February 2022 (note (ii))
grant
—T-REZR NBEZARLASE —FT-F-A-+-A% 028581 6F 23,100,000 33,600,000
ZtZH = S S oy ol (Kreti)
31,000,000 31,000,000
(i) As at 31 March 2018, the Company had )y RZE—NEFE=ZA=+—8H"

31,000,000 (2017: 31,000,000) share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 0.70%
(2017: 0.93%) of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date. The exercise in full of
the remaining share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 31,000,000 (2017:
31,000,000) additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital
of HK$310,000 (2017: HK$310,000) and
share premium of HK$8,525,000 (2017:
HK$8,525,000) (before issue expenses).

KRmBEEBRETET
31,000,000 (=& — £ 4 :
31,000,000 ) R 17 1% B8 %
MR ARRAINZBEE %
f% 5 890.70% ( —Z & —+ F:
0.93% ) e FEA R AIIRBF & AN
BT BEOERGERESSE
BN B)E£1731,000,0008% ( —
T —+ 4 :31,000,0000% ) 58 4p
58 % LA R BB SN ZX310,00008
7T (ZZF—+%F:310,000%87T)
N B 7 3% 1E8,525,000/& T ( —
T —+4:8,525,000 ) (K
A REITHRY) -

REZAZERERAR
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 36. &

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the share options
that existed at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as
follows: (continued)

(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2018, an
employee of a subsidiary, who was entitled to
3,000,000 share options, was appointed as a
director of the Company.

(%)

BEEUROAEEZRS

@ UIFB/RZZE-N\FER-T—+
FZA=t—HFEZBRERK
KN (B)

(ii)

Hz2_Z— N\F=A
=t+—HLEFE —HEK
Bram—%EE (A
3,000,00017 & f% & ) E &

ERARRBIESE-
(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) EERRFESHE KINEFHITFEELR
share options are as follows: T:
2018 2018 2017 2017
Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
HK$ HK$
“E-N\§ ZB-N\Ff _T—+F CT-+F
mE¥H Mg
THE BREHEA TRE EREHA
B BT
Outstanding at beginning of  E 4 KT
year 0.285 31,000,000 0.285 46,000,000
Forfeited during the year (note) /%Y (#1:F) - - 0.285  (15,000,000)
Outstanding at end of year ~ F&EKITE 0.285 31,000,000 0.285 31,000,000
Exercisable at end of year FRATFIE 0.285 24,500,000 0.285 18,000,000
Note: Pt -

15,000,000 share options were forfeited during the year
ended 31 March 2017 due to resignation of the grantees.
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THE COMPANY

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

37. KA TRz F Bk &

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
b &t —E-N\E —E—+F
FHET FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries SN 1,790,730 1,581,200
Property, plant and equipment ME W= MR AE 262 638
Total non-current assets FkRBEEHAE 1,790,992 1,581,838
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value BN ER ABD 2%
through profit or loss EE 133,857 142,777
Other receivables, deposits and  H i JEUFUE - 24 &
prepayments SELNE e 11,759 11,459
Cash and cash equivalents ReENREEE 57.677 3,865
Total current assets REBEEHAE 203,293 158,101
Total assets EE#AE 1,994,285 1,739,939
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payables and accruals H ib et 3018 N FEET B A 5,913 7,006
Amounts due to related A B85 R B 5RIE
companies - 20,400
Total current liabilities REBEEHARE 5,913 27,406
Net current assets REBEEFE 197,380 130,695
Total assets less current EEHAERRBERE
liabilities 1,988,372 1,712,533
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

37. KRB 2 BEMRRT (&)

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it i —E-NF —E—+F
FET FAET
Non-current liability FRBEME
Bonds payable e &S 10,339 9,900
Net assets EEFE 1,978,033 1,702,633
Capital and reserves B R #E
Share capital % 7 34 44,589 33,464
Reserves (note) i (HaE) 1,933,444 1,669,169
Total equity ERAEH 1,978,033 1,702,633
On behalf of the Board REESE
Guo Jiadi Wang Chao
B0 FiE
Director Director
EFE EF
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37. XAT 2B BERRE (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: B & -
Movements of the reserve of the Company are as follows: RARlZHEESHWOT :
Conversion
Convertible Share  Share-based option/
preference premium  compensation warrants Accumulated
shares account reserve reserve  Other reserve losses Total

HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
(note (i) (note (1)) (note (i)
NRABREE BRE/
TERELR ROBEER HERE ARERRE Rt ZHEE &t
AT AT TET AT AT TET FAT
(i) (%) (Frakii))

At 1 April 2016 R-E-ERA-A 283,858 3,640,011 1824 9,261 - (2,187,627) 1,7141327
Loss for the year FEEER - - - - - (108428)  (108428)
Total comprehensive income 2EhELE - - - - - (108428)  (108428)
Equity-settled share-based transactions  ER£EMURHAEEZ R 5 - - 1,611 - - - 1611
Forfeiture of share option R E - - (133) - - 133 -
Issue of ordinary shares (note 34()  EITERIR(Mi340) - 35,789 - - - - 35,789
Conversion of convertible preference BRI E R TR (737341

shares (note 34(ii)) (283,858) 276,128 - - - - (7,130)
Transfer between reserves (nofe (i) lE 2 RIS (Aizk(ii)) - (3640,117) - - 1462051 2,178,066 -
At31 March 2017 and 1 Aprl 2017 RZE—-+E=F=+-BR

“E—+ENA-H - 312411 3,302 9,261 1,462,051 (117,856) 1,669,169

Loss for the year TEEEBR - - - - - (19,960) (19,960)
Total comprehensive income 2AhEEE - - - - - (19,960) (19,960)
Equity-settled share-based transactions  EREENRHAEEZ LS - - 760 - - - 760
Issue of ordinary shares and cash ARZHIEEETL AR S

consideration of entities under common K8 (##34(ii))

control (note 34iii)) - 211,600 - - - - 211,600
Exercise of warrant (note 34(i)) EREES (W40 81,136 - (9,261) - - 7,875
At 31 March 2018 R-E-NEzf=+-H - 605,147 4,062 - 1,462,051 (137,816) 1,933,444
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

206 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

Conversion option/warrants reserve represents equity
portion of convertible notes and warrants issued by the
Company.

Share-based compensation reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees, directors and
consultants of the Company recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments.

The other reserve, which is the contributed surplus
account of the Company, represents the difference arising
from the share premium reduction which was being
effective and approved by the Bermuda Registrar of
Companies on 11 May 2016. Under the share premium
reduction, entire amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company as at 29 February
2016 in the sum of approximately HK$3,640,117,000 be
reduced, with part of the credit arising therefrom being
applied to offset the accumulated losses of the Company
in the sum of approximately HK$2,178,066,000 in full
and the remaining balance of the credit in the sum of
approximately HK$1,462,051,000 being credited to the
other reserve of the Company.

Details of the share premium reduction are set out in the

Company’s circular dated 15 April 2016.

The share premium reduction was approved at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 10 May 2016.

37. KRB 2 BEMRRT (&)

et (&)

(@)

(ii)

(iii)
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 March 2018 were as follows:

38. B A B 215
R-E—NE=ZA=+—0 &Q7F
TEHBAFZHENT

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
establishment  Paid-up share/ attributable
Name and operation registered capital to the Company Principal activities
Direct Indirect
HMAL
£ RUIRCERE MERE/IMEXR AREREREEIL  EFEXH
B A
Fujian Sinco The PRC Paid-up and - 100% Property investment
registered capital of
RMB290,000,000
BREM ale BREAMERARE - 100% #MEHRE
290,000,0007T
Fujian Jiake Industrial The PRC Paid-up capital of - 51% Property development
Company Limited RMB131,200,000;
("Fujian Jiake") Registered capital of
RMB216,000,000
RREMERERAA HE BREAARE - 51% MERE
(TTRREM]) 131,200,0007z: 7+ i &
AR #216,000,000
T
Fujian Jingdu The PRC Paid-up and - 95% Property development
registered capital of
RMB100,000,000
BRERH hE BREFAMERAARS - 95% MEERE
100,000,0007T
Xian Sandi The PRC Paid-up and - 95% Property development
registered capital of
RMB100,000,000
BZ=# e BREFAMERARY - 5% MEERE
100,000,0007T
Nanping Sandi The PRC Registered capital of - 55% Property development
Property Development RMB50,000,000 (note)
Company Limited
("Nanping Sandi”)
BT aEERE i HMERARK - 55% MEERE
BRAR(TEE=#)) 50,000,0007T (ffzF)
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. B A B &1 (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
establishment  Paid-up share/ attributable
Name and operation registered capital to the Company Principal activities
Direct Indirect
MR
£8 RURSE LS BMERE ZMEXR ARAEEEZEIE  IEXRH
E#& A
Strike Again Group Limited ~ BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Trading of securities
Strike Again Group Limited HEBEZHES 1REREE1ZTIR 100% - BHEE
t
Shenyu Timber Company Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100% - Money lending
Limited
BFEAEBERATF £ REREEIETZ 100% - W&
Bfn
Note: the registered capital was subsequently paid up on 3 April Biex: SMEARREER-_ZE—N\EINA
2018. —BH&E-

208 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18




38.

39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB R R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion

of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

(@) Fujian Jiake
Fujian Jiake is a 51% indirectly owned subsidiary
of the Company established on 24 September
2013 in the PRC, has material non-controlling
interest. The registered capital is RMB216,000,000,
in which RMB110,000,000 and RMB106,000,000
are attributable to Fujian Sinco and Fuzhou Gaojia
respectively. Fuzhou Gaojia is beneficially owned
and controlled by Mr. Guo lJiadi, a director and
major shareholder of the Company. Fujian Sinco’s
portion was paid up fully and RMB21,200,000 was
paid up by Fuzhou Gaojia. The unpaid capital of
RMB84,800,000 is required to be settled within one
year since the date of establishment according to
the cooperate agreement dated 7 August 2013.

On 30 July 2014, Fujian Sinco and Fuzhou Gaojia
have entered into a supplemental agreement (the
“Supplemental Agreement”) to amend the capital
contribution schedule for Fujian Jiake. Pursuant
to the Supplemental Agreement, the requirement
of paying the remaining amount of capital
contribution is extended to 24 months from the
date of establishment of Fujian Jiake but shall not
be later than the announcement of the land bidding
result. Both parties also agreed that starting from
24 September 2014, Fuzhou Gaojia shall pay an
interest to Fujian Jiake on the unpaid capital at an
interest rate of 6% per annum and payable on a
quarterly basis as Fujian Sinco has already made its
entire contribution. Up to the year ended 31 March
2016, a interest of RMB6,360,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,689,000) has been received
and recognised as capital contribution.

T\ EZA=+—AILEE

38. B AR 2B (&)
LRI EER AU FENEEERE
BYESERAEBEEFEER
ST AARIMBAT - EER5 5
HE A B A R 2 S S BRI E R
BIRBD TR

39. FERER

(a)

BEEN
BEENAARANMEES
S1%EEZHB AT R
*:ihﬂ_‘I—EEIEEPIEJZ
SNCoHBBEAREERER KT
& x5 ARH216,000,000
L RELF REMNSED B E
1 AR #110,000,0007T R A R
#106,000,0007T ° 4& M & £
$ ﬂ%%%zxﬁﬁéﬁﬁu@%
wmHER IR BELRZ
aB E%%ﬁz/% mEMNEEE MR
AR #21,200,0007T < 124 B &
7% T—=—F)\AtHZAER
% R A R#84,800,000
ﬁ?ﬁﬁ’:‘ﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁ*iﬁﬂ%

3=
/8 °

RZZE—NELA=1+H &B&
ERIEEINSEE LB T HE
(IHam=El)  EIREER
2B E - BEBERH AR
NHTIESE I RATENER
FRERIP T A BRREET —+O{E A
A ERSERLHRRERA
fzR-FHERTRE B =
T—OFNAZTMHBER &M
BEARRTESEFFE%
MREER NS WEEE
F“SEH RAEABELERE/EL
PEHIE-HE_T—RF=
H_+ HIEFE 2 WEFE
AR ¥6,360,0007T (FE R4
7,689, OOO/%TE)IEEE ﬁl/fé
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (continued) 39. FERER (4)
(a) Fujian Jiake (continued) (a) BEER (&)
On 20 January 2016, Fujian Sinco and Fuzhou RZZE—RF—HA=Z+H B
Gaojia have entered into a project cooperation RN SIEFTLIE B & 1R
termination agreement (the “Termination I (TR IEmaE]) - Ik
Agreement”) to terminate the land bidding in Xi‘an. A TR -REZ S &
Pursuant to the agreement, both parties agreed FRE BZE—R"F—H—H
that starting from 1 January 2016, Fuzhou Gaojia B RNEEKLERRANERM
terminated to pay any interest to Fujian Jiake on the BREEMZNFNEE% .2 A
unpaid capital at an interest rate of 6% per annum. B
Summarised financial information in relation to FHAREEMNETEERNAR]
Fujian Jiake, before intra-group eliminations, is ¥ SHAT 2 MR E RN T -

presented below:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+tF
FET FAT
For the year ended 31 March HEZAZ=Z+—BIFE
Revenue & - -
Loss for the year REEZEE (185) (7,830)
Loss allocated to non-controlling DI EIFIERE R A EE
interest (91) (3,843)
For the year ended 31 March HEZA=Z+—BILFE
Cash outflows from operating KEEES 2R M
activities (702) (10,279)
Cash inflows from investing activities % & ;&8 247k - 556
Cash inflows/(outflows) from BMEEEZIHESTRA CGRE)
financing activities 236 (10,378)
Net cash outflow We M FRE (466) (20,101)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\EF —E—+F
FET FAT
As at 31 March R=A=+—H
Current assets MENEE 174,968 158,605
Current liabilities VEID=RET (2,325) (2,596)
Net assets BEFE 172,643 156,009
Accumulated non-controlling interest 2 & 3F 122 A% #E 25 25,616 23,209
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (continued) 39. JFERESR (4)

(b) Fujian Jingdu and Xian Sandi (b) ERREBRAZ=4
Following the business combination of entities P ET2 4% B ) L R 6 B i 15
under common control as disclosed in Note 2, Fujian EHE ERRHAEART =8
Jingdu and Xian Sandi became a 95% indirectly X 7% 28 A A fE 52 B 95 % AR 1
owned subsidiary of the Company and has material WME AR BB ERIEERE
non-controlling interest. o
Summarised financial information in relation to EARBERH LR = EREST
Fujian Jingdu and Xian Sandi, before intra-group SEARAIREHAT 2 MBEER
eliminations, is presented below: Bt an T

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000
(Restated)
—ZE-)N\F ZE—tF
FER FET
(f&&E7)
Fujian Jingdu BERH
For the year ended 31 March HEZA=+—HItFE
Revenue Ias 352,412 -
Profit/(loss) for the year REFHF,(E8) 73,842 (21,980)
Profit/(loss) allocated to non- DA E IR S RE R,
controlling interest (E8E) 3,692 (1,099)
For the year ended 31 March HEZA=+—HItFE
Cash inflows from operating activities & /EE ZEERA 98,288 119,410
Cash outflows from investing REEZBZHER
activities (16,267) (63,794)
Cash outflows from financing mEEES 7R R
activities (82,175) (55,261)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be(ORd),/ MAFHE (154) 355
As at 31 March W=A=+—H
Current assets mENEE 58,076 225,985
Non-current assets FERBEE 451,900 362,607
Current liabilities mERE (261,920) (388,323)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (72,868) (112,753)
Net assets BERE 175,188 87,516
Accumulated non-controlling interest Rt IEiE AR HERS 8,802 5,025
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (continued) 39. JEERESR ()
(b) Fujian Jingdu and Xian Sandi (continued) (b) EERBRAR=HE(£)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$000
(Restated)
—E-N\E —E—+F
FET FAET
(&&=5)
Xian Sandi mZ=H
For the year ended 31 March HE=ZA=+—BLFE
Revenue g 241,838 198,315
Profit/(loss) for the year AEFERF,(E8) 19,751 (33,729)
Profit/(loss) allocated to non- DB R IR RS A E R
controlling interest (EE) 988 (1,686)
For the year ended 31 March HE=ZA=+T—HIFE
Cash inflow/(outflows) from KESTE) IS TTRA GRE)
operating activities 497,160 (6,756)
Cash (outflows)/inflows from WEEEZIRESORE),/TTmA
investing activities (245) 3,369
Cash outflows from financing activities FEi&E EE) 2 IR &R (444,585) (19,030)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BERACRt)F58 52,330 (22,417)
As at 31 March W=A=+—8
Current assets MENE E 1,713,481 476,494
Non-current assets EMBEE 38,366 438,876
Current liabilities mENaE (1,433,349) (609,754)
Non-current liabilities ErRFHEaE (233,803) (248,057)
Net assets BEFE 84,695 57,559
Accumulated non-controlling interest Rt IEIE AR HERS 4,168 3,420

(c)

The non-controlling interest of all other subsidiaries

that are not 100% owned by the Group are

considered to be immaterial.

(d)

Amount due to non-controlling interest is

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

41.

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities.

LEASE

The Group leases its office properties for the years ended
31 March 2018 and 2017. Leases for office properties are
negotiated for term for three (2017: three) years.

The Group as lessee

The lease payment recognised as an expenses are as
follows:

40. KARERE
RZE—NFR_ZF—+F=H
SH—B AEBETETALAE

EEEO

41. HE
REBRBEZE -_ZE—N\FLR_T—+
FZA=F+—HIIFEHERERAE
ME-PANEYMECHESERES
BH=(ZF—+F :=)F-

KEBEREBEA
AR zHBETHWMT:

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$°000

—EBE-N\FE Tt

FET FET

Minimum lease payments HEEESZH 2,040 2,040

The Group had total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

REBERBIAIRHECEHENRAT
HAR BBl 2 R AR &R & X B AT
T

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-N\F —E—tF

FET FET

Within one year —FR 327 1,700

2017/185F & 2 1 3
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41. LEASE (continued) A1, HE (#)
The Group as lessor AEBEAHEA
The Group’s shopping mall was leased to a number of REE 7 EYESEERTRER LA
tenants for varying terms. TEEEF-
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —E—+F
FERT FA&T
Not later than one year —FR 70,201 55,930
Later than one year and not later —FRERFA
than five years 136,775 117,826
Later than five years HF 1% 146,453 125,070
353,429 298,826
42. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS 42. B RAE
At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had the RZE-NFRZZTE—LtF=A
following commitments: =+—RB KAEEBATHAE:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
(Restated)
—E-)N\F T +F
FET FA&T
(g&E7))
Significant commitments B ETAME R 2 EERAHE -
contracted but not provided for:
Investment properties (note(a)) wEME(Hat(a) 299,813 270,616
Properties development (note(b)) MEER(KEb)) 923,531 835,550
1,223,344 1,106,166
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

42. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Fujian Sinco
has entered into an agreement (the “Refurbishment
Agreement”) in respect of the refurbishment work on
its investment property (the “Refurbishment”) with an
independent contractor (the “Contractor”). The estimated
contract sum of the Refurbishment is RMB240 million, and
Fujian Sinco has paid RMB240 million as a deposit (the
"Refurbishment Deposit”) for the Refurbishment during
the year. According to the Refurbishment Agreement, the
time of completion of the Refurbishment shall be 300
days.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Fujian Sinco has
also entered into a loan agreement with the Contractor
and pursuant to which, a loan in the sum of RMB240
million (the “Contractor Loan”) has been granted to
Fujian Sinco by the Contractor. The Contractor Loan is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in the earlier of the
date of completion of the Refurbishment or five years.

After taking into account the substance and overall
commercial effect of these transactions by the directors
in the context of the aspects and implications of these
transactions as a whole, for the financial reporting
purpose, these transactions are regarded as a single linked
transaction and accordingly, the Refurbishment Deposit
and the Contractor Loan are not separately presented
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. As at
31 March 2018, the contract sum of the Refurbishment
amounted to RMB240,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$299,801,000 (2017: equivalent to
HK$270,607,000)) is thereon disclosed as the Group's
capital commitment in the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2018, the commitments included
properties under development for sale amounted to
approximately HK$376,447,000 (2017: HK$328,349,000)
and properties under development amounted to
approximately HK$547,084,000 (2017: HK$507,201,000).

42, B REE (&)
B et -

(a)

Hz—_Z—+ttF=A=+—HL
FE BEARNE-—EBIYABRH
(IFEeE ) REREMEZBFT
BB —mhe (85
Wl cBIF A ANBEAAN
R #240,000,0007T @R LR FR
B3 AR#240,000,000 T 1E & E)
FziEe ([BFiEe]) - RIEBH
ek SRR BIET 2 BRI ZE B300K ©

HE - Z—+H=A=1+—HI#F
B mELANTEHABEEIIVE
HinE BHAEREREELER
4258 AR #240,000,000T 2 B
F(EBEER]) - EBEERA
EIEA B RARBIK B S
FAF (UARBEERE)EIE-

ENBEEMEZERFGI2EMEA
AREE EEREEZRERS
CANBRRBEEESER R
REBM REXFERAE—BE
BEENR S BALBNIES KA
BRHERTRERAEE 2 HEH
BHREPEBR2IN-R=_T—N\F
“A=Z+—H BHANEE
AR #240,000,0007T (#HE R4
299,801,000/ L (= ZF — £ :
& $2270,607,0007%8 7T ) R &R & B 75
BEANBEBEAAEE 2 ERFEE-

R-ZZE—NE=ZA=+—8 &
BIEFEEEPMEL376,447,000
B (—ZF — £ :328,349,0007%
JL) KB R HR ) 3 #9547,084,000
B (—ZF — 14 :507,201,0007%8
T e
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43. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 43. BERERIIFME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated (@) BAGEUBEERERSAHES
financial statements, the significant non-cash SN BRIFBERFHUWT -

transaction is as follows:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-N\#F —E—+F
FET FET
Investment activity K& EE
Reclassification of financial assets — REEA] XHM(EH 2 HE 2R A
at fair value through profit or FEFABSZUEEES
loss from deposit for subscription #7495 %8
of exchangeable bonds - 142,777
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BB ETHRMELEHNARBEYEE:
activities:
Amount
dueto Net amounts
non-  due (from)/
Bank Interest Bonds  controlling to related
borrowings payable payables interest  companies Total
(note 31) (note 32) (note 39) (note 44)
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

(),
EfEek  EREE
gnHE  EMRE  ERER  BERE ARRERE gt
(H#31) (W#32)  (Ba39) (W)
TiEr AT TET AT T FiEr

At 1 April 2017 RZE—+ENA-H 1,399,979 - 9,900 - (84,289) 1,325,590
Changes from cash flows: BeEgss:
Proceeds from bank loan BOEFHETAE 271,192 - - - - 271192
Repayment of bank loans BEHIEH (572,863) - - - - (572,863)
Interest paid BiflE (1.267) (78,044) (769) - - (80,080)
Advances received, net BhBHFE - - - 145,253 90,942 236,195
Total changes from financing cash ~ BEBEREE

flows % (302,938) (78,044) (769) 145,253 90,942 (145,556)
Exchange adjustments B A 133,09 - - 8,632 @77 136884
Other changes: A2y
Finance costs BERA - 78,044 1,208 - - 79,252
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=ZR=+-8 1,230,070 - 10,339 153,885 1,876 1,396,170
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

44. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 44, EANLTZRZ
Save as those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated BRérE MMk EMEGEESE I
financial statements, details of the Group’s significant AEBEEHEEATZRSHBON
related parties transactions as at follows: ™
(a) Key management personnel compensation () FEEBABZHE
The remuneration of directors and other members RAFE EEREMFEETE
of key management personnel during the year was EBREZMEST :
as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
FET FET
Salaries and other short-term FekEMOHESRT
employee benefits 5,419 5,085
Post-employment benefits BERL 2 12T 50 58
5,469 5,143

(b) Transactions/balances with related parties

(i) As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the amounts
due from related companies are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
Maximum amounts due from related
companies during the year ended 31 March
2018 was approximately HK$314,070,000
(2017: HK$295,441,000, restated).

As at 31 March 2018, the amounts due to
related companies are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

(b) EHEEATZXRZ &t

iy RZBE—NEE-_ZT—+
FZRA=+—8B EkHE
HERARRBEAERF R
ERBEREXREE-HE
—E-N\F=ZA=1+—H
It FEREWEEQR KA
&= & B #314,070,000
BT (ZF — + F
295,441,000 T (R &
5) ) e

RZE-NF=ZA=+—
B ENEERBRAS
BEM 2ENEAREX

E&-
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44. RELATED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions/balances with related
parties (continued)

(i)

2 1 8 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017/18

(continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017, interest
expense of approximately HK$12,414,000
was incurred for the period from 1 April
2016 to 31 October 2016 on an amount
due to a related company of approximately
HK$67,377,000 as at 31 March 2017 (1
April 2016: HK$186,832,000) which was
unsecured, interest-bearing at 14% per
annum and repayable on demand (the
"Interest-bearing Related Party Balance”). This
interest expense was capitalised in properties
under development and properties under
development for sale and properties held
for sale. The Interest-bearing Related Party
Balance became interest-free effective from
1 November 2016. As at 31 March 2017,
the amounts due to related companies were
unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the above
related companies are beneficially owned or
controlled by Mr. Guo Jiadi, the Chairman and
an Executive Director of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Group has entered into a multi-party
agreement with related companies of which
Mr. Guo Jiadi is beneficially interested in,
and has legally enforceable right to offset
balances among the related parties in an
aggregate amount of HK$32,000,000 (2017:
HK$130,000,000). The relevant arrangement
under the multi-party agreement was
completed during the year. As at 31 March
2018, an amount of HK$2,016,000 (2017:
HK$211,152,000, restated) due to related
parties were resulted and recorded as current
liabilities after such arrangement.

This arrangement is regarded as non-cash
transaction for preparation of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

—NF=ZA=+—HILFE

44. BEANT 2B (&)

(b) HBAEALZRE #th

(#&)
(i)

MEER
- &14%$%‘J+u+%&
BREREZE)R T —X
E@H—Eﬁff—ﬁ
F+A=+—BHME
iﬂ_ﬁﬂiiﬁmmmoo
BT (ZE—XRNEMNA
—A: 186832 000/ 7T )
([EEEEALZFFBERK
IEJ) :ZﬂgﬁaﬂSEEﬁA

%%W%Mﬁﬁkﬁéﬁﬁ
BEANLZRBRIER =
TR"F+—A-HEZ
SRE RN _T—LtF=
HE+—EI'ﬁ‘§1TJL%§%$’A
RESEER 2ER
/,\)EEILE\}&

_‘li\uﬂ

\ZE - N\FR T —+
A=+—8" J:LEEJ
Bl AL (K
RERRNITEE)ER
g

B0 fE R
Jﬁfqb)\l\

ZE

Het

130 000,000,%75) 5777
WiE THEBZERER
TR - R—_ZEE—N\FE=H
=t B RHEBELTHE
EA42,016,0008 T (==
— 4+ :211,152,000/%
7T (&) ) Z ERT &
Ai IEIuEﬁZ%//m@E\

o

Jitﬁﬁ?&iﬁ%%??/\iﬁﬁm
EXREAERFEREXR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

44. RELATED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions/balances with related
parties (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

Mr. Guo Jiadi and Ms. Shen Bizhen (the spouse
of Mr. Guo Jiadi) have granted guarantees
to banks for the bank loans with principal
amount of approximately HK$1,230,070,000
(2017: HK$1,399,979,000, restated), for due
performance of the covenants of bank facilities
granted to the subsidiaries of the Company.

A rental agreement for leasing a portion of
a floor of the shopping mall in Fuzhou was
signed between the Group and a company
of which Mr. Guo Jiadi was beneficially
interested in. Rental income charged for
the year amounted to HK$283,000 (2017:
HK$784,000).

Fuzhou Gaojia, which is beneficially owned
by Mr. Guo Jiadi, has granted guarantees
to banks for the bank loans with principal
amount of approximately HK$415,212,000
(2017: HK$604,778,000), for due performance
of the covenants of bank facilities granted to
the subsidiaries of the Company.

Guo Shi investment Co. Limited, which is
ultimately owned as to approximately 95% by
Mr. Guo Jiadi, has granted a guarantee to a
bank for the bank loan with principal amount
of approximately HK$127,903,000 (2017:
HK$186,381,000), for due performance of
the covenants of bank facilities granted to a
subsidiary of the Company.

44. BEANT 2R B (&)

(b) HBAEALZRE #th

(%)

(ii)

(iii)

FE=

HERBRQF

i ERLEL 2L
(L ERB)RAS
#91,230,070,0008 7t (=
T — 44 :1,399,979,000
BIL(KLES) )KIRTT
ERARITIREER MU
BERERETRARRMN
BARRTHRITEER

At
ah °©

NS B B — R A 20 0 o

En#EREZ A AAREE
BN —EEYEE —EE
MOEE—HBEEHE-
REFWR 2 HE WA R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

45. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 45, BRI B P 2 MK EER M
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY KEEHNE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and REBR-_Z-—N\FR-_T—tF=
financial liabilities as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are A=+ BRERZMBEENITEE
categorised as follows: BEREEFAAT:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-N\#F —E—tF
FHET FAET
(&&=5)
Financial Assets B EE

Financial assets at fair value through ¥ A FE ABRZHBEAE:
profit or loss:

— Investments held for trading HBIEEERE 125,745 164,087
- Financial assets at fair value through —1&Z A F{EET A 2 BB E
profit or loss =3 133,857 142,777
259,602 306,864
Loans and receivables: B3 K e W sk IE:
- Deposit for properties under “ERPMEZILS
development 62,459 56,377
- Accounts receivable —FE W BR 3K 7,329 5,441
— Loan receivables - E 25,000 259,332
— Other receivables and deposits paid —E i f& s 7018 & B 1% 4 16,286 76,818
— Amounts due from related —FE W 83 A B 8
companies 140 295,441
— Pledged bank deposit -BEEARITER 630 567
— Cash and cash equivalents -HekiBaFE 201,622 40,824
313,466 734,800
573,068 1,041,664
Financial Liabilities HKEasE
Financial liabilities measured at REHEKATHEZUBAEE
amortised cost
— Accounts payable —FEERR 159,307 180,351
— Other payables and accruals -HMENRIBRETER 63,802 85,914
— Amounts due to related companies  —JE /< B8iE A A IE 2,016 211,152
— Amount due to non-controlling —FEAS IR AR M 25 BB
interest 153,885 -
— Bonds payable - ES 10,339 9,900
— Bank borrowings -R1TEE 1,230,070 1,399,979
1,619,419 1,887,296
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB R R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ—ZF— N \F=A=+—HILFZF

45. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 45, BERIB D 2 B EE KRB

AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY KEEME &)
CATEGORY (continued)
(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair (a) ¥FEBRAFEFECZEHMITE

value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include pledged bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, loan receivables,
other receivables, deposits paid and prepayments,
accounts payable, other payables and accruals,
amounts due from/(to) related companies, amount
due to non-controlling interest, bonds payable and
bank borrowings.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value
of deposit for property under development, pledged

WHRATEFEZERIA
BEEERRTER RERR
SEE BRER BRER:
ﬁﬁwﬂ& RIE - BfHREE RTER
A ERTERFR - A FET 3RIE
REGER EUY (ER)H
N EIRIAE  E IEE AR S
B ENEFRRITER

EREGHEEER %ﬁéﬁﬂfﬂf%
XzRe BEMRITENR 2

bank deposit, cash and cash equivalents, accounts e RReEE  EBRER J'EJ%Z
receivable, loan receivables, other receivables, B HaEWIE B Ee
deposits paid and prepayments, accounts payable, R IERFRIE - B BRER E@V

other payables and accruals, amounts due from/
(to) related companies and amount due to non-

NREREER  BUY (R
) BEERAF IE&JW‘HF?*

controlling interest approximates fair value. RERIEZREEREANFEME
He
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (b) HAFEFEZEMIA
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities with BEEGR G BN ERT B
standard terms and conditions and traded on active MZEBECHHBEERMGAE
liquid markets are determined with reference to ZAFEDBEMRRMEERT -

quoted market prices.

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial

MHEENIMBREZR
BIATHAEE

FETY

. Eﬁﬁ"ﬂ%ﬂ(&ﬂﬂ#%&

liabilities with standard terms and conditions RIEBRETIHR 5 28
and traded on active liquid markets are BEERVMBAGZAT
determined with reference to quoted market BN2EMEmMEBET:

price; and

e the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices from observable current market
transactions.

K&

. ﬁm&ﬁ%ﬁ&&&ﬁ%%%
NFETIFI A ERIE
ﬂmiﬁx%Z{ 1% 1R Bh
RIREREDMTRELIR
EEBEAERE-

REZAZERERAR

2017/185F & 22 1



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

45, RERE D 2 KEERY
KEEME &)

45. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY
CATEGORY (continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair

(b) BAFEFEZESMTA

value (continued) (%)

The following table provides an analysis of financial TREHEBRATESFHUNATE

instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value ABRZ eI ADHT:

hierarchy:

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—&: HREESBERSE
markets for identical assets or liabilities; PRI PR (RACHR

B)ERE:

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included F_H: EESIEEBEE
within Level 1 that are observable for FBREBEEMERA
the asset or liability, either directly or IR (F—RABEE®
indirectly; and BERIN) &

Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are E=A WIKIBERIEIR TS
not based on observable market data. BB EEXBEZ

) A\ BUE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
E—& -t E=R #mat
FET FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2018 RZ=-Z—N\#F
=A=+—H
Financial assets at fair R QAT EFFABTZ
value through profit WBEE
or loss - - 133,857 133,857
Investments held for BIEEEKRE
trading 125,745 - - 125,745
125,745 - 133,857 259,602
As at 31 March 2017 R=-Z—+t#F
=BA=+-—H
Financial assets at fair  Z QA FET ABiER
value through profit 2B EE
or loss - - 142,777 142,777
Investments held for BFIEEBIRE
trading 164,087 - - 164,087
164,087 - 142,777 306,864
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

45. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY
CATEGORY (continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair

45, BRI E D 2 KEERM
KEEME &)

(b) BAFEFEZESMTAE

value (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used
and the key unobservable input to valuation of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
as at 31 March 2018:

Significant unobservable

Valuation technique input

fEE M BEATAERERAHE

(%)
RZE—N\F=A=+—80"'%»
BERATEERFE=R2ERT
Bt A Bam s MBEEREMRA
T EEMT & 3 28 A BUR Tt 40
T~

Relationship of unobservable
input to fair value
FTABERASBEATEZ
ZRES

Discounted cash flow method Discount rate of 20.1%

(2017:19.9%)
BB T REL BRE%20.1%

(ZZ—+%F:19.9%)

As at 31 March 2018, increased discount rate by
5% would decrease the fair value on financial
assets at fair through profit or loss by approximately
HK$2,459,000 (2017: HK$3,133,000) whist
decreased discount rate by 5% would increase the
fair value on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss by approximately HK$2,615,000
(2017: HK$3,345,000).

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017,
there were no significant transfer between level
measurement hierarchy.

The higher the discount rate, the
lower the fair value

BRREMS NP EMIE

R-ZTE—N\FE=A=+—8 &
REIREEH5% K REIZ A FEE
ANEBEm2UBEEZ AFEY
2,459,000 L (& — &

3,133,000/ 7T) M 8L 37 K R K
5% RS AT EFABRZ
PiEEE 2 RNF{EH2,615000
BT (ZZF—+14F : 3,345,00078
JL) °

REE-ZE—N\FER-_T—+F
“A=+t—HIFERN 2R
BEER BN ES KER-

PE=ZEZERERDE 2017/185F & 223




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ=—F—NF=A=1+—HIEFE

46.

47.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 24
April 2018, the Company had resolved to grant a total of
59,700,000 share options (the “Options”) with exercise
price of HK$0.24 per share to eligible participant(s)
(the "Grantees”) to subscribe for a total of 59,700,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company, subject to acceptance of the Grantees,
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 16 September 2011.

The Options is valid for 6 years from the date of grant
and 40%, 30% and 30% of the Options shall vest on 24
April 2018, 2019 and 2020 respectively.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2018.

46.

47.

WmEHRER

WARFBHA-_ZT—N\FWNA
BN AEREE AQFER
FEBEARTAR-_ZE—F A+~
AEMMEERETE RS &R EE
([ET A EE A $£59,700,0001
EAE ([ERE]) (TEEAEMR
0.24%70) » Al RBARRIRAF A &
59,700,000% & AX HEI1E0.0178 T 1) &
B EAFARABENE HAE

=
g o

BREEXHARL B HiE6F
40% ~ 30% K30% M fE Ax 7 5 Bl 45 1A
—E-N\FE ZE-NFRZZEZE
FINA-F+NBEEREE-

#EFHRE

MBBMERENR_ZE-NFXAZTN
HEE =it s MR E T -
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